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BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. YUAN Xin REXLE
(appointed on 19 August 2013) (R=ZF—=FN\NA+LHEZ(F)
Mr. CHAN Chi To, Antony PREBLEE
(appointed on 27 August 2013) (R=ZF—=F/\HA=-++HEZT)
Mr. CHEN Hai R k&
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Mr. WANG Fei EREL
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and Chief Executive Officer on 23 October 2013) THZ T =HFTHTEERTHAE
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Mr. CHI Chenxi ERBELE
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Mr. GUO Hong AT
(re-designated as Non-executive director on 28 August 2013 (R=ZF—=FNA=-+/NHHBFRI
and resigned as Non-executive director on 15 March 2014) HiTEE UR-_F-—WF=H+h
HEFTHFHTESE)
Mr. LAl Tsz Wah FFERE
(resigned as Chief Executive Officer on 28 August 2013, (R=ZF—=F)\H=F/NHEFEFTHE
re-designated as Non-executive director HBE R_F—=FNHANBHTR
on 6 September 2013 and resigned as HFBITEEFE IR=F—=F+—H
Non-executive director on 11 November 2013) T —HBFEHHITEE)
Dr. LEUNG Anita Fung Yee Maria REFEEL
(resigned as Non-executive Chairman on 23 April 2013 and (RZE—=ZFMA -+ =HFTHFH
resigned as Non-executive director on 1 September 2013) TEE UR-_F—=FNA—HF
FIHHITEE)
Mr. Peter Alphonse ZALDIVAR Peter Alphonse ZALDIVAR %t &
(resigned on 7 May 2013) (R=ZF—=FF7A+HET)
Mr. LAM Haw Shun, Dennis, JP 2= 2 NS O e
(cessation of alternate director to (R-F—=4F 7 A+ HTHHEFPeter
Mr. Peter Alphonse ZALDIVAR on 7 May 2013) Alphonse ZALDIVARSE £ 2 B (T E F)
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. DU lJiang
(appointed on 27 August 2013)
Mr. LIU Xianbo
(appointed on 27 August 2013)
Mr. WU Chien-Chiang
(appointed on 11 September 2013)
Mr. JIANG Jinsheng
(appointed on 11 September 2013)
Ms. SZETO Wai Ling, Virginia
(resigned on 1 September 2013)
Mr. FUNG Ho Leung, Arthur
(resigned on 6 September 2013)
Mr. YEUNG Chung Hang, Patrick
(appointed on 18 January 2013 and
resigned on 27 August 2013)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. DU Jiang (Chairman)
(appointed as member on 27 August 2013 and
Chairman on 6 September 2013)

Mr. LIU Xianbo
(appointed on 27 August 2013)
Mr. WU Chien-Chiang
(appointed on 11 September 2013)
Mr. JIANG Jinsheng
(appointed on 11 September 2013)
Mr. FUNG Ho Leung, Arthur (former Chairman)
(resigned on 6 September 2013)
Ms. SZETO Wai Ling, Virginia
(resigned on 1 September 2013)
Mr. YEUNG Chung Hang, Patrick
(appointed on 18 January 2013 and
resigned on 27 August 2013)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. DU Jiang (Chairman)

(appointed as Member on 27 August 2013 and Chairman on

1 September 2013)

Mr. LIU Xianbo
(appointed on 27 August 2013)
Mr. WU Chien-Chiang
(appointed on 11 September 2013)
Mr. JIANG Jinsheng
(appointed on 11 September 2013)
Ms. SZETO Wai Ling, Virginia (former Chairman)
(resigned on 1 September 2013)
Mr. FUNG Ho Leung, Arthur
(resigned on 6 September 2013)
Mr. YEUNG Chung Hang, Patrick
(appointed on 18 January 2013 and
resigned on 27 August 2013)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LIU Xianbo (Chairman)
(appointed as Member on 27 August 2013 and
Chairman on 6 September 2013)

Mr. DU lJiang

(appointed on 27 August 2013)
Mr. WU Chien-Chiang

(appointed on 11 September 2013)
Mr. JIANG Jinsheng

(appointed on 11 September 2013)
Mr. FUNG Ho Leung, Arthur (former Chairman)

(resigned on 6 September 2013)
Ms. SZETO Wai Ling, Virginia

(resigned on 1 September 2013)
Mr. LAl Tsz Wah

(resigned on 6 September 2013)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Mr. YUAN Xin (Chairman)
(appointed as Chairman
on 13 March 2014)
Mr. CHAN Chi To, Antony
(@appointed on 13 March 2014)
Mr. CHEN Hai
(appointed on 13 March 2014)
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AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. YUAN Xin
(appointed on 23 October 2013)
Mr. CHAN Chi To, Antony
(appointed on 28 August 2013)
Mr. WANG Fei
(appointed on 6 September 2013 and
resigned on 23 October 2013)
Mr. LAl Tsz Wah
(resigned on 6 September 2013)
Mr. GUO Hong
(resigned on 28 August 2013)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. MUI Ngar May
(resigned on 11 September 2013 and
re-appointed on 11 November 2013)
Mr. TAM Kam Shing, Chris
(appointed on 11 September 2013 and
resigned on 11 November 2013)

AUDITORS

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Floor 4, Willow House,
Cricket Square,

P O Box 2804,

Grand Cayman KY1-1112,
Cayman lIslands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS

19/F., Prosperity Tower,

No. 39 Queen’s Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE
Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House
24 Shedden Road, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman lIslands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited

18th Floor, Fook Lee Commercial Centre, Town Place,

33 Lockhart Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
DBS Bank (HK) Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

LEGAL ADVISERS
As to Hong Kong Law
Troutman Sanders

As to Cayman Islands Law
Conyers Dill & Pearman

As to PRC Law
Allbright Law Offices

STOCK CODE
2366

WEBSITE

http://www.smiculture2366.com
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the vyear, the Group continued to refine both its
business and financing structure. Coupled with the effect on
the reform of the governing authorities of the PRC TV and
film industry, the Group’s sales activities on TV drama and
related business were sluggish during the year. Nevertheless, in
this year, the Company has completed two rights issue
exercises and raised funds in aggregate of approximately
HK$529.8 million. Majority of the bank loans were repaid and
all of outstanding convertible bonds were redeemed. These
actions helped to lower the gearing level of the Group and
enhance the financial healthiness and steadiness as a whole.

In August 2013, the Group introduced a new major
shareholder, SMI Corporation Limited. As a publicly listed
company on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 00198) (“SMI”),
SMI brings with it exceptionally rich market experience that will
inevitably be beneficial to the Group’s business development.
With the professional knowledge possessed by the new
management team, the Group is expected to have new
breakthroughs in its business model in 2014.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

On 6 December 2013, the Board proposed to change the
name of the Company from “Qin Jia Yuan Media Services
Company Limited E)+ & E 8B REBERAF" to “SMI Culture
Group Holdings Limited 2& X {tEBEERBR QA" The
change of name was approved in the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company on 10 January 2014 and took effect
on 16 January 2014 upon the issuance of the Certificate of
Incorporation on Change of Name by the Registrar of
Companies in the Cayman Islands.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
attained a turnover of HK$191.4 million (2012: HK$478.8
million). Loss for the financial year was HK$674.3 million
(2012: HK$626.2 million). The loss for the financial year was
arrived at after charging administrative and other operating
expenses of HK$75.2 million (2012 : HK$93.5 million); no
impairment of aged receivables (2012: HK$173.1 million)
impairment loss for intangible assets of HK$371.3 million
(2012: HK$291.1 million); provision for inventories of HK$88.0
million (2012: Nil); finance costs of HK$73.7 million (2012:
HK$159.7 million); income tax of HK$1.2 million (2012:
HK$49.8 million) and after crediting the change in fair value of
derivative financial instruments of Nil (2012 : HK$40.9 million).

The Directors engaged an independent qualified professional
valuer with professional qualifications and recent experiences in
the valuation of purchase licence rights, scripts and adaptation
rights to conduct a valuation. Comparing the fair value and
the carrying value of these rights as at 31 December 2013, the
Company determined that an impairment for purchase licence
rights of HK$371.3 million (2012: HK$291.1 million) and a
provision for scripts and adaptation rights of HK$88.0 million
(2012: Nil) has to be recognised.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &% /&1 R 747

No further impairment loss for accounts receivable,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables (2012: HK$173.1
million) was made for the financial year ended 31 December
2013.

Loss per share reduced significantly from HK$8.10 for the
fifteen-month period ended 31 December 2012 to HK$1.99
for the financial year ended 31 December 2013.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
financial position of the Company remains strong.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy with
regards to its overall business operation. As at 31 December
2013, the Group’s cash level stood at HK$5.0 million (2012:
HK$167.2 million). The balances are mainly in Hong Kong
Dollar and Renminbi. With cash in hand and banking and
other facilities available, the Group has sufficient financial
resources to satisfy its commitments and working capital
requirements.

As at the balance sheet date, the Group had no outstanding
bank borrowings (2012: HK$429.1 million).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no outstanding
principal amount of convertible bonds (2012: HK$150.0
million).
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On 27 March 2013, the Company completed a rights issue
pursuant to which 468,798,074 shares of US$0.01 each were
issued in the proportion of one rights share for every one
ordinary share at a subscription price of HK$0.35 per rights
share. These newly issued shares rank pari passu in all respects
with the existing ordinary shares. As a result of the rights
issue, total consideration, net of related expenses, of
approximately HK$158,587,000 was received. In addition,
approximately HK$36,566,000 was credited to share capital
and approximately HK$122,021,000 was credited to the share
premium account.

On 7 August 2013, the Company completed a rights issue
pursuant to which 468,798,070 shares of US$0.1 each were
issued in the proportion of five rights share for every one
ordinary share at a subscription price of $0.78 per rights share.
These newly issued shares rank pari passu in all respects with
the existing ordinary shares. As a result of the rights issue,
total consideration, net of related expenses, of approximately
HK$355,228,000 was received. In addition, approximately
HK$365,663,000 was credited to share capital and
approximately HK$10,435,000 was debited to the share
premium account.

The gearing ratio (expressed as a percentage of total

borrowings net of pledged deposits over total equity of the
Group) was approximately 5.0% (2012: 52.4%).
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MORTGAGES AND CHARGES

As at 31 December 2013, no bank deposits were pledged to
banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group
(2012: HK$112.1 million).

As at 31 December 2013, no mortgage bank loans (2012:
HK$11.9 million), were secured by the Group’s land and
buildings with carrying value (2012: HK$76.9 million).

As at 31 December 2013, no issued share capital of
subsidiaries held by the Company was pledged for convertible
notes (2012: HK$100.0 million).

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the disposal of subsidiaries are set out in note 29 to
the financial statements.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

There have been no significant changes in the Group’s policy
in terms of exchange rate exposure. Transactions of the Group
are mainly denominated either in Hong Kong Dollar or
Renminbi. The management monitors closely the exposures
and will consider hedging the exposures should the need
arise.

PENDING LITIGATION
Details of the pending litigation are set out in note 33 to the
financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of the events after the reporting period are set out in
note 34 to the financial statements.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a total staff of 62
(2012: 90). Employees are remunerated based on their
performance, experience and the prevailing industry practices,
with compensation policies and packages being reviewed on a
regular basis. Bonus payments are discretionary and depend on
both the Group’s performance and the performance of the
individual employees. Benefits include retirement schemes,
medical and dental care insurance and share option scheme.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Following the formation of the General Administration of Press
and Publication, Radio, Film and Television under the approval
of the super-ministry reform by the 12th National People’s
Congress, the statutory functions on governing the PRC's
broadcasting and films shall be more enhanced and precised.
It is expected that TV production, distribution of TV series and
selling of the Group's intellectual properties shall be benefited
after the restructuring of the previous General Administration
of Press and Publication and the State Administration of Radio,
Film and Television in the later part of the year. The Group
shall focus its resources on TV series productions and
distribution of its film library to realise gains and enhance
shareholders’ wealth.

With reference to the announcements of the Company dated
3 December 2013 and 29 January 2014, Tin Yan Development
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a non-legally binding memorandum of
understanding with Nicks International Limited in relation to a
possible acquisition of Grand Astute Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Target Group”).
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The Target Group is principally engaged in provision of the
television and film production facilities leasing and other
ancillary services and its principal assets are the land and
buildings of the production complex located in Beijing, the
PRC. The Directors consider that the possible acquisition, if
materialises, represents a good opportunity for the Group to
facilitate the operation of its existing business by securing and
utilising the production facilities of the Target Group and
extending its business reach to include provision of film
production and other ancillary services.

The Company had started a due diligence review on the
Target Group and noted that the Target Group also provides
services including, but not limited to, the provision of shooting
sites, costumes, make-up and props, as well as artiste
resources for television drama and film productions. As at the
date of this annual report, the due diligence review by the
Company is still on-going and further announcement on the
due diligence process may be made by the Company as and
when appropriate.
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Biographies of Directors E¥/EF

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YUAN Xin (“Mr. Yuan”), aged 40, obtained tertiary
qualification in finance at Beijing Normal University in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Mr. Yuan is the
chairman of Stellar Cinema Development Co., Ltd. He is also
vice president responsible for the management of cinemas
operation under the SMI. He was also involved in the
production and distribution of certain movies invested by SMI.
Mr. Yuan has rich experience in cinema management and the
movie industry. He was named as top ten cinema manager in
Beijing by Beijing Municipal Bureau of Culture.

Mr. Yuan is an authorised representative, and the Chairman of
the Executive Committee of the Company.

Mr. CHAN Chi To, Antony (“Mr. Chan”), aged 62, is the
founder of Asmile Holdings Company Limited which is
engaging in Asmile brand building in the ecommerce market in
the PRC, selling cosmetic products and essential oils through
multi online platforms. Mr. Chan has rich experience in the
entertainment and advertising industries. He was the founder
and the chief executive officer of Cosmedia Group, an
advertising and media group with focus on television
advertising in the PRC, from 1996 to 2009. He was also the
founder and the chief executive officer of Metro
Communication Limited which was involved in television
programme production and distribution in the PRC. Mr. Chan
was the vice chairman of the Hong Kong Motion Picture
Industry Association. He is also a director, producer and
scriptwriter. He is a member of the “Wynners”, a popular
Hong Kong pop group that released its own album and
hosted its own television shows.

Mr. Chan was a director of Executive Resources Limited
(“Executive Resources”) (formerly known as Cosmedia
Limited), a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong, which was dissolved on 25 June 2012 pursuant to an
order for winding up dated 11 November 2009 made by the
High Court of Hong Kong in a petition for winding up against
Executive Resources filed by Holita Company Limited on 18
August 2009 under HCCW 499/2009. Mr. Chan was a
director of Executive Resources, which was principally engaged
in media and advertising business, from 15 January 1996 to 12
January 2009. At the time of the liquidation, Mr. Chan had
already ceased to be a director of Executive Resources.
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Biographies of Directors E¥/E/F

Mr. Chan is an authorised representative and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company.

Mr. CHEN Hai (“Mr. Chen”), aged 50, studied music
composition at Shenyang Conservatory of Music and music at
China Conservatory Musicology. Mr. Chen has extensive
experience in production of movie and television (“TV")
programmes, performance arts, talents management, and
performance promotion events. He is the general manager of
EXORTHENEEERAR(ERSR") which owns a
movie town in Beijing, the PRC (the “Stellar Town”). The
Movie Town comprises movie and television production
facilities and other supporting facilities. 2% 45 Ris 90%
owned by Mr. Qin Hui, a substantial Shareholder. Mr. Chen
has extensive knowledge and experience in performance arts
and cultural projects through his leading and senior roles in
the past with H B XX {k & fif & R 2 7], Orange Sky
Entertainment Group (International) Holdings Co., Ltd. and
Impression Creative Co., Ltd.

Mr. Chen is a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHI Chenxi (“’Mr. Chi""), aged 59, is currently chairman
of Beijing Z&M Technologies Co., Ltd, director of Beijing Lushi
Media Co., Ltd and director of DongYang Leverage HeRun Film
& TV Co., Ltd. He was a producer of more than 30 TV drama
programmes comprising over 1,000 episodes and over 2,000
audio/visual productions, and has imported over 10,000
overseas audio/visual and musical productions.

Ms. HU Gin Ing (“’Ms. Hu'"), aged 55, holds a master degree
of business administration from Florida International University
in the United States of America (the "“U.S.”), a master of
science from Barry University in the U.S. and a bachelor of arts
from National Taiwan University, major in foreign language.
Ms. Hu is an independent director of GigaMedia Limited, the
shares of which have been listed on the NASDAQ since July
2003; an independent non-executive director of Enterprise
Development Holdings Limited, the shares of which have been
listed on the Stock Exchange, since March 2011; an
independent non-executive director of United Pacific Industries
Limited and Carnival Group International Holdings Limited, the
shares of which have been listed on the Stock Exchange, since
November 2013 and December 2013 respectively; independent
director of Arich Enterprise Co., Ltd., a company incorporated
in Taiwan, since December 2012.
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Biographies of Directors E¥/EF

Ms. Hu was an independent director of Evendata Holding
Company Limited, the shares of which were previously listed
on GreTai Securities Market in Taiwan, from April 2011 to May
2013.

Ms. Hu is a director of NHL CPA Limited since January 2005.
Meanwhile, Ms. Hu is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong and the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in the U.S., and has
over 18 years of experience in accounting and finance.

Dr. LIN Junbo (“Dr. Lin"), aged 42, holds a doctorate degree
of Economics from Zhejiang University. Dr. Lin joined the Xinhu
Group in April 1999 and is the chairman of Xinhu Group Co.,
Ltd. and its subsidiaries — Xinhu Zhongbao Co., Ltd., the
shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and
Xiangcai Securities Co., Ltd. Xinhu Zhongbao Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the real estate, finance
and other investment businesses in the PRC whereas Xiangcai
Securities Co., Ltd. is principally engaged in the securities
brokerage business in the PRC. The Xinhu Group is a group of
companies engaging in finance, energy, real estate and equity
investments in the PRC. Dr. Lin is a director of Hong Kong
Xinhu Investment Co., Limited and Shanghai Great Wisdom
Co., Ltd., the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. DU lJiang (““Mr. Du"), aged 45, holds an accounting
degree from Renmin University of China in the PRC and a
master degree of business administration from Montclair State
University in the United States of America. Mr. Du is a
certified public accountant of Virginia State Board of
Accountancy. Mr. Du is the co-head of the financial
department of the Bank of China International Securities Ltd
since August 2003. He has also working experience in the
fields of accounting and finance.

Mr. Du is the chairman of the Audit Committee, the chairman

of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company.
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Biographies of Directors E¥/E/F

Mr. LIU Xianbo (“’Mr. Liu’), aged 49, holds a law degree
from Jiangxi University and a graduate of Southwest University
of Political Science & Law in civil and commercial law in the
PRC. Mr. Liu has been practicing law in the PRC for more than
20 vyears, specializing in finance, real estate, economics,
contracts, civil dispute, liquidation and bankruptcy, criminal
defence. He currently works at China Commercial Law Co. in
the PRC.

Mr. Liu is a member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Company.

Mr. WU Chien-Chiang (““Mr. Wu"’), aged 58, has experience
of operating media and entertainment business in Taiwan for
more than 30 years. He holds offices and positions in the
following companies: (i) a director and the general manager of
Era Communications Co., Ltd.; (i) the chairman and the
general manager of Satellite Entertainment Communication
Co., Ltd.; (iii) the chairman and the general manager of
Goldsun Communications Co., Ltd.; (iv) the general manager of
Media-Chain International Marketing Co., Ltd.; (v) the chairman
of Era Integrated Marketing Co., Ltd.; and (vi) the publisher of
Trend Media & Publication Ltd.

Mr. Wu is a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. JIANG Jinsheng (“’Mr. Jiang''), aged 59, holds a master
degree of business administration from Macau University of
Science and Technology. Mr. Jiang was formerly supervisor of
the chief executive office of a property investment company
and he is currently one of the senior management to supervise
the administration of the Shenzhen Pavilion Hotel Co., Ltd. (&
IEBSEFE)B 5 B R A F]). Mr. Jiang has experience in property
investment, property development and hotel management in
the PRC.

Mr. Jiang is a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
The senior management of the Group comprises the executive
Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December
2013 (“Senior Management”).
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The Company has adopted Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code"”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the
Company was in compliance with the code provisions set out
in the CG Code except the following deviations:

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, details of which are set
out in the section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer” below in this report.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that the non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term and
subject to re-election. The independent non-executive directors
were not appointed for a specific term until 22 April 2013.
The specific term and remuneration of them are set out under
respective letters of appointment. They are subject to
retirement at the first general meeting after their appointment
and thereafter subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company (the “Articles”).

Code provision D.1.4 of the CG Code requires that issuers
should have formal letters of appointment for directors setting
out the key terms and conditions of their appointment. Some
directors did not enter into formal letters of appointment
when they were appointed. During the year, they entered into
formal letters of appointment setting out the key terms and
conditions of their appointment. However, the directors shall
be subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Articles.

Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code requires the chairman of
the Board to attend the annual general meeting. Since the
new chairman has not been appointed following the
resignation of Dr. Leung as the Chairman, Mr. Lai has been
elected by other directors present to act as the chairman of
the annual general meeting held in June 2013 in accordance
with the Articles.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Company’s

corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the
CG Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code
for Securities Transactions”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Confirmations have been sought
from the Directors that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions throughout the period from 1 January 2013 or
their respective dates of appointment as Directors to 31
December 2013. The Board has also adopted the Model Code
for Securities Transactions as guidelines for relevant employees
in respect of their dealings in the securities of the Company.

THE BOARD

Role of Directors

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leading the
Company in a responsible and effective manner. Every Director is
charged to act in the best interest of the Company and
contribute to the Company with their expertise and knowledge.
The Board decides on overall strategies and monitors the Group'’s
performance on behalf of the shareholders.

Composition
The Board currently comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. YUAN Xin

Mr. CHAN Chi To, Antony
Mr. CHEN Hai

Non-Executive Directors
Dr. LIN Junbo

Mr. CHI Chenxi

Ms. HU Gin Ing

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. DU lJiang

Mr. LIU Xianbo

Mr. WU Chien-Chiang

Mr. JIANG Jinsheng

The diversified expertise and experience of the non-executive
Directors contribute significantly in advising management on
strategy and policy development. The non-executive Directors
also serve to ensure that a high standard in financial and other
mandatory reporting is maintained and to provide adequate
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checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of the
shareholders and the Company as a whole. Having considered
the functions of non-executive Directors, particularly their role
in checks and balances, it is considered that there is a
reasonable balance between the executive and non-executive
Directors on the Board.

Save as disclosed therein, the Directors have no other financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships with
each other.

Non-compliance of Rule 3.10(1), Rule 3.10A and Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules

On 27 and 28 August 2013 and 6 September 2013, the
Company announced the change in composition of the Board
resulting in the number of independent non-executive directors
fallen below the minimum number required under Rules
3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The number of
members of the audit committee has also fallen below the
minimum number required under Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules. On 11 September 2013, the Company announced that
two independent non-executive directors had been appointed
and the number of independent non-executive directors was
increased to four, representing at least one-third of the Board,
and besides, the members of the audit committee was also
increased to four. Accordingly, the Company has complied with
Rules 3.10(1), 3.10A and 3.21 of the Listing Rules from the
said date.

Independent Non-executive Directors

As at the date of this report, Mr. Du lJiang, one of the
independent non-executive Directors has appropriate
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Board has
received from each independent non-executive Director on
board as at 31 December 2013, a written annual confirmation
of their independence and is satisfied with their independence
in accordance with the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all independent non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent.

Non-Executive Directors

Each of the non-executive Directors was appointed for a
specific terms of either one or two years.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

In accordance with the CG Code and the Articles, all Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) are subject to
retirement by rotation once every three years. Composition of
the Board will be reviewed regularly to ensure that it covers a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. The Directors’
profile is set out on pages 14 to 17.

During the year, Mr. YUAN Xin, Mr. CHAN Chi To, Antony, Mr.
CHEN Hai, Mr. CHI Chen Xi, Ms. HU Gin Ing, Mr. DU Jiang,
Mr. LIU Xianbo, Mr. WU Chien-Chiang and Mr. JIANG lJinsheng
were appointed as Directors. The appointment of the above
new directors is a matter for consideration and decision by the
full Board. Only the most suitable candidates who are
experienced and competent and able to fulfill the fiduciary
duties and duties of skill, care and diligence are considered.
During the year, the Board as a whole is responsible for
agreeing to the appointment of its new members and for
recommending appropriate person for election or re-election
pursuant to the Articles for shareholders’ approval at the
annual general meeting.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles
and responsibilities of chairman and chief executive officer
should be divided. The positions of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company were segregated and
performed by Dr. LEUNG Anita Fung Yee Maria (“Dr. Leung”)
and Mr. LAl Tsz Wah (“Mr. Lai"”) respectively up to the
resignation of Dr. Leung as Chairman on 23 April 2013. From
that date, Mr. Lai also took up the responsibilities of the
Chairman as specified in the CG Code until his resignation as
Chief Executive Officer on 28 August 2013.

On 28 August 2013, Mr. Lai resigned as the Chief Executive
Officer but remained as an executive director and Mr. Wang
Fei ("Mr. Wang”) who is an executive director of the Company
was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer to take up the
duties and responsibilities of Mr. Lai as mentioned above. Mr.
Wang subsequently resigned as an executive director and the
Chief Executive Officer on 23 October 2013. From that date,
both the position of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
has become vacant.
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Until the appointment of a new chairman, the Board
collectively focus on the overall strategic planning and
development of the Group and effective functioning of the
Board whereas until the appointment of a new chief executive
officer, the executive Directors continue to oversee the day-to-
day management of the business and operations of the Group
and take the responsibilities of the chairman as specified in the
CG Code.

Directors’ Duties

The Directors are continually updated with the regulatory
requirements, business activities and development of the
Company to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
Through regular Board meetings, all Directors are kept abreast
of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as required under the CG Code. The roles
and functions of the Board in respect of corporate governance
function are set out in code provision D.1.3 of the CG Code.

The Board had considered the following corporate governance
matters for the year ended 31 December 2013:

Adoption of revised CG Code on board diversity as the

Company’s code of corporate governance practices and
adoption of a board diversity policy.

Review the usage of annual caps on the continuing
connected transactions of the Group.

Review the compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
of this corporate governance report.
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Board Delegation

The Board is responsible for setting overall corporate strategies;
evaluation of the performance of the Group and the
management; and approval of matters that are of a material or
substantial nature. Supported by senior management members,
the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for effective
implementation of the Board’s decisions and the day-to-day
operations of the Group.

Board Process

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board has
scheduled meetings at regular interval and additional board
meetings were held as and when necessary. The Directors
participated in person or through electronic means of
communication. The attendance of each Director at board
meetings and general meetings are set out as follows:

Name of Directors

EBENE

Executive Directors

EEERE
EFE2RAHIEBBOERE FER
BrEEBsRE MMEERRNER
FR -ERREBEABZXET TR
BEAEARHERETEZARAERE
BzRABEEE-

EETERF

BT =F+_-_A=+—HILFE
EEeTRBTER TEMKEBRT
MRV BRESINBITEEGSH B
RGN BERETFBAIAEE - FF
EHFEEE R AMRERGZBRE
T

No. of Board
meetings
attended/No. of
Board meetings
eligible to attend

No. of general
meetings
attended/No. of
general meetings
eligible to attend

HEESE
EE DS V4 % R R
CERLERE XERE
EEE cERLERE
BITES EEDS BERERXERH
Mr YUAN Xin RBEYE 5/7 —
(appointed on 19 August 2013) (R=ZF—=FNNAT/NLAEZ(F)
Mr. CHAN Chi To, Antony REBEE 717 —
(appointed on 27 August 2013) (R=ZF—ZFNA=-F+LtHEZF)
Mr. CHEN Hai B8 5 & 3/3 —
(appointed on 23 October 2013) (RZFB—=F+A-+=HEZF)
Mr. WANG Fei ITREE 2/3 —

(former Chief Executive Officer) (appointed — (BIiTEAE#H) (R - F— =4
as executive Director on 19 August 2013,

as Chief Executive Officer on 28 August

NATNAEEERPTEE -
R-E—=ZF\A-+AEZERTE

2013, resigned as executive Director and HBE PR F—=F+A-F=HFT
Chief Executive Officer on 23 October HTEERTHAER)
2013)
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Name of Directors

EEna

Non-Executive Directors

No. of Board
meetings
attended/No. of
Board meetings
eligible to attend

No. of general
meetings
attended/No. of
general meetings
eligible to attend

HEESE
EHRRE H &R =R
EEBHE XKERE
EEg SEBHRE
FBITES EEDS BEXERH
Dr. LIN Junbo WL R E L 6/19 0/2
Mr. CHI Chenxi ERBEE 5/7 —
(appointed on 27 August 2013) (R=ZF—=ZFNNA=++HEZ(T)
Ms. HU Gin Ing MRzt 5/7 =
(appointed on 27 August 2013) (R=ZF—ZFNA=-++tHEZE)
Mr. GUO Hong WA K E 16/19 2/2
(re-designated as non-executive director (R=ZFE—=#F/\A=F+/NHHBALHE
on 28 August 2013 and resigned as non- HHTEEF YR -_F—ME=ZH
executive director on 15 March 2014) THAFEHFHTEE)
Mr. LAl Tsz Wah BrELE 13/16 2/2
(re-designated as non-executive director on (RZFE—=FNANABERIEHT
6 September 2013 and resigned as non- EF YR-F—=F+—HA+—H
executive director on 11 November 2013) HEHFHTESE)
Dr. LEUNG Anita Fung Yee Maria REEELT 5/12 0/2
(resigned as Non-executive Chairman on (R=ZF—=FWA=-+=H
23 April 2013 and resigned as Non-executive — FEIFIHEHITEE IR ZF—=4F
director on 1 September 2013) NA—HEFHHTESE)
Mr. Peter Alphonse ZALDIVAR Peter Alphonse ZALDIVAR % & 17 —
(resigned on 7 May 2013) (R-FE—=FA A+ HEFIL)
Mr. LAM Haw Shun, Dennis, JP MEEFKF 4L 2/7 —

(cessation of alternate director to Mr. Peter

Alphonse ZALDIVAR on 7 May 2013)

(R=F—=4F7 A+ AT BIE T Peter
Alphonse ZALDIVAR: £.2 B (T £ %F)
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Name of Directors

ESns

Independent Non-Executive Directors
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No. of Board
meetings
attended/No. of
Board meetings
eligible to attend

No. of general
meetings
attended/No. of
general meetings
eligible to attend

HEESE
BHEAY R =
cERHE XERYM,
BEEE cERHE
BIAFPITES EEDS BRXERE
Mr. DU Jiang HIThRAE 4/7 —
(appointed on 27 August 2013) (R=ZF—=F)N\A=++HEZH)
Mr. LIU Xianbo Bl ek 4/7 —
(appointed on 27 August 2013) (R=ZF—=FNA=1+tHEZH)
Mr. WU Chien-Chiang Rk 2/5 —
(appointed on 11 September 2013) (RZF—=FNA+—HEZ(T)
Mr. JIANG Jinsheng ZHEERE 2/5 —
(appointed on 11 September 2013) (R=ZF—=FNA+—HEZ)
Ms. SZETO Wai Ling, Virginia RIEEB L L 6/12 172
(resigned on 1 September 2013) (R=ZF—=FANA—HEF)
Mr. FUNG Ho Leung, Arthur HER K& 7/12 2/2
(resigned on 6 September 2013) (RZF—=FN ANHEE)
Mr. YEUNG Chung Hang, Patrick 15 M8 1E k& 4/9 2/2

(resigned on 27 August 2013)

(R-FE—=FNA-FLHFF)

Directors are provided with relevant information to make
informed decisions. The Board and each Director have separate
and independent access to the Company’s senior management
for information and making enquiries if necessary. A Director
of the Company who considers it necessary to seek
independent professional advice in order to perform his/her
duties as a Director of the Company may convene, or request
the Company Secretary of the Company to convene, a meeting
of the Board to approve the consultation of independent legal
or other professional advisor for advice. For regular Board
meetings, an agenda and accompanying board papers of the
meeting are sent in full to all directors well in advance.

EXEREHBEENMELABARE -
EFehBESTEM BRI QT
EREEBRIMER - XAIRN S EEE
HEW - AREZTERTEERARAE
EZRAMARTSRBUEXEZZR
AARKBRAR 2RI WEBRES
TEH  ULERBILZRAIEMER
BHEBRER -HOTEEESEM
FOBRIAFHRENAENIEZTEX
FRRERRTHERAREEMEZM
BE=-
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Every Director is entitled to have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary with a view to ensure that
the Board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations,
are complied with. All minutes are kept by the designated
secretary and are open for inspections by any Director during
normal office hours by giving reasonably advance notice.
Minutes of Board meetings and Board committees meetings
record in sufficient details the matters considered in the
meetings and decisions reached. Draft and final versions of
minutes of Board meetings have been sent to all Directors for
their comments and record respectively within a reasonable
time after the relevant meeting was held.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter before the Board, the matter will be dealt
with in accordance with applicable rules and regulations and,
if appropriate, an independent board committee will be set up
to deal with the matter.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees with
defined terms of reference, which are of no less than exact
terms than those set out in the CG Code.

Remuneration Committee

The Chairman of the current Remuneration Committee is Mr.
Du Jiang and other members are Mr. Lin Xianbo, Mr. Wu
Chien-Chiang and Mr. Jiang Jinsheng, all are independent
non-executive Directors. The primary function of the
Remuneration Committee is to make recommendations to the
Board on the Company’'s policy and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management. The
Company’s emolument policy is to ensure that the
remuneration offered to employees including executive
Directors and senior management is based on the skills,
knowledge, responsibilities and involvement in the Company’s
affairs. The remuneration packages are also determined by
reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,
remuneration level in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions. The emolument policy for non-executive Directors,
mainly comprising directors’ fees, is subject to annual
assessment with reference to the market standard. Individual
Director and senior management would not be involved in
deciding their own remuneration. The specific written terms of
reference which follows closely the requirements of the code
provisions of the CG Code have been adopted by the Board
and are available on the Company’'s website,
www.smiculture2366.com.
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Remuneration
Committee held three meetings, with attendance record as
follows:

Name of Members

HE%E

RE-—T—=F+-A=+—AILEF
GUERBRRTT= RS BERE
M -

No. of meetings
attended/No. of
meetings eligible

to attend

HEERRE

EEREHE

EEDS

Mr. DU Jiang (Chairman) HIThRE(EE) 2/2
(appointed as member on 27 August 2013 and ~ (R=F—=F/\A=++HEZFHBKE

chairman on 1 September 2013) VPRZFE—=FNA—HEZHEEEE)
Mr. LIU Xianbo B SR k& 212

(appointed as member on 27 August 2013)
Mr. WU Chien-Chiang
(@appointed as member on 11 September 2013)

Mr. JIANG Jinsheng
(@ppointed as member on 11 September 2013)

RiERLE

ZELERSE

Ms. SZETO Wai Ling, Virginia AERELL
(former Chairman) (Al % &)

(resigned as chairman on 1 September 2013)
Mr. FUNG Ho Leung, Arthur

(resigned as member on 6 September 2013)
Mr. YEUNG Chung Hang, Patrick

(resigned as member on 27 August 2013)

BERTE

BRELLE

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed matters relating to remuneration packages
of executive directors and senior management and made
recommendation to the Board for approval.

The remuneration of the Senior Management (former and
existing executive Directors) fell within the following band:

(R-ZE—=F/\A-++HEZFEHLE)

Al

(RZF—=ZFAA+—HEZERBHKE)

A

(R-F—=ZFANA+—HEZIRBHKE)

11

(R-ZF—=FAA—HETZLE)

11

(RZF—=FAANBHFEEE)

11

(R-—F—=F/\A=-++HEFKE)

BE_T—=F+-_A=t—HILEFE
FMEZEeEMTERTESRSRE
EEFMERERZEE YHMESES
e B AL B A -

EREREERIERRETRTESR)ZH
MAFTIIEE

Number of Senior Management

BREEBAH

Up to HK$1,000,000 & 51,000,000/ T
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Audit Committee

The Chairman of the current Audit Committee is Mr. DU Jiang
and other members are Mr. LIU Xianbo, Mr. WU Chien-Chiang,
Mr. JIANG lJinsheng all are independent non-executive Directors.
The Audit Committee is to oversee the Group’s financial
reporting system and internal control procedures, and to review
and monitor the external auditors’ independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
the applicable standard. Other duties of the Audit Committee
are set out in its specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with their authority and duties and are available on the
Company's website, www.smiculture2366.com.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Audit
Committee held two meetings with attendance record as
follows:

Name of Members

RE% &

EXERT

BEVZBCRACERRLITRE &
B RBIEREL  REBREERE
EESRE  2BRBIUFATES - F
GRREEEREEZUBHEREA LA
MERREF URERFRERMRER
SMNERZ B 2 B RE B LA RER
Bzt BERZEBEecEMBER
FNAEESEBELENR - EPBMHI
RAEBELBE - HEATAIR AR Z

48 5 www.smiculture2366.com & (] o

BE-_Z—=F+-_A=+—HItEE "
BERLZESRITTMALH  HELE
R

No. of meetings
attended/No. of
meetings eligible

to attend
HEERRE
EERHE
EE DS
Mr. DU liang (Chairman) HTEE(EE) 11
(appointed as member on 27 August 2013 and ~ (R=F—=F/\A=-1+HEZEHBKE
as chairman as 6 September 2013) PREZF—=FNANAEZFRBFE)
Mr. LIU Xianbo A EmEE 1/1
(appointed as member on 27 August 2013) (R-ZFE—=F/N\A-1+HEZFRESE)
Mr. WU Chien-Chiang Rttt S
(appointed as member on 11 September 2013) (R=ZF—=FNA+—HEZHFABHLE)
Mr. JIANG Jinsheng ZEEEE —
(appointed as member on 11 September 2013) (RZZFE—=FNA+—HEZEABHA)
Ms. SZETO Wai Ling, Virginia AERELL 172
(resigned as member on 1 September 2013) (RZF—=FNA-HFFHEE)
Mr. FUNG Ho Leung, Arthur BER % 2/2
(former Chairman) (B £ &)

(resigned as member and chairman on
6 September 2013)

Mr. YEUNG Chung Hang, Patrick
(resigned as member on 27 August 2013)

BRELLE
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At the meetings, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited financial statements for the fifteen-month period
ended 31 December 2012 and the interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2013 with senior management and the
Company’s external auditors. The Audit Committee has also
reviewed the Group’s accounting policies and practices, the
Listing Rules and statutory compliance, internal controls and
financial reporting matters. During the vyear, the Audit
Committee met representatives of the auditors twice to discuss
matters relating to fees and audit/review findings, etc.

Nomination Committee

The Chairman of the current Nomination Committee is Mr. LIU
Xianbo and other members are Mr. DU Jiang, Mr. WU Chien-
Chiang and Mr. JIANG lJinsheng, all being the independent
non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee is to
review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. Other duties
of the Nomination Committee are set out in its specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with their
authority and duties and are available on the Company’'s
website, www.smiculture2366.com.

During the year, Mr. Yuan Xin, Mr. Chan Chi To, Antony, Mr.
Wang Fei (who subsequently resigned on 23 October 2013),
Mr. Chen Hai, Mr. Chi Chenxi, Ms. Hu Gin Ing, Mr. Du lJiang,
Mr. Liu Xianbo, Mr. Wu Chien-Chiang and Mr. Jiang Jinsheng
respectively were appointed as directors of the Company. In
considering the above new appointment of directors, the
Nomination Committee assessed the candidates and incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, independent mindedness,
experience, skill and ability to commit time and effort to carry
out their duties and responsibilities effectively, independence
under the requirement of the Listing Rules of independent
non-executive directors, etc. and made recommendation to the
Board for approval.

The Nomination Committee also nominated and the Board
recommended Mr. Yuan Xin, Mr. Chan Chi To, Antony, Dr. Lin
Junbo and Mr. Chi Chenxi, being directors serving longest in
office since their last re-election, to retire by rotation, and
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election by
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming 2014 annual
general meeting.
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Nomination

PEELHE

BE_ZT-—=F1+-"A=1t—HILEFE"

Committee held three meetings with attendance record as REBZLZEEVBITT=ZNg3  HFELH
follows: m
Name of Members
B EHZ
No. of meetings
attended/No. of
meetings eligible
to attend
HEERRE
EEREHE
_i hﬁ
Mr. LIU Xianbo (Chairman) AR AE(EE) 2/2
(appointed as member on 27 August 2013 and ~ (R=F—=F/\ A=+ +HEZEHBKE
as chairman on 6 September 2013) PRZE—=ZFNANAEZFRERE)
Mr. DU Jiang HTEE 2/2
(appointed as member on 27 August 2013) (R-ZF—=F/\A=-1+tHEZFRESE)
Mr. WU Chien-Chiang SRR EE 17
(appointed as member on 11 September 2013) (R=ZF—=FNA+—HEZHFABHLE)
Mr. JIANG Jinsheng ZEEEE 11
(@ppointed as member on 11 September 2013) (R=ZF—=FNA+—HEZHFHZR)
Ms. SZETO Wai Ling, Virginia AERELL 11
(resigned as member on 1 September 2013) (R-ZFE—=FNA—HFLHEE)
Mr. FUNG Ho Leung, Arthur BER %% 11
(former Chairman) (Bi £ &)
(resigned as member and chairman on (R-FB—=ZFNHNHEFLHERTE)
6 September 2013)
Mr. LAI Tsz Wah PETERE 1/1

(resigned as member on 6 September 2013)

Board Diversity Policy

(R-ZFE—=ZFAANAHEHE)

E;“&E%iﬂ:&%

The Company has formulated the board diversity policy in
August 2013 aiming at setting out the approach on diversity
of the Board of the Company.

The Board recognizes the importance of having a diverse
Board in enhancing the board effectiveness and corporate
governance. A diverse Board will include and make good use
of differences in the skills, industry knowledge and experience,
education, background and other qualities, etc. of Directors
and does not discriminate on the ground of race, age, gender

SMI Culture Group Holdings Limited 2ZEX{b&EBiERAR AT
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or religious belief. These differences will be taken into account
in determining the optimum composition of the Board and
when possible should be balanced appropriately.

The Nomination Committee has responsibility for identifying
and nominating for approval by the Board, candidates for
appointment to the Board. It takes responsibility in assessing
the appropriate mix of experience, expertise, skills and diversity
required on the Board and assessing the extent to which the
required skills are represented on the Board and reviewing
effectiveness of the Board.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing
and reporting to the Board in relation to Board diversity.

Board appointments will be based on merit and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates to join the Board will be, in part,
dependent on the pool of candidates with the necessary
knowledge, experience, skills, educational background and
other qualities. The final decision will be based on merit and
contribution the chosen candidate will bring to the Board.

The Board considers that Board diversity, including gender
diversity, is a vital asset to the business.

At present, the Nomination Committee has not set any
measurable objectives to implement the board diversity policy.
However, it will consider and review the board diversity policy
and setting of any measurable objectives from time to time.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established on 13 March 2014.
The chairman of the Executive Committee is Mr. YUAN Xin
and other members are Mr. CHAN Chi To, Antony and CHEN
Hai, all being executive directors. The Executive Committee is
to help the Board accomplish its work in the most efficient
way. Since the Executive Committee was only established in
2014, the committee has not held any meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2013.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the new code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

The current Directors who held office during the year ended
31 December 2013 have participated in continuous professional
development and provided a record of training they received
for the year ended 31 December 2013 to the Company. The
management provided induction materials to the Directors
appointed during the year.

The individual training record of each current Director who
held office during the year ended 31 December 2013 is set
out below:

= S5l
RIFEEER TR ZH TR EA6.5
f-FAEESE2EBESERR %
R R R AN N R ARER AR
EABEEERANMDEMBZBERTY
ESEFHER -

BE-_ZT—=%F+-A=+—BILEE
JEAESEL2HBEZEERE I
AARREFRERBEE_ZE—=F+=
A=+ HLFEEIEINZLE - &
BEEORNERNEZIZESRERTE
Ko

BE-_TE—=H+-A=+—HIFE
BETEZZ@ERIBINLEEETMOT

Attending or

participating in Reading
seminars/ materials
conference/ relating to
workshops rules and
relevant to rules regulations and
and regulations discharge
and the Group's of directors’
business/ duties and
Name of Directors directors’ duties responsibilities
HEs 46
ARARAR
RO R EEH ARAFAAR
7% BEEHE 561 LA &
g BITEEBHRER
EEna BRIy BEZEEMHE
Mr. YUAN Xin RBEE v
Mr. CHAN Chi To Antony fREF LA vV
Mr. CHEN Hai PR 8 5 v
Dr. LIN Junbo MRAE R 18 v
Mr. CHI Chenxi ERBELE Vv
Ms. HU Gin Ing i G vV Vv
Mr. GUO Hong AT A vV
Mr. DU Jiang MITEA Vv Vv
Mr. LIU Xianbo B SR ST v
Mr. WU Chien-Chiang RigsRELsE Vv
Mr. JIANG Jinsheng ZEEKE Vv
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COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, Ms. Mui Ngar May (“Ms. Mui”) was the
Company Secretary until 11 September 2013. Mr. Tam Kam
Shing, Chris, who was an employee of the Company, was
appointed as the Company Secretary on 11 September 2013
until his resignation on 11 November 2013. Ms. Mui was then
re-appointed as the Company Secretary on 11 November
2013. Ms. Mui is not an employee of the Company and is
from an external company secretarial services provider which
has been engaged to provide company secretarial services to
the Company.

The Chairman of the Executive Committee of the Company is
the primary point of contact at the Company for the Company
Secretary.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, Ms. Mui has confirmed to the Company that she has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
for the year ended 31 December 2013 and has obtained the
practitioner’s endorsement certificate for 2013/2014 issued by
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The amount of fees charged by the auditor generally depends
on the scope and volume of the auditor’s work. For the year
ended 31 December 2013, the remuneration to the auditor of
the Company charged to income statement were
approximately HK$3.6 million for audit services and HK$1.3
million for non-audit services. Moreover, the remuneration of
HK$2.2 million to the auditor for non-audit services related to
the rights issues completed in March 2013 and August 2013
was debited to the share premium account.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE ACCOUNTS

The management provides the explanation and information to
the Board to facilitate an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the Board for approval.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2013 and of the Group's loss and cash flows for
the year then ended. Meanwhile, the Directors are responsible
for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently; and that judgments and estimates
made are prudent and reasonable. In preparing the financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2013,
the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
have been adopted and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the applicable
laws were complied with.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon
the Group's ability to continue as going concern. The Board
has prepared the financial statements on a going concern
basis.

The reporting responsibilities of external auditors of the
Company are disclosed in “Independent Auditor’s Report” set
out on pages 55 and 56 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group. The scope of the review
is determined and recommended by the Audit Committee and
approved by the Board annually. The review covers all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risks management functions. Such annual review
also considers the adequacy of resources, staff’s qualifications
and experience and training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. The
internal control review function reports directly to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. Regular internal control
review reports are circulated to the Audit Committee members
and the Board in accordance with the approved scope.
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, management has
conducted regular review on the effectiveness of the internal
control system covering all material controls in area of financial
and compliance controls and various functions for risks
management. The Board, through the Audit Committee, has
reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system covering all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
function for the year ended 31 December 2013. The Audit
Committee is satisfied that the internal control system
maintained by the Group is sufficient to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that the Group's assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition,
transactions are properly authorized and proper accounting
records are maintained.

In addition, an independent professional firm has been
engaged to review and assess certain internal control system of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
reported the review and recommended procedures whereas no
material control failure was noted.

The Group will continue to enhance the system to cope with
the changes in the business environment.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Effective communication

The Company discloses relevant information to shareholders
through the Company’s annual report and financial statements,
the interim report, as well as the Annual General Meeting (the
“AGM"). The section under “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of the annual report facilitate the shareholders’
understanding of the Company’s activities. The AGM allows
the Directors to meet and communicate with shareholders. The
Company’s financial statements and each of the required
disclosure of information are dispatched within the prescribed
period imposed by laws and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company also
held an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM").

The Chairmen of the 2013 AGM and EGM had explained the
procedures for conducting a poll. At the 2013 AGM, separate
resolution was proposed by the chairman of the meeting in
respect of each separate issue, including re-election of retiring
directors, and voted by way of poll. The Company announced
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the results of the poll in the manner prescribed under the
Listing Rules. The directors including the chairmen of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company and representatives of KPMG
attended the 2013 AGM and have effective communication
with shareholders. Besides, the Company held EGM to consider
and approve the consolidation of shares and rights issue. The
directors including independent non-executive directors of the
Company attended the EGM to answer related questions.

To manage its relationship with investment community, the
Group meets regularly with the press and financial analysts
and participates frequently in other conferences and
presentations.

To further promote effective communication, the corporate
website is maintained to disseminate Company announcements
and other relevant financial and non-financial information
electronically on a timely basis.

The Company has established a shareholders’ communications
policy.

Shareholders’ Rights

An AGM of the Company shall be held in each year and at
the place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an AGM, shall be called an extraordinary
general meeting.

Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Shareholders may convene an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company (“EGM”) according to the provisions as set out
in the Articles and The Companies Law (2011 Revision) of the
Cayman lIslands. According to the Articles, any two or more
shareholders or any one shareholder which is a recognized
clearing house holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company, shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of the
Company, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
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The written requisition must state the business to be
transacted at the meeting, signed by the requisitionist(s) and
deposited at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong for the attention of the Board or the Company
Secretary, and may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionists. The requisition will
be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong and upon their confirmation that the requisition is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance
with the requirements under the Articles and the Listing Rules
to all the registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the
requisition has been verified as invalid, the requisitionist(s) will
be advised of this outcome and accordingly, an EGM will not
be convened as requested.

If within twenty-one (21) days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene a meeting in the same manner, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months after the expiration of this said twenty-one (21) days.
The notice period to be given to all the registered
shareholders for consideration of the proposal raised by the
requisitionist(s) concerned at the EGM varies according to the
nature of the proposal as set out in the Articles and the CG
Code.

The procedures that shareholders can use for proposing a
person for election as Director at general meeting are set out
in the document entitled “Procedures for a Shareholder to
Propose a Person for Election as a Director”, which is currently
available on the Company’s website.

Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for
the attention of the Executive Committee or the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals by
shareholders at shareholders’ meeting

Shareholders should follow the procedures set out in the sub-
section headed “Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting” above for putting forward proposals for
discussion at general meeting.

The above procedures are subject to Articles and applicable
laws and regulation.

Voting by way of poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of the
shareholders at the AGM or EGM must be taken by poll. The
chairman of the meeting demanded a poll for every resolution
put to the vote of the AGM and EGMs held during the period
pursuant to article 76 of the Articles. Relevant details of the
proposed resolutions, including biographies of each retiring
Director standing for re-election, were included in the circular
to shareholders dispatched together with the proxy forms. The
Company announced the results of the poll in the manner
prescribed under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

Constitutional Document

The Memorandum of Association and Articles of the Company
have been published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there was no
change in the Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association of the Company except the following change to its
share capital clause:

By an ordinary resolution passed on 9 July 2013, every ten (10)
issued and unissued shares of par value of US$0.01 each in
the capital of the Company was consolidated into one (1)
share of par value of US$0.10 each.

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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Report of the Directors EEE#H &2

The Directors submit herewith their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the provision of
cross-media services including television (“TV") program and
production related services, TV advertising, outdoor advertising,
and public relations services.

The particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 11 to the
financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The loss of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group as at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 57 to 187.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company
during the period are set out in note 27(c) to the financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

There were no purchases, sales or redemption of the
Company'’s listed securities by the Company and any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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RESULTS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
pages 57 and 58 of the annual report. The movements in
reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 64 of the annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 (2012:
Nil).

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUES

With regard to the rights issue carried out by the Company in
March 2013, approximately HK$70.0 million out of the total
net proceeds of HK$153.1 million raised has been allocated to
the Group’s TV program development business, foreign films
distribution and production related services. Moreover,
approximately HK$70 million out of the net proceeds has been
used to reduce the borrowings of the Group.

With regard to the rights issue carried out by the Company in
August 2013, approximately HK$93 million and HK$64 million
out of the total net proceeds of HK$350.1 million raised have
been used for repayment of the Group’s revolving bank loans
and term bank loans, respectively. Moreover, approximately
HK$117 million out of the net proceeds has been used to early
redeem the Company’s convertible notes.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, no
charitable donations were made by the Group (2012:
HK$1,800,000).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December
2013 is set out on page 188 of the annual report.

FIXED ASSETS
Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group are set
out in note 10 to the financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES
Details of the convertible notes of the Group are set out in
note 25 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS
Particulars of bank loans of the Group as at 31 December
2013 are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS ES
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2013 and REEZ-_ZT—=F+_-_A=+—HILF
up to the date of this report were: ?&E%Eﬁiﬁ%a,ﬁﬂ CEFEESZAT
(N
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. YUAN Xin (appointed on 19 August 2013) REKHE (RZZE—=FNAH
+HLBEZE)
Mr. CHAN Chi To, (appointed on 27 August 2013) BRER A (R=ZZ—=FN\AH
Antony “t++HEEZMT)
Mr. CHEN Hai (appointed on 23 October 2013) bR & % & (RZE—=F1+H
“+=HEZE)
Mr. WANG Fei (appointed on 19 August 2013 and FEREE (R=ZE—=FN\H
resigned on 23 October 2013) THAEERE - IR
—E—=F+A
—t+=ZHET)
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Non-executive Directors BITESE
Dr. LIN Junbo MAZ R 18+
Mr. GUO Hong (re-designated on 28 August AT A (R=ZZE—=FNAH
2013 and resigned on 15 “+N\BRBE - WK
March 2014) —_ET-ME=A
THHET)
Mr. CHI Chenxi (appointed on 27 August 2013) EEE L4 (R=ZZE—=FNAH
“t++HEZE)
Ms. HU Gin Ing (appointed on 27 August 2013) #AF H 2+ (R=ZZ—=FN\H
“t++HEZMT)
Mr. LAl Tsz Wah (re-designated on BFELRE (RZE—=%F
6 September 2013 and NARBHEE » R
resigned on —ET—=%+—A
11 November 2013) +—HF )
Dr. LEUNG Anita Fung Yee  (resigned on 1 September REEELT (R—ZT—=Fh A
Maria 2013) —H# )
Mr. Peter Alphonse ZALDIVAR (resigned on 7 May 2013) Peter Alphonse (RZZT—=FH A
ZALDIVAREHE  +HEHE)
Mr. LAM Haw Shun, (cessation of alternate director MEEFEXRF#@LE (RZE—=FH A
Dennis, JP to Mr. Peter Alphonse + B~ ¥ {E Peter
ZALDIVAR on 7 May 2013) Alphonse ZALDIVAR
FEEZEEES)
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. DU lJiang (appointed on 27 August 2013)

Mr. LIU Xianbo (appointed on 27 August 2013)

Mr. WU Chien-Chiang (appointed on 11 September 2013)

Mr. JIANG Jinsheng (appointed on 11 September 2013)

Ms. SZETO Wai Ling, (resigned on 1 September 2013)

Virginia

Mr. FUNG Ho Leung, (resigned on 6 September 2013)
Arthur

Mr. YEUNG Chung Hang, (appointed on 18 January 2013 and
Patrick resigned on 27 August 2013)

In accordance with Clause 96A of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. YUAN Xin, Mr. CHAN Chi To, Antony, Dr. LIN
Junbo and Mr. CHI Chenxi will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming AGM, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM.

None of the Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has an unexpired service contract which is
not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
normal statutory obligations.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, a confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent.
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Changes of Directors’ Information under Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules

Save as disclosed herein, the Company is not aware of any
other change in the directors’ information which are required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules
since the date of the 2013 interim report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
and as known to the Company were as follows:

()

Interests in the Company

RELTHEBSIBO)ERZES
EE g

BAFERFAFEEIN  RABLTHNEE
EERBE T ZFPHBREAIPUK
BEEMEMES  MARE EHHEEE
13.51B(IE T LA 58 -

EERFTETBAERKYD
HEAKRORESDPZHEZRKE

RZZE—=F+ZA=+—H RBEAQ
ARB A LRAERD (BB EHFES1E)
([FEFEHERD ) E3521EEF 2 F AL
MAMESH @ HRIBEFFIHIZLESTH
MERARBIPAZER AR AE
i EERNARREBEEZE(ESE
RBFRBAEROIEXVE) 2K H - 48
R REFRA 2 ER AR W
T

() RATZH#ER

Number of the Shares/
underlying Shares held (Note 1)

Fit 5 B 453, 4EL A B 493 BB (Ff9 3 1)
Approximate
percentage of total
Interest in issued share capital of
Personal Family Corporate underlying Total the Company as at
Name of the Director Interest Interest Interest Shares Interest 31 December 2013
R-F—=%f
+-A=+—H
HE HAS2BERET
Esugs BA#ZE Rik#EZD O5#E KROo#Ex 4 REBMHOE L
Mr. Guo Hong 135,516 Nil Nil Nil 135,516 0.02%
AT e 4 = i =

Annual Report 2013 & 45



46

Report of the Directors EEE#H&Z

(ii) Share options of the Company

(ii)

AT ZBRHE

Number of share options

BRENE
Exercise Percentage of
price per total issued
share Lapsed/ share capital of
as at As at  Adjusted Grant Exercise  cancelled As at the Company as
31 December 1 January during  during  during during 31 December at 31 December
Grantees Date of grant Exercise period 2013 2013 the year the year the year the year 2013 2013
13 B-=%
-%-=% i =+-8
+=8 R® £k ZB-Zf EAT2H
=+-02 -—¥-=% £R £R £R %%/ +=A ERTRE
ARA RHBH fiEH BRiTEE -A-B Eol Rif i i3] =+-8 ER1
(Note 6)
(i &6)
HKS (Note 6)  (Note 5)  (Note 5) (Note 1)
B (B 7¥6) (BisEs) (B #5) (B 1)
Directors (Note 2)
gx(W2)
Mr. Lam Haw Shun, Dennis, JP 6 March 2007 6 March 2007 to 13 June 2014 55.1534 1,423,680 (1,402,835) — — (20,845) — —
(alternate director)
HEEATHT ZZT+E ZZZ+E=RAKA
(BfEESE) ZARA E-Z-MEAATEAR
21 December 2009 7 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 43.8576 1,269,230  (1,250,646) — — (18,584) — —
—EETNE —E2-Z5-f+H
+=A=t-8 Z-E-NERATZH
Consultant (Note 3) 21 December 2009 15 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 43.8576 1,269,230  (1,250,645) — — — 18,585 0.003%
EEIGEE) k31K —E2-Zf¥-A+nH
+=A=t-8 Z-T-WERATZH
Other participants (Note 4) 21 December 2009 7 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 43.8576 1,269,230  (1,250,645) — — — 18,585 0.003%
Efp28AL (M) ZTRNF —E-TF-A+tH
+=F=t-8 Z-F-mERATZH
15 March 2007 15 March 2007 to 13 June 2014 55.1534 14,236,842 (14,028,375) — — — 208,467 0.037%
ZTRLF ZZZ+5=At+EA
=ZR+RE Z_E-WERATZHE
21 December 2009 7 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 5.9521 1,269,230 — — — (1,269,230) — —
ZZTNF
+-A=+-8
21 December 2009 15 January 2010 to 13 June 2014 5.9521 1,269,230 — — — (1,269,230) — —
—T-T4-A+5A
Z-E-NERATZH
Total 22,006,672 (19,183,146) — — (2,577,889) 245,637
@&t
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Notes:

1. The total issued share capital as at 31 December 2013 of
562,557,684 shares was used in calculating the percentage.

2. These share options represent personal interest held by the
beneficial owner, Mr. Lam Haw Shun, Dennis, JP, an alternative
director to Mr. Peter Alphonse Zaldivar, Mr. Peter Alphonse
Zaldivar resigned as Director on 7 May 2013 and Mr. Lam Haw
Shun, Dennis, JP ceased to be alternate director of Mr. Peter
Alphonse Zaldivar on 7 May 2013.

3. Dr. Wong Ying Ho, Kennedy, BBS, JP, resigned as Director on 29
November 2010 and was appointed as consultant of the
Company. His interests in share options to subscribe for 18,585
shares of the Company were reclassified under the category of
consultant.

4. Other participants include the former directors, Mr. Tsiang Hoi
Fong, as he remains as director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group, his options still remained outstanding as at 31
December 2013.

5. During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, no options
were granted or exercised under the Share Option Scheme.

6. Exercise price and number of the options were adjusted with
effect from 8 March 2013 and 18 July 2013.

Save as disclosed in this report, as at 31 December 2013,
none of the Directors of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were required (i) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFQO); or (ii) pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange and as known to the
Company.

k-
REE
Mt 3E
1. AEEOLRAAR-E—=F+=

A=+ —RAZEBEEITHRAEHE B
562,557,684 0% I 15 °

2. 2 Z RN HE APeter Alphonse Zaldivar
EECZEAREENEZEAFHLINE
BREEAFHOEE A AR  Peter
Alphonse Zaldivart AR - —=4
FAtBEEBAEES  MMHZELFH
+AR=ZE—=FRALBTHBERT
Peter Alphonse Zaldivarfc4 2 & T &
R

3. BERZBEBBSAFHLIRA T —F
F+—AZ+NBETESUREZF
7% A2 EER - HR AR 8818,5850%

RAIRGOEREZESETHHE
ZEMER -

4. H2EATRENTESERS
EE(AKNEERETHEBRRZ
BE) W-_ZT—=F+-A=+—H
2 B ERARITHE -

5. REE-ZFT-—=Ff+-_A=+—-HLt
MREELERBERESSRD
HAT B AAE -

6. BREZTEEMBACKHAE B
—E-=ZHF=ANRARZZE—=Ft
AtNBRERR-

BRAN R &P B %M\- _ﬂf< =
¢+ A=+—8" EEER
7&;H§Tffj$ﬁﬂawj&.<)£%ﬁm
HFREAEEMEXVES) 2 IRm -

AR mSEST  MERE AR
B AN i%fwﬁu%xv*ﬁ%m%’
/MB%HA“ i 22 BT 2 2 Bk

?(@%ﬁ—ﬁfﬁdﬁz’? R EEE
W'J ZEBRNERBIAAIERER 2
HHAR) KMBEZBSLBPE
&P E352{R AR ZIKFTIE 2 &
Rtz ERZIOAE KR IE E
MABE LM EITAESEST
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, no contracts of significance, to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party, and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year ended 31 December 2013.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
Interests of the directors of the Company in competing
businesses as at 31 December 2013 which are required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as

follows:

Name of entity the
businesses in which are
considered to compete
or likely to compete
with the businesses of

EENGHZHER

Description of the
businesses of the entity
which are considered to
compete or likely to

compete with businesses

BRAREMMEESIN -
AV BV EFERIFERGERE
B RNERFIANRBE_T—=F+=
A=t —HALEEETASENALERZ
EREXREL -

™ #8 Rl 258.101
BFEREG o ESRMT

NEIHENB L

EENBREBZES
RZEBE—=F+-_A=+—H BELE

TREZAREEN

Nature of interest
of the director

Name of directors the Group of the Group in the entity
REBRBEEEXY EREMUSHELSERE
ERSTRBAREZ EBEASURERRBEZ ESNRERBZ
EEps EBzERAE EX L EEnE
Mr. YUAN Xin Stellar Mega Films Co. Ltd Films investment, production, As General
(Executive Director) ("Stellar") distribution (the likely manager of
“Competing Business”) Stellar
RETE(FITES) EEXZEBRAQA EXRE  RIERET EREEREZ
=32 3) CEAES X ) PR
Mr. CHEN Hai Stellar Films investment, production, As Vice General
(Executive Director) distribution (the likely manager of
“Competing Business”) Stellar
BREEE(BITES) BEEXTE EXRE - RUERET EREEFEZ
CEARES 2 ) Gk g
Dr. LIN Junbo AT R EEAR QA Television investment, As a director of

(Non-executive Director)

MERELCERITES)

Mr. WU Chien-Chiang
(Independent Non-
Executive Director)

R % E
(BIIERITES)

(TFZR])

Era Communications

Co Ltd. ("Era")

FREBFE=X

B BERRR(FR])

production and distribution
(the likely “Competing

Business”)

BEAWE - BERHETT

(ATREl B F %75 ))

TV program production
(The likely "Competing

Business”)

B ERE

QEAEES 33
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The Company had been notified by the above Directors that
they have interested in the Competing Business during the
period under review. FTHF MR is a subsidiary of Xinhu
Zhongbao Co Ltd.

The Board is of the view that the Group is capable of carrying
on its business independently of the Competing Business.
When making decisions on the television investment,
production and distribution of the Group, the above Directors,
in the performance of their duties as Directors, have acted and
will continue to act in the best interests of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the
Company has any interest in any business apart from the
Group's business, which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders passed
on 13 June 2004, the Company has established a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) whereby the Directors of the Company
may, at their discretion, invite any full time or part time
employees and Directors, consultants and advisers of the
Group (subject to the eligibility requirements as set out
therein) to take up options which entitle them to subscribe for
shares representing up to a maximum in nominal value of
30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. The total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme and other schemes must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
unless further shareholders’ approval has been obtained. The
Company had refreshed the scheme mandate limit of 10% at
the annual general meeting held on 7 June 2013. The total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12 months’ period up to the
date of grant to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director or their associates would not exceed
0.1% of the shares in issue or an aggregate value of
HK$5,000,000 unless further shareholders’ approval has been
obtained; and to each other eligible person would not exceed
1% of the shares in issue. The purpose of the Scheme is to
attract and retain the best available personnel, to provide
additional incentive to employees (full time and part time),
Directors, consultants and advisers of the Group and to

trE=EHERA  REBEHSE &
ERBEFRBHEEELD - THZRS
AP ERNDARARZERF QA -

EXE2R5 SEREAEBINRFER
BZBRTNETEXRR - EKBEZE
BIRE - BHERBEITIEHIRKRE - Eatt
EERETEESRE RIS H
BUEBEZRENMGRTSE -

B EXFEE RS  AREFHENE
0 52 7% 1 1 52 9 B0 32 75 48 P oK T A A
B $5 o8 D 55 B B 2 A (1 275 7 7 £ £
3% o

HE B RE 5T &l

ATERERFIER-_ZETNENA+=
ARBZEAMARAZRRLBRESS
([#ZaT8 ) BHARES IR
FREBARBEERES  £SBH:
BEREER(ATAZTEmES &%
RE)EWERE URBEZZHEER
RATHEETRATMMEI% Z KM °
BIEZTEI R BTS2 RH B
B AEXTEBBRARKRMDEHZAT
EHZ2BRRIEBITRAZ210%  HER
SRR RE—THIERI - REIERZFE
—=FXNAtHBOZRRERBFASE
EH10%H 8 ERSE - REZREH
HItEM+—@AHRBER  AEREHK
BTEHZEREERBEITERKRT
FHERE ETEmMREZRERKB L
ERNTESIBEIHBATBITRE
FETZKRG  BETIEHBBEETR
1201% » 4B ET S 85,000,000%
TG MRS AR R E — S HOER SN T A
BREMEBERALERITRBETFEITZ
BT EBBEEITRMI% - Zar &l
EERARBEEFAS  IMEERZ
EE(ZBEER) 5 ZHEBARK
ML TRHIINEE  BUAREEEER
ZER - ZEZERBAETF R
T—mMENA+=BEm(sT2H/[]) -
BREZITEERESSRTE  ETE
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promote the success of the business of the Group. The
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
ending on 13 June 2014 (the “Scheme Period”). The exercise
price of options shall be determined by the Board and shall
not be less than the highest of the closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet on the date of grant of the options and the
average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer and the
nominal value of a share of the Company. An option may be
exercised at any time during a period being not less than six
months and not more than ten years from the date of grant
and expiring at the close of business on the last day of such
period, or the date falling on the expiry of the Scheme Period,
whichever is the earlier, subject to the provisions of early
termination hereof.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, no option
has been granted (2012: nil) to Directors to subscribe for
shares of the Company. Details of the options granted to the
Directors and employees are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures”.

As at the date of this report, a total of 245,637 shares
(representing 0.044% of the existing issued share capital of
the Company) may be issued upon exercise of all options
which had been granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme.

SMI Culture Group Holdings Limited 2ZEX{b&EBiERAR AT

BRI EBREES R QR AR BZA
BHBEXRMIZCKTEREERRNA
A AEEXE AR RONBRAER
HEXRMAIZFHRTE R QBN E
BE=FPHRSE ERFPRLEXZR
[RT - BREIRROAHEDTDRR
BEAEAZRtTFEARPAKE—X
EERBRGERFRFTIHEEER A
REERE) L HIRBERTTE -

REBEE-T-—=F+-"A=1+—HBLY
BFEE  ARTERNEZTREBERE(C
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DISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SFO
The interests and short positions of those persons (other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company disclosed above)
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as at 31
December 2013, which have been notified to the Company
and recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO or as known to the Company were as follows:

REBEESRYEROIETFHEZ
% 5 HEE 25 B i
RZE—=F+-"A=+—8 " BEXK
BHEMBEIEAERBCEIREDANE
NI R BEREZELMONLSHESHIEDA
Fran - RARIRRMEBEER DS E
HmRABZALT(LFIEEARZE
EXFETHRAEBRINGOT:

Approximate
percentage of

Name of substantial Nature of Total number total issued
shareholders Capacity interest of shares share capital
HEBEITRAE

BEMY

FTERREE 5 & e B 153 48 8% Bk
SMI Investment (HK) Limited Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 167,097,281 29.70% Note 1
EXREEB)ARRLE Ean#EEA EnfEn Bt 5 1
SMI Corporation Limited Interested in controlled Corporate interest 167,097,281 29.70% Note 1

corporation
EXBREERRAA XEBI AR 2ESE ARE@

Mr. Qin Hui Interested in controlled Corporate
corporation

BEEL XEHATzEER RREZR

Loyal Concept Limited Beneficial owner Beneficial

EmEAA BEaEn

Hanny Holdings Limited Interested in controlled Corporate
corporation

HEEEARAF XEHAmzEER RREZ:

Note 1: SMI Investment (HK) Limited is wholly-owned by SMI Corporation

Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. SMI Investment (HK) Limited is the beneficial owner
of 167,097,281 Shares. SMI Corporation Limited is deemed to
be interested in such 167,097,281 Shares through SMI
Investment (HK) Limited under the SFO.

B 51

interest 167,097,281 29.70% Note 2
B 52

interest 91,026,342 16.18% Note 3
Bt 53

interest 91,026,342 16.18% Note 3
By 5E3

B 3E1 EEXZREEFEBBRAFBHEEH

BREBEMBERAR (ERMDREBHR
FEmaEHE EEXEREEB)
BRARA167,097,281I D 2 B S
BEAN - RIEFERPEEN £
BEREBMBRARIKEAERESE
"HEEBBRRDAEE Z
167,097,281/% B {0 2 #E 2= o
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Note 2: According to Individual Substantial Shareholder Notice filed by
Mr. Qin Hui on 25 September, 2013, Mr Qin is deemed to be
interested in 167,097,281 shares.

Note 3: Loyal Concept Limited is indirectly wholly-owned by Hanny

Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. Loyal Concept Limited is the beneficial
owner of 91,026,342 Shares. Hanny Holdings Limited is deemed
to be interested in such 91,026,342 Shares through Loyal
Concept Limited under the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in notes 32(a) (i) to (iii)
to the financial statements (the “Transactions”) which are in
existence or entered into during the financial year ended 31
December 2013 fall under the definition of connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The transactions set out in notes 32(a) (i) and (i) fall under
Rules 14A.33(3) (c) and notes 32(a)iii) falls under Rules
14A.65 (4) of the Listing Rules and are exempted from
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements in the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (where
applicable) with respect to the connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2013.

SMI Culture Group Holdings Limited 2XX{LEBEERAR A

HEE

BEEBEEN-_T—=FLA=+
AHRRXZBEARBREARE  =E
S HEWAE BB 167,097,281 I (D
T o

B sE2

Bt 53 - Loyal Concept Limited 1 5 B2 &£ @l &

AR (E RN B SE AP L) i
T;z%éf%’&ﬁ Loyal Concept Limited
791,026 322 ERBEAA ©
ﬁ?gﬁ%&,ﬁﬁf@fﬂ%@] RELEESG

A A R A B B Loyal Concept
LimitedﬁﬁﬁEZ91,0Z6,342H§H§ET§?Z%
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ZS o
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BB ALRXS
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws in Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for approximately 70.0% (2012: 63.5%)
and the largest customer accounted for approximately 37.0%
(2012: 24.0%) of the Group’s total turnover for the financial
year ended 31 December 2013.

The aggregate purchase attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 79.7% (2012: 55.2%)
and the largest supplier accounted for approximately 41.5%
(2012: 20.6%) of the Group's total purchases for the financial
year ended 31 December 2013.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates
or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any interest in these major customers and
suppliers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

BEBEE
RAMBERAARALEE REY &
@SB E X MERRARE
FIRIRA BRI 2B &R -

FTEERREER
REBEE-_T—=F+_A=+—B1Lt¥
BEE SERAERATPZEEEA
HEEBEBEEELNI00% (T —=
F:635%) MxAFFAMLEEAZ
¥ REH37.0% (ZE—ZF :24.0%) °

REBEE—_ZE—=F+-_A=+—BLH#
BEE SEREAEAEEE I RKER
AEREEBEBREEO79.7% (ZE—=
F:552%) MxAEEFAGERR
HREBEOA5% (ZT——F:20.6%) °

TR RAEF WEZBEALHE
AR RIBEEMAEA QR IRA5% A
FEBBEE LA TEERPLEER
AL AR AR o

ARFRE
REARESZAHENREESMA
B RAFERTHAS  AFAEB/FE
TRAFMIBTEZARFRE
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AUDITORS % B Bl

The financial statements for the financial year ended 31 #HEZZE—=F+-"A=+—HILTK

December 2013 were audited by KPMG. KPMG retire and, FEZHBHRERCHESHSTMER

being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A FiEZ - EFESTMEHERTIL

resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the FAEBKRAMEERET - RERERE

Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM. BAFAESLEBREEREETHRSHME
BRAARZEMZRER -

On behalf of the Board of Directors RERXEEZ

SMI Culture Group Holdings Limited EXVILEEEZERBRAT
YUAN Xin -

Director =E

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014 B8 —E-MF=A=+/N\AH
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
SMI Culture Group Holdings Limited

(formerly known as Qin Jia Yuan Media Services
Company Limited)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SMI
Culture Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on
pages 57 to 187, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31 December 2013, the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

BEXVWILREERARAS
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Independent Auditor’s Report 751 #% 877 &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group’s loss
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2014
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Consolidated Income Statement %8157 %

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2=

F=FF= A=+ —AIEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&)

Year ended
31 December

Fifteen
months ended
31 December

2013 2012
B8=F HE
—¥g—-=fK —E—_F
+=A=+-—-H8B +-A=+—H
IEFE E+HMEA
Note $'000 $'000
B 5T Fx F 7T
Turnover BXEH 2 191,402 478,842
Direct costs HEMAR (227,253) (367,202)
(35.,851) 111,640
Other revenue RN 3(a) 127 29,819
Other net expense HAth 7 ¥ 58 3(b) (9,392) (42,630)
Impairment loss: BEEE :
— accounts receivable, — BRI - T
prepayments, deposits and MIE e RkHM
other receivables FE W SR IE 4(c) — (173,089)
— intangible assets —EBREEE 12 (371,333) (291,079)
— other financial assets — HEMHBEE 15 (15,954) =
Provision for inventories GFEREE 16(a) (88,031) =~
Administrative and other operating 77 B & £ fth 48 & Fd &2
expenses (75,201) (93,459)
Loss from operations KEEHIE (595,635) (458,798)
Change in fair value of derivative T4 &@MTE A AFE
financial instruments by 25 — 40,937
Share of (loss)/profit from an JE G — K Bt & R A
associate (E18),/ % F (3,858) 1,167
Finance costs B 7 BY X 4(a) (73,677) (159,703)
Loss before taxation BrBiaiEsE 4 (673,170) (576,397)
Income tax Frig i 5(a) (1,171) (49,831)
Loss for the year/period AEE HEEE (674,341) (626,228)
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Consolidated Income Statement %8 1573 %

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ—F—=—#F+-HA=1+—HIFFZE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LETLAR)

Fifteen

Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012

B8=F HE
—E—-=% —E-CF

+=A=+—B +=A=+-A
kEE  ETEEA

Note $'000 $'000
B 5 T Tt
Attributable to: TH &IERELS:
Equity shareholders of the NEIREREEF A
Company (675,376) (628,058)
Non-controlling interests FE 1% I 14 1 & 1,035 1,830
Loss for the year/period XEE HEEBE (674,341) (626,228)
Loss per share BREsE
Basic K 8(a) $(1.99) $(8.10)
Diluted 8 8(b) $(1.99) $(8.10)

The notes on pages 68 to 187 form part of these financial MNFEE8HEZFI1TE Wik A LZFY K
statements. Wk 2—#H o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 44 £ EHEZ %

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #ZE —E—=#+_H=1+—HIIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&)

Fifteen
months ended
31 December

Year ended
31 December

2013 2012
8= BHZE
—g-=fK —E—_%
+-A=+—H +=-HA=+—H
IEEE It+H@EA
$'000 $'000
Tt T
Loss for the year/period EHEEE (674,341) (626,228)
Other comprehensive income E/HEEtE2EELS
for the year/period (after tax (BRBIREEM P ERAEER)
and reclassification
adjustments)
Items that may be reclassified ABEABEE D EEEm KL
subsequently to profit or loss: EH -
Transfer of general reserve to HENBRARIKEE —R#HE
profit or loss upon disposal of EEZK
subsidiaries (666) —
Transfer of capital reserve to HEMBRARRERERNEE
profit or loss upon disposal of ZEE@RK
subsidiaries 8,519 —
Realisation of exchange differences HEW B A RIEE X Z5E# IR
upon disposal of subsidiaries 22,410 —
Exchange differences on AE BN R A E B Wk
translation of financial FEZER%%@
statements of foreign
subsidiaries (588) (750)
Total comprehensive income for A EE "HE 2 HIER B EH
the year/period (644,666) (626,978)
Attributable to: T EIEREL:
Equity shareholders of NEIRERAA
the Company (645,701) (628,808)
Non-controlling interests FE 158 Il 14 A 2 1,035 1,830
Total comprehensive income for A EE "HE2TWiaH B EH
the year/period (644,666) (626,978)

The notes on pages 68 to 187 form part of these financial
statements.

MNEEBEZE FI1TE 2T AL
WRz2—BD -

Annual Report 2013 & 59



60

Consolidated Balance Sheet %8 EEBE%*

As at 31 December 2013 R-F—=F+-H=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LETLAR)

2013 2012
—E—-=5 —F—=
Note $'000 $'000
B & Fx T
Non-current assets EREEE
Fixed assets BEE&E 10 902 85,270
Intangible assets BEEE 12 455,124 871,998
Goodwill EES 13 21,076 21,076
Interest in an associate R—FKEE RN 2D 14 — 3,858
Other financial assets EMBigEE 15 15,954 31,908
Other assets HEi&EE — 380
T 493,056 1,014,490
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 16 460,995 548,724
Accounts receivable JE W BR X 17(a) 27,244 150,161
Prepayments, deposits and other FEfTFIE - & & & HAith
receivables & W FRIE 17(b) 112,830 146,256
Amount due from an associate JEW—REtE ARIFKIE 14 5,245 —
Pledged deposits (AR C 19 — 112,113
Cash and cash equivalents HekBReEEY 20 4,994 55,077
611,308 1,012,331
Assets classified as held for sale S AKIELESE 21 31,766 —
R 643074 1012331
Current liabilities =R
Bank loans and overdrafts RITEREBEX 22 — (405,472)
Loans from shareholders RKEREZER 23(a) — (12,697)
Other loans EmER 23(b) (42,232) (62,998)
Accruals and other payables EsrERAR
H b fE 1~ 518 24 (179,564) (335,493)
Current taxation B HA %4 18 (56,188) (67,516)
Convertible notes Al R R R 25 — (124,501)
. . (77989) _ ,008677)
Net current assets mENE EFE 365,090 3,654
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Consolidated Balance Sheet %8 5 EBE%*

As at 31 December 2013 R-F—=F+-H=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&)

2013 2012
—E—=%F — T s
Note $'000 $'000
B & Fix SEIT
Total assets less current BEERRHER
_liabilities 858,146 1,018,144
Non-current liabilities ERBERB
Bank loans IRITER 22 — (23,668)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIBEEE 5(c) (6,468) (6,868)
. (6.468) (30,536)
NET ASSETS EEFHE 851,678 987,608
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BXRRGEE 27
Share capital A& A 438,795 365,662
Reserves k] 410,485 618,504
Total equity attributable to ATREREA
equity shareholders of the FE{L#E @8R
Company 849,280 984,166
Non-controlling interests RS 2,398 3,442
TOTAL EQUITY EiREE 851,678 987,608

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors WZZT—NE=ZA-+\BLKESg it
on 28 March 2014, R T

Director Director

EZ EE

The notes on pages 68 to 187 form part of these financial MNF63H ZEFI1S7TE Wit Bt ZEHT %
statements. Hxkz—HH o
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Balance Sheet BEEBEX

As at 31 December 2013 R-F—=F+-H=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LETLAR)

2013 2012
—E—-=5 —F—=
Note $'000 $'000
B & Fix T
Non-current assets ERHEE
Investment in subsidiaries KRB AR KA 11 390 60,943
T 30 60,943
Current assets RENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Uk WJ; ATTJXIE 18 125,733 923,005
Amounts due from associates iR /NCI E Oz 1,301 =
Prepayments, deposits and other &1 Z 18 ?Tzé& {fth
receivables JE U 3Kk T 17(b) 18,263 19,238
Pledged deposits E?fﬁfﬁﬁ;h 19 — 21,800
Cash and cash equivalents ReEkReFEED 20 1,754 74
o s 964,117
Current liabilities RE&aRE
Amounts due to subsidiaries RN ENEIE 18 (118,525) (114,252)
Other loans EmER 23(b) — (51,800)
Accruals and other payables B ERA K
H th & 1~ 5118 24 (13,796) (14,997)
Convertible notes IR g 25 — (124,501)
. (132,321)  (305,550)
Net current assets nBEEFE 14730 658,567
NET ASSETS EEFHE 15,120 719,510
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Balance Sheet BEEBEX

As at 31 December 2013 R-F—=F+-H=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&)

2013 2012
—E—=%F — T s
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 Fx T

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXREE 27
Share capital N 438,795 365,662
Reserves & (423,675) 353,848
TOTAL EQUITY HiEEeE 15,120 719,510

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors R-Z—MNFE=A -+ \BEEE<Ht
on 28 March 2014. NIRRT E -

Director Director

EF E

The notes on pages 68 to 187 form part of these financial M FEESEEFISTEZWE AMLEZEYT
statements. Wk z—#H o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 45 #E#s & 8%

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ—F—=F+_H=14—HIFFF
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TlR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ATREHEAEE
Equity Retained
Capital component of earnings/ Non-
Share Share  General redemption Capital Exchange  convertible Warrant (Accumulated controlling
capital premium  reserve reserve  reserve  reserve notes  reserve losses) Total interests Total
AARE THRER DREE  RERN/ it
BE RHEBE —-BEH i EXHE ERHE  EERS HE  (BiEBER) @ [ $:1 @
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i T T T T T T T T T T T T
Balance at 1 October 2011 H-%--%+A-H
ZE8 72,879 991,135 666 95 12529 (20,106 54,371 5,392 223,446 1,340,407 2,203 1,342,610
Changes in equity for 2012: —E-CEZRERE:
Loss for the period THEEE - - - - - - o o (628,058)  (628,058) 1,830 (626,228)
Other comprehensive income Hip2mER — — — - - (750) - - - (750) = (750)
Total comprehensive income for FHEERREE
the period - - - - - (750) — - (628,058)  (628,808) 1,830 (626,978)
Dividends declared in respect of REFEERZKE 27(b)iii),
the previous year 27(c)(ii) 527 1,440 — — — — — — (1,404) 563 — 563
Dividends declared in respect of RAHHERZRE 27()i),
the current period 27(c)(ii) 329 24 — — — — — — (1,170) (817) — (817)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR 29 - - - - - - - - - - (591) (591)
Issue of new shares upon rights issue  { B B5 %47 1 % (i) 291927 (11,256) - - - - - - — 280,671 — 280,671
Equity settled share-based transactions 1 X ff % 5 26 - - - — (7850 - - - - (7,850) = (7,850)
Balance at 31 December 2012 and  R=F—Z%
1 January 2013 +ZAZ+-BR
—§-=5-f-8
&8 365,662 981,343 666 95 4,679 (20,856) 54,371 5,392 (407,186) 984,166 3442 987,608
Changes in equity for 2013: Z§-ZF2
RiEgs:
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - - - — (675,376)  (675,376) 1,035 (674,341)
Other comprehensive income H2@EBER — - (666) - 8519 21,822 - - — 29675 — 29675
Total comprehensive income for the year A4 E2ERZLE — — (666) — 8519 21,822 — — (675,376)  (645,701) 1,035 (644,666)
Issue of new shares upon rights issues { & F5 % 17 51 R 27(c)(iii) 402,229 111,586 — — — — — — — 513815 — 513815
Capital reorganisation BRAEA 27(0)v)  (329,096) — — — — — — — 329,09 — — —
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAF 29 — — — — — — — — — — (2,079) (2,079)
Early redemption of convertible notes  REEEAAKREZRE  25(g), 25() = = = = = = (54,371) g 51,371 (3,000) = (3,000)
Balance at 31 December 2013 R-F-=%£+-R8
=+-B2&H 438,795 1,092,929 = 95 13,198 966 — 539 (702,095) 849,280 2398 851,678

The notes on pages 68 to

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement %8B £ HExR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ—F—=F1+-H=+—HIFFZE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&)

Year ended Fifteen months ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2012

BE-F-=%1+-fF HE_ZT—-F1=A

=+—-HLEEE =+—-HIETHEA
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
P & T T T L
Operating activities EEEH
Loss before taxation BREATER (673,170) (576,397)
Adjustments for: RTINEEELRE:
Amortisation and depreciation BHERITE 4(0) 57,838 70,797
Change in fair value of fTEEMIAYL
derivative financial instruments AYEE — (40,937)
Interest income MERA 3@) (127) (960)
Share of loss/(profit) ElE—xEE DA
from an associate EE/(aFl) 3,858 (1,167)
Finance costs BB AR 4(a) 73,677 159,703
Impairment loss for accounts FEMBRR - TATRE
receivable, prepayments, BE RE M KT
deposits and other receivables BZREBER 4(c) — 173,089
Impairment loss for BVEEZRERR
intangible assets 12 371,333 291,079
Impairment loss for EmBBEE 2 RE
other financial assets E# 15 15,954 —
Provision for inventories FERE 4(c) 88,031 —
Loss/(gain) on disposal of fixed LEERTEERR/
assets (H2) 3(b) 184 (1,353)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAREAE 3(b) 9,123 45,021
Equity settled share-based R S R
payment expenses — (7,850)
Exchange differences iE X EE (602) (824)
Operating (loss)/profit before SESSEPE2
changes in working capital g8 (BER) & (53,901) 110,201
Increase in inventories FEEN (302) (170,821)
Decrease in accounts receivable & U5 B SR > 13,256 255,681
Increase in prepayments, BRARE Re kM
deposits and other receivables JE W SR IEIE A (55,091) (62,786)
Increase in amount due from an E—5H e XA HE
associate 1 (5,245) —
Increase/(decrease) in EERRAEMENTE
accruals and other payables B,/ (Rd) 70,916 (166,154)
23,534 (144,080)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement %&£ HEXR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ—F—=—#F+-HA=1+—HIFFZE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LETLAR)

Year ended
31 December 2013

Fifteen months ended
31 December 2012

BE-F-=%1+-8F HE-_T—-F+1=A

=+-HIEEE =+—HiLt+HEAR
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
B & ¥ Fx T Tt
Cash used in operations CETHFMARS (30,367) (33,879)
Tax paid: ERHE:
— Overseas tax paid — BB A (3,326) (2,658)
Net cash used in operating CETHMARLTE
activities (33,693) (36,537)
Investing activities BREEH
Addition in interest in an associate MR —FKEE A7 2
Ex — (4,797
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets (& EE & & P15 5B 13,808 18,970
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AT 29(iv) 7,633 40,053
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BABETEE 2B (105) (3,532)
Payment for purchase of BARVEEZRE
intangible assets — (347,972
Interest received B H 2 127 960
Net cash generated from/(used in) X &EEHFHE,(FA)
investing activities HeFH 21,463 (296,318)
Financing activities MEEH
Decrease/(increase) in BEBEFORD,/(1Em)
pledged deposits 112,113 (22,832)
Proceeds from new bank loans FRBTERMEBHE 4,000 277,360
Repayment of bank loans EBRETER (413,893) (263,832)
Proceeds from other loans HEFRMERE - 62,998
Repayment of other loans BREMEN (20,766) —
Proceeds from loans from REBRRZERMEHE
shareholders — 12,697
Repayment of loans from EERBBRRZER
shareholders (12,697) (28,000)
Interests paid B FIE (33,458) (65,322)
Net proceeds from rights issues HRMEHIESEE 7(c)iii) 513,815 280,671
Redemption of convertible notes EQmhkEE (9),25()  (167,720) (90,670)
Dividends paid ERE — (1,674)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement %8B £ HExR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ—F—=F1+-H=+—HIFFZE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L&)

Year ended Fifteen months ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
BE_¥®-=£+-R H=E_T-—%1_H
=+-BLtEE =+—-HIETHEA
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Bt &% Fi T T T
Net cash (used in)/generated from FE&FE (FiA) / Fi#
financing activities H&%H (18,606) 161,396
Net decrease in cash and ReRReEENZ
cash equivalents B FHE (30,836) (171,459)
Cash and cash equivalents at the £ /H#IZ2RER
beginning of the year/period He%EY 35,830 207,289
Cash and cash equivalents at the &£ /HiK2ZHER
end of the year/period He%EEY 20 4,994 35,830

The notes on pages 68 to 187 form part of these financial
statements.

REBAEFISTE 2T AMZHK
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1

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 1(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

On 30 April 2012, the Company announced its
financial year end date had been changed from 30
September to 31 December, and the most recent
published annual financial statements of the Group
covered the period from 1 October 2011 to 31
December 2012. Accordingly, the comparative
figures presented for the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity, the consolidated cash flow
statement and the related notes, are not entirely
comparable with those of the current year.

SMI Culture Group Holdings Limited 2ZEX{b&EBiERAR AT
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1

Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements (continued)

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that available-for-sale equity securities and
derivative financial instruments are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on
the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 35.

1

BEETBEE)
(b) MBHRZEREE(E)

BeE—_Z2—=F+-A=+—
BIFEFEEZGAMBERERE
AR REKEB AT -

RELEUBHRREAESL
BRAEVERETEERELE - MR
HHEERABSZRITESB T
BTN XF# 2t R
mEB)RAFEIE-

AT E(FBYBHRELER)
ZHBHRERBREEEEEL
HE - AEREBRER ZFH
B BARBERFESHRK
RZEANNEE  BfFE W
ARXHzRESHE - fB5t
NEBRRIERAELR
FEBEBABATHBAERSE
Bz ZHEEMAR - ZF A
KEBEREZEREKRYE
FHBREEMKREGLENE
ERBEREEHIEER
EfGEREAGEEMTEE
"o

R BERRIDFEET
@ 5] o fil @ EH A AT ZEFT R
T EER] 2 B - ARERTEZ
HE AR e R
TEERRBREME - BIEE
HERT R BEBBEARER -

EREETRBAYVERRE
BERFE(BERAVBREE
BIY B 1 H 2 # A R AFEER
BEM 2 EZBRIRNHFE3S

A e
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group. Of
these, the following developments are relevant to
the Group’s financial statements:

— Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements — Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income

—  HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

—  HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements

— HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other
entities

—  HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

— Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011
Cycle

— Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures ~ — Disclosures  — Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements — Presentation of
items of other comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to
present the items of other comprehensive income
that would be reclassified to profit or loss in the
future if certain conditions are met separately from
those that would never be reclassified to profit or
loss. The Group’s presentation of other
comprehensive income in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in these
financial statements has been modified accordingly.

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial
statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements
relating to the preparation of consolidated financial
statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation — Special
purpose entities. It introduces a single control model
to determine whether an investee should be
consolidated, by focusing on whether the entity has
power over the investee, exposure or rights to
variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and the ability to use its power to affect
the amount of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the
Group has changed its accounting policy with
respect to determining whether it has control over
an investee. The adoption does not change any of
the control conclusions reached by the Group in
respect of its involvement with other entities as at 1
January 2013.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9]

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other
entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all
the disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s
interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and unconsolidated structured entities.
The disclosures required by HKFRS 12 are generally
more extensive than those previously required by the
respective standards. To the extent that the
requirements are applicable to the Group, the
Group has provided these disclosures in notes 11
and 14.

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual
HKFRSs with a single source of fair value
measurement guidance. HKFRS 13 also contains
extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and
non-financial instruments. The adoption of HKFRS
13 does not have any material impact on the fair
value measurements of the Group's assets and
liabilities.

Other developments have had no material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with
notes 1(0), (p) or (g) depending on the nature of
the liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(e)

(continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to
reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 1(g)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate (see note 1(e)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see note 1(I)(i), unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale) (see note

1(aa)).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(e) Associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale) (see note 1(aa)). Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee's
identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see note
1(D()). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses
for the year are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group's interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount
of the investment under the equity method together
with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(e) Associates (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the equity
method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint
control over a jointly controlled entity, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant
influence or joint control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note

1(9)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
associates are stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 1()(i)), unless classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale) (see note 1(aa)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

(9)

Goodwiill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on
a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 1(I)(i)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Available-for-sale equity securities
Investments in available-for-sale equity securities are
initially stated at fair value, which is their
transaction price unless it is determined that the fair
value at initial recognition differs from the
transaction price and that fair value is evidenced by
a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset or liability or based on a valuation technique
that uses only data from observable markets. Cost
includes attributable transaction costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

0)

Available-for-sale equity securities
(continued)

Investments in available-for-sale equity securities that
do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are recognised in the balance sheet at
cost less impairment losses (see note 1(I)(i)).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At each balance sheet date the
fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss on
remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately to profit or loss, except where the
derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting,
in which case recognition of any resultant gain or
loss depends on the nature of the item being
hedged.

Fixed assets
(i)  Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (note 1(l)

(ii)).

(i)  Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of fixed assets are
determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item and are recognised in profit or loss
on the date of retirement or disposal.

(iii) Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of fixed assets, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line
method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

— land and buildings are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired terms of the
leases and their estimated useful lives,
being 50 vyears from the date of
completion;
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(i) Fixed assets (continued)
(iii)  (continued)

props and costumes are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives of 3 years,
except for cost of props and costumes
which are specifically purchased for the
production of a particular television
("TV") program is included in the cost of
services rendered in connection with the
production of that particular television
program;

other fixed assets are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Leasehold 2-6 years
improvements
—  Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years

and other fixed assets,
including motor vehicles

—  Production equipment 5 years

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(j) Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

(i) Licence rights

Licence rights that are acquired by the Group
and intended for longer-term usage are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and

impairment losses (see note

Amortisation is charged to profit or loss at
rates calculated to write off the costs in
proportion to the expected revenues from the
licensing of the rights. Such rates are subject

to annual review by the directors.

(ii) Advertising rights

Advertising rights represent fees paid to secure
rights to procure advertising clients to place
advertisements with certain specified
newspapers, magazines, television channels and
radio program for a specified period of time.

Advertising rights are stated at cost
accumulated amortisation and impairment

losses (see note 1(I)(ii)).

Amortisation is calculated on a straight line
basis over the agreed periods of use of the
advertising rights, starting from the date of
commencement of commercial use of the
advertising rights. Both the period and method

of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(j) Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(continued)

(iii) Customer contract costs

(iv)

Costs incurred to acquire contractual
relationships with customers are capitalised if it
is probable that future economic benefits will
flow from the customers to the Group and
such costs can be measured reliably. Customer
contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (see note 1(I)(ii)). Capitalised customer
contract costs are amortised on a straight line
basis over the minimum enforceable
contractual periods. By the end of the
minimum enforceable contractual period, fully
amortised customer contract costs will be
written off.

In the event that a customer terminates the
contract prior to the end of the minimum
enforceable contractual period, the
unamortised customer contract cost will be
written off immediately to profit or loss.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is other than indefinite) and
impairment losses (see note 1(I)(ii)).

Amortisation of other intangible assets is
charged to profit or loss on a straight line
basis over the asset’s estimated useful lives
(unless such lives are indefinite) or over the
contractual period. Both the period and
method of amortisation and any conclusion
that the useful life of an intangible asset is
indefinite are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(k) Leased assets

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Leases which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases, except
where land held for own use under an
operating lease, the fair value of which cannot
be measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, in such cases, it is accounted for as
being under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over from
the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EEEFTEKE)
(continued)
() Impairment of assets () EER{E
(i) Impairment of investments in equity (i) BREEFIREHE
securities

BAEFRENR SRS
HAREH UBERSE
EBRERRE  TEZ
BMERERESIEEE
EEBRATAREZA
FEABRXEHIKE
BEREXEXEZABRR
87 -

Investments in equity securities are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that come to the attention of
the Group about a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument below its cost.

MREBBERSE &
SR T XA EE &g
RRE B 1R

If such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

RRBERA 2K
B A% 505 R

—  For investments in associates accounting —
for under equity method in the
consolidated balance sheet

(see note
1(e)), the impairment loss is measured by
comparing the recoverable amount of the
investment with its carrying amount in
accordance with note 1(I)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with
note 1(1)(ii).
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)
Impairment of investments in equity
securities (continued)

()

(i)

For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses
for equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed.

For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
in the fair value reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in profit
or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit
or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
profit or loss in respect of available-for-
sale equity securities are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets is
recognised in other comprehensive
income. Impairment losses in respect of
available-for-sale debt securities are
reversed if the subsequent increase in fair
value can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversals of impairment
losses in such circumstances are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(I) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

— fixed assets;
— intangible assets;
— goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries and associates
in the Company’s balance sheet.

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

()

@)

(b)

Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less cost of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), or value
in use (if determinable).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

(c) Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and

impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial period (see notes 1(I)
(i) and (ii)). Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill,
available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-
for-sale equity security increases in the
remainder of the annual period, or in any
other period subsequently, the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
not profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(m) Inventories

(n)

Inventories represent the cost of acquisition of
certain scripts, synopses and editing rights held for
sale or production in the ordinary course of
business and are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

The carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the year in which the
related revenue in respect of the provision of script-
writing/editing services is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the year the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in
the year in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(n) Trade and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
recognised when there is objective evidence of
impairment and are measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate, where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively where
financial assets carried at amortised cost share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses for receivables whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against
receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(o) Convertible notes

The Group issues convertible notes with and
without detachable warrants. At initial recognition
the derivative component of the convertible notes
with and without detachable warrants is measured
at fair value and presented as part of derivative
financial instruments (see note 1(h)).

For convertible notes without detachable warrants,
any excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the derivative component is
recognised as the liability component.

For convertible notes with detachable warrants, the
liability component is measured as the present value
of the future interest and principal payments,
discounted at the market rate of interest applicable
at the time of initial recognition to similar liabilities
that do not have a conversion option and warrants.
The warrants, being the excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as liability component
and derivative financial instruments is recognised as
the equity component.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible notes are allocated to the liability,
derivative and equity components in proportion to
the allocation of proceeds. The portion of the
transaction costs relating to the liability and equity
component is recognised initially as part of the
liability and equity respectively. The portion relating
to the derivative component is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The derivative component is subsequently
remeasured in accordance with note 1(h). The
liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The equity
component is recognised in the warrant reserve until
either the warrants are exercised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Convertible notes (continued)

If the note is converted, the carrying amounts of the
derivative and liability components are transferred to
share capital and share premium as consideration
for the shares issued. If the note is redeemed, any
difference between the amount paid and the
carrying amounts of both components is recognised
in profit or loss. If the warrants are exercised, the
warrant reserve, together with the proceeds received
at the time of exercise, is transferred to share
capital and share premium as consideration for the
shares issued. If the warrants are not exercised upon
expiry, the respective capital reserve is released
directly to retained profits.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 1(u)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

(s)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

(ii) Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as
required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Employees of the subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") participate
in defined contribution retirement plans
managed by the local government authorities
whereby the subsidiaries are required to
contribute to the plans at fixed rates of the
relevant employees’ salary costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Contributions to defined contribution

retirement plans (continued)

The Group's contributions to these plans are
charged to profit or loss when incurred. The
Group has no obligation for the payment of
retirement and other post-retirement benefits
of staff other than the contributions described

above.

(iii) Share based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital
reserve within equity. The fair value
measured at grant date using the Black-Scholes
pricing model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the option will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognised in prior periods is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to
not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is

released directly to retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(t)

(iv) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in the other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous periods.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available. Additional income taxes that arise from
the distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities if, and only if,
the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t) Income tax (continued)
— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

the same taxable entity; or

different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)
Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade
and other payables. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is
determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee is
made available with the estimated rates that
lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made.
Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group’s policies applicable to that category
of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in
profit or loss over the term of the guarantee
as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised in
accordance with note 1(u)(ii) if and when (i) it
becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on
the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (continued)

(ii) Provision and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the
Company or the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EESTBKR(E)
(continued)
(v) Revenue recognition (v) W ANEERD

g A $2 B M o M B 2
R - WA R LA
RUEERAEE - bR AT

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can SEHEEW AT AR (LEA)
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit B BEBETIEEEBZFR
or loss as follows: MR

(i) REKA
RBBAKBRAES K
BERHEMSHERENES
MR R - REBIAR
BIRAGmE IR - ARE
REEHEBAEEER
MBZEERBARA
FAARTS - RIS AR
AR B R RR -

(i) Service income

Service income is derived from the provision of
marketing and advertising related services to
advertising agencies, provision of scripts and
script editing services, ancillary services relating
to production of television program to
production houses, and public relations
services. Service income is recognised when the
services are rendered.

(i) Contract income (i) BRKA

Contract income includes income from BRBABEREER
introduction of funding from investors to RIS EREEBE MG
production houses and income from WA RAEkmEEES3
introduction of television program related NERGBEEKREMSE
investments to investors. Income is recognised WA WARERE (B
when the broadcasting schedule of the BEERERAR A
relevant television commercial airtime is HWRHERBRENIZER
confirmed by television stations, including B EEHBERESE
provincial television stations and/or those with Mz 8 B REFER o
satellite broadcasting capabilities.

(iii) Licence fees (iii) YA E
Fees from granting of distribution licence rights HEEITRTERNR
and adaptation rights are recognised over the EREEREDNRES

contract period, upon delivery of the master [l &K R & [F B &
tape of the relevant program or upon signing SRR EBESE

ZEEZHLARITAR
2R o

of the contract in accordance with the terms of
the contracts.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues

using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(w) Translation of foreign currencies

(x)

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items,
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(x)

(y)

Borrowing costs (continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same Group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a Group of
which the other entity is a member).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EEEctBRE)
(continued)
(y) Related parties (continued) (y) BABALE)
(b)  (continued) (b) (&)
(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same (i) WMEAEBHARR—
third party. FE-HRZzEED
R
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third vy —HEBA—F=
entity and the other entity is an associate TERBzaE®
of the third entity. ¥ ME—EBR
RE=ZFEB
/NI
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit vy ZEBEREE
plan for the benefit of employees of HEBEFEBBCE
either the Group or an entity related to BZEB ZWEAMm
the Group. BRI EERRE
MEE -
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled (viy ZE®RBH@MIE
by a person identified in (a). iz ol = A e
il o
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) @) P A LT ¥ Z
influence over the entity or is a member EREBEATE
of the key management personnel of the o B%E R
entity (or of a parent of the entity). (ZZEBZ2ER
AEEZEEEEK
g o
Close members of the family of a person are those K-ATZEBRREKERE
family members who may be expected to influence, HERBRHE - HiTA &K
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings RZANTREZREKE °

with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EESTBKR(E)
(continued)
(z) Segment reporting (2) EHE

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

(aa) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if it is highly probable that its
carrying amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use and
the asset (or disposal group) is available for sale in
its present condition. A disposal group is a group of
assets to be disposed of together as a group in a
single transaction, and liabilities directly associated
with those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified
as held for sale when the above criteria for
classification as held for sale are met, regardless of
whether the group will retain a non-controlling
interest in the subsidiary after the sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(aa) Non-current assets held for sale (continued)
Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all
individual assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is
brought up-to-date in accordance with the
accounting policies before the classification. Then,
on initial classification as held for sale and until
disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain
assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs of disposal. The principal
exceptions to this measurement policy so far as the
financial statements of the Group and the Company
are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising
from employee benefits, financial assets (other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures) and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set out
elsewhere in note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for
sale, and on subsequent remeasurement while held
for sale, are recognised in profit or loss. As long as
a non-current asset is classified as held for sale, or
is included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
media services including television program related
services, television advertising services, outdoor
advertising services, and other public relations services in
the PRC.

The Group provides services to PRC television production
houses in relation to television program production,
starting from planning to completion of the production.
The Group also purchases certain distribution licence
rights directly from other rights holders and either earns
licence fees by granting such rights to film or television
program trading companies or sells the rights to
distributors directly.

1

FEEHBRE)
(aa) FrfEHEFRBEE (E)

EROBRFHERER - FR
HEERLEEAEARZHAAB
EREERBE)ZERE
DEMARAZEFRERE
¥ oo Hik - RUIZ D BARFE
HEMBEELERN  FRDE
EMBERETIMBEL2ET
BE)IELEASRARAS
BRAFEBROEXRKZR
EEER EERARZ
MBmERMmME - BAKBIE
ERRZEZPIINARRIE
EHHEEE  RERAMAE
E2EBE WHKEE(MEHR
R BEAR - BERRREE
RAIZEBE)REME ° %
FEENFEIERELE
Ne#EREBENT1EMED
Prekc MRETE -

MRDPBERFTIFHERER
R FI 4 #5515 & B E #r &t
EMEEAZREBERER
R —BERDEEWRD
BARBELHEXRIARIEL
EZHEMRS  ZFRDEE
BT T e s -

EXBRIBRE
EEZ X BEBHRUBERS -
B IE R ER (B R0 B RS -
EREERY - FINEERE - BA
RAR $EE A D BIARS -

SERTHEERRIERRREHEEH
ERAAREZRS > HRIAE
BUETK - REITNEZRHEMER
FEABES TRITRHAE £l
RN EREEZXERTNE
EHRARIARBSFEERERE
BRRAZETHLEXSERN -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

In addition, the Group provides other value-added
services such as provision of scripts and script editing
services of television programs to its customers.

The Group also renders advertising related services in
respect of placing advertisements with TV channels and
outdoor LED screens to advertising agencies, as well as
public relation services and product promotional services
to advertisers, advertising firms and TV stations
respectively.

Turnover represents television program related services,
television advertising, outdoor advertising and public
relations service income, net of PRC business tax. The
amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised in turnover for the year/period is as follows:

2

EXFRSTB®E (F)

s - EE R E PR M H IR (E AR
%o PInR B AR EREABIA

ESENHERAEERBERNERIE
BERERFPINIDRREESREHEESSE
RS - URREESHE EERRK
BEEAREABEREREREER
jﬁ% o

LEBHEERDERRSE  ERE
EFPHEESMABRBEA - I
EHNGRTBEEER - XFE HMHE
EREXBERACEHIBZRAR
AezeBWT:

Fifteen
months ended
31 December

Year ended
31 December

2013 2012

BE BHZE

—g—-=fK —E-CF

+=B=+—H +=ZA=+—H

IEEE IE+REEA

$'000 $'000

T T

Television program related income E A3 &1 B B W A 8,951 252,377
Television advertising income BERESEKRA 182,451 217,157
Outdoor advertising income PONEE A — 6,198
Public relations service income NIRRT WA — 3,110
191,402 478,842

For the year/period presented, management has
determined that no operating segment has been
presented as the Group is only engaged in media related
services. The Group’s assets located and operating
revenues derived from activities outside the PRC are less
than 10 per cent of the Group’s assets and operating
revenues, respectively.

SMI Culture Group Holdings Limited 2ZEX{b&EBiERAR AT

ATV 2EE /" HEms AR
SEENREERERY  WEEE
RETEVNEEDE - EEMLAF
BB EERBEERREINGS
LEBRWADIEEBEEREE
W AT R10% °



Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013, revenue from two
customers of the Group represented approximately
$76,800,000 and $32,379,000 of the Group's total
revenue.

For the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012,
revenue from three customers of the Group represented
approximately $115,000,000, $72,000,000 and
$56,339,000 of the Group's total revenue.

EXFRSTB®E (F)

He—_2—=F+-_A=+—8H1t
FE REEEMBEPZWAD
B4 &= B 4 U8 A 276,800,000
7T }%.32,379,0007T °

HEz—_2——HF+-_A=+—8HLt
+HEA REEBE=Z2FF 2K
ADHHEEBBK AR Z
115,000,000 * 72,000,000t &
56,339,0007T °

OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET EXPENSE Hitb Wt A\ R HE M ZHFE
(@) Other revenue (@) Hbug A
Fifteen
Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
BE HE
—F—Z=F —T—_F
+=-A=+—HB +=-A=+—H
IEFEE IET+HREA
$'000 $'000
Ft L
Interest income B A 127 960
Customer deposits forfeited BRKEFIE S — 28,138
Others Hi — 721
127 29,819
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

3 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET EXPENSE 3 HtARHEXHFE

(continued) (&)
(b) Other net expense (b) HithZHiEHE
Fifteen
Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
BE H=
—E—=% —ET—_fF

+=AS+-8 +t=A=+-A
bEE  LTEEA

$'000 $'000
T F 7T
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries & K& &) &5 18

(note 29) (Bt 5£29) (9,123) (45,021)
Net exchange (loss)/gain bE X (B 18) W= F5E (85) 1,038

(Loss)/gain on disposal of fixed HE&EETE & E (EE),
assets g (184) 1,353
(9,392) (42,630)
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Notes to the Financial Statements 75 #H7%H:E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

4 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 4 [KRBiAIEE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: BRAMAIEEENBRTEIE:
Fifteen
Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
BE H=
—¥-=f5 —E—CfF
+=-A=+—-—HB +=-—A=+—8H
IEEFEE IF+HEMEA
$'000 $'000
Fx T
(@) Finance costs (@) MBRE
Interest on bank advances and ARAFANEZHE
other borrowings wholly BZIRITRE KA
repayable within five years HiEEZFE 22,276 50,499
Interest on bank borrowings ERAFEEZEE
wholly repayable after BIZRITEEZ
five years F B 226 1,243
Effective interest on AMEEEZER
convertible notes (note) F1) 2 (B 53) 40,219 94,381
Premiums on early redemption REPEL SRR
of convertible notes B2 mE
(note 25(f)) (B 5E25(f)) — 10,627
Other interest expense H A A B 10,956 2,953
73,677 159,703

Note: Included in the amount for the year ended 31 December
2013 is effective interest of approximately $26,515,000
resulting from early redemption of the interest bearing
convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount of
$150,000,000 due 2014 and 2015 issued by the Company
to Smart Peace Development Limited and Star Group
International Investment Limited respectively (notes 25(g)

and 25(i)).

W #HE2—F—=F+=-_A=+—
HIEFEZ2ERERTEER
A & 9 Bl M Smart Peace
Development Limited } £ [& B
BRI EBRAREITAE R
#%150,000,000 TR =Z — U4
FZE—RFFEB A
BREBFEEZERMNED
26,515,0007T (Ft #F25(g) &
25(i)) ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

4 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 4 KBEEE)
Fifteen
Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
8B8=F HZE
—g-=fK —E—_F
+=A=+—HB +=-A=1+—H
I FE E+HMEA
$'000 $'000
T F 7T
(b) Staff costs (b) EIRE
Salaries, wages and other e ITERHEM
benefits 8 A 9,518 28,089
Contributions to defined E 58 FUR K ET &)
contribution retirement H R
plans 1,145 2,762
10,663 30,851
(c) Other items (0 HiIEH
Impairment loss (note): BEEE (M)
— accounts receivable — AR — 35,626
— prepayments, deposits and — FEfTRRIE -
other receivables e K HEME
WK — 137,463
— 173,089
Impairment loss for BREEEREEIR
intangible assets (note 12) (FF5E12) 371,333 291,079
Impairment loss for other Hi B8 & ERE
financial assets (note 15) /&5 18 (B 7£15) 15,954 —
Provision for inventories F e #&E (Msx1e)
(note 16) 88,031 —
Amortisation of B E E
intangible assets 53,681 59,141
Depreciation of fixed assets BET&EENE 4,157 11,656
Auditor's remuneration % 85 R B &
— audit services — BZR% 3,580 1,800
— other services — H At AR 7 1,280 1,044
Operating lease charges in BAME RS
respect of properties MEXH 3,082 11,641
Cost of inventories FE KA 400 56,341
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

4 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 4 K#HaEEE)
(c) Other items (continued) () HMbIEE(E)

Note: Impairment loss for accounts receivable in the previous Mist: E— AR 2 REEE
period related to balances due from two advertising BREMREPEESEREZ
agencies in the PRC, which were previously used by the R ZMABESNRIERTH
Group in relation to its television advertising business. SEEERESEBH MK

=18
Impairment loss for prepayments, deposits and other E—HEEMNRE R RHE
receivables in the previous period related to payments b FE U FRIR 2 B B 1R P R &
made by the Group to secure certain television slots BLAESETERERER
which were subsequently not able to be utilized, and (ZEHEMmEFREEREER)
payments for developing certain business projects which Mz ERBEREEE Y
the Group previously planned to pursue. AIET 8T S TEBEEX

NZHE -

5 INCOME TAX 5 FifEsi
(@) Income tax in the consolidated income (a) ZFEEBRZHAEBIE:
statement represents:
Fifteen
Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
g=E HE
—E—=4 — T — =l

+=A=+-8 +-A=+-~
bEE LTS

$'000 $'000
T T 7.
Current tax — Hong Kong ENH#i%i 18
Profits Tax — EEBANEH
Provision for the year/period A&/ Hf 6 # & — —=
Current tax — Provision for EN¥iHIE — FHEIR M
taxation outside BIA#EE
Hong Kong
Provision for the year/period A&/ HifE # & 1,571 51,007
Deferred taxation BEHIE
Origination of temporary EREBECLESE
differences (400) (1,176)
1,171 49,831
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

INCOME TAX (continued)

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated income
statement represents: (continued)

(i)  No provision has been made for Hong Kong
ended 31
December 2013 and fifteen months ended 31
December 2012 as the Group did not earn any

Profits Tax during the vyear

income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax.

(i) The provision for the PRC Corporate Income Tax
of the subsidiaries established in the PRC is
calculated at 25% (fifteen months ended 31
December 2012: 25%) of the estimated taxable

profits for the year.

(iii)  Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at
the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling

in the relevant tax jurisdictions.

SMI Culture Group Holdings Limited 2ZEX{b&EBiERAR AT

5

Fi&E® (&)
GEHEBRZFHEHIE:

(a)

(&)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

HE—_ZE—=%F+-A=
+—BLEFEREBEEC=
T——F+=ZA=+—H
IF+hR@ER AR&EE
W EREBUE R BN E
BREH WS R
EREENGHRE
1 o

MBI Z B R A
2 B 1 TS B R
Th LA A {d 51 18 3R B
AR ZR25% (BE-T
——%+-A=+—81t
+FHEA:25%):HE -

35 5 I B 2 7 B4 I8 42 48
MR A A EBER A
B AR -



Notes to the Financial Statements 75 #H7%H:E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

INCOME TAX (continued) 5 Fi#®E)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) PLIEFA X B 4% iE A s
accounting loss at applicable tax rates is as HZEsBHEYRNT:
follows:

Fifteen

Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012

BE BH=
—E—=4 — =

+=A=+—B +=A=+-A
bEE  LTEEA

$'000 $'000
Fx T+
Loss before taxation B %% Al &5 18 (673,170) (576,397)
Notional tax on loss before  1ZE A R E 2
taxation, calculated at the BREAIEE 2B E
applicable rates 18 (112,711) (104,711)
Tax effect of non-deductible AT HIE X 2
expenses MG 136,466 185,095
Tax effect of non-taxable ERERBTMA Z
income Mg E (33,713) (46,644)
Tax effect of unused tax losses & F #ER 2 A& & A 1A
not recognised BEEZUBEE 11,129 16,091
Actual tax expense EEMBHRAX 1,171 49,831
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

5 INCOME TAX (continued)

(c) Deferred tax liability recognised:

5 FM®R¥(E)
() ERBZEEBIFARE:

The components of deferred tax liability recognised F/HARGAEEEABRTR

in the consolidated balance sheet and the MAZELEMIBAEE 2B
movements during the year/period are as follows: NEEWT:

Fair value

adjustment

on business
combination

(¥BEH2Z
AFEAE
$'000
Tt

Deferred tax arising from: LWTEEMELEZEESIE:
At 1 October 2011 WZZT——F+HF—H 8,609
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKHBRA (565)
Credited to profit or loss FAER (1,176)
At 31 December 2012 WR_E——F+=-_HA=+—8H 6,868
At 1 January 2013 R-_ZE—=F—HF—H 6,868
Credited to profit or loss FAER (400)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-A=+—H 6,468
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

INCOME TAX (continued)
(d) Deferred tax asset not recognised:

(e)

The Group has not recognised deferred tax asset in
respect of tax losses of $165,316,000 (2012:
$836,643,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the unused tax losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdictions and entities. Out of the above tax
losses, $79,497,000 (2012: $204,434,000) can be
carried forward to offset against taxable profits of
subsequent years for up to five years from the year
in which they were incurred, while the remaining
tax losses do not expire under the current tax
legislation.

Withholding tax:

The China tax law imposes a withholding tax at
10% unless reduced by a treaty or agreement, for
dividends distributed by a PRC-resident enterprise to
its immediate holding company outside the PRC for
earnings generated since 1 January 2008. The
Group did not recognise any withholding tax for the
year ended 31 December 2013 and fifteen months
ended 31 December 2012.

5

&8l (&)
(d) RERZZBEEHIEEE:

(e)

HREEBAEER ZEER
NER ZARKRERM @A A
DI AFRA 2R EBEEZ

AIRE I ARE - EE W ERFIIA
&5 $8165,316,000T (=& ——
% : 836,643,0007T) FE R IR T
HIBEE  -BEBER{ITHRBEE
# - H 79,497,000t (= &
— Z 4 :204,434,0007T) 2 %t
IEE?TEﬂE@ﬁ%?%ﬂTiJ?_W

i wE DA B R ER T s M AR 8
Eﬁ%mlﬁﬁéﬁa Bl 1~ 5% 1K §5 HA
PR o

T :

PEBRBERKPREER B
¥H-_TT)\F-HA—BRE
2 B AR NS B
M A Ak 2 IR B (BR IE R R A
K 1h ek PR ) 9 12 BR10% 78
+u+ ?E?ﬂfﬂ @%—2_:
FT+ZA=T—HILEFERE
Z2-FE——F+=-HA=+—H
IE+REA - SEY EERE
A FEFO R ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

6 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The remuneration of the Company’'s directors is as

follows:

Basic salaries,

EENERAEZEREHAL

NAEF 2

Ea N

Equity settled

other Retirement share-based Year ended
Date of appointment/ allowances and  Discretionary scheme payment 31 December
resignation Directors’ fees emoluments bonuses  contributions expenses 2013 Total
BE
—¥-=%§
EXFHe - Hfp +=A=+-8
EfE/BEEY EEHS RRERME BfREd BAGEER REXFEX i3 45
(Note 26)
(P &£ 26)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fi F Fi F Fi F
Executive directors
JITES
Mr. WANG Fei Appointed on 18 August 2013 and = 174 = = = 174
resigned on 23 October 2013
IREE R-B-Z£\A+N\BEZHER
RZ¥-ZF+A-+=08E
Mr. YUAN Xin Appointed on 19 August 2013 — 355 — — — 355
REXRE RZF-Z£N\A+LBEERE
Mr. CHAN Chi To, Antony Appointed on 27 August 2013 — 400 — 5 — 405
REBEE R-F¥-Z£\NA-+tHEZEHE
Mr. CHEN Hai Appointed on 23 October 2013 = 115 = = = 115
R EE RZ¥-ZF+A-+=HEEHE
Non-executive directors
EHITES
Mr. GUO Hong Redesignated from executive — 166 — — — 166
director on 28 August 2013 and
resigned on 15 March 2014
PALE RZF-=£\A-+\BBEHTE
EHERR-_¥-NE=ZA+EH
i3-3
Mr. ZALDIVAR Peter Alphonse Resigned on 7 May 2013 40 — — — — 40
ZALDIVAR Peter Alphonse %t 4 RZF-ZSHAtHRE
Dr. LIN Junbo 120 = = = = 120
HERIEL
Mr. CHI Chenxi Appointed on 27 August 2013 83 — — — — 83
ERBLE R-F-Z£N\A-+tHEZEE
Ms. HU Gin Ing Appointed on 27 August 2013 83 — — — — 83
MHRERL RZF-ZFN\AZ+tHEEE
Dr. LEUNG Anita Fung Yee Resigned on 1 September 2013 80 — — = = 80
Maria
ZAREE T RZB-—ZEAA—H&E
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah Redesignated from executive 43 668 = 6 = 77

director on 6 September 2013 and

resigned on 11 November 2013

R-FB-ZEAAXNBHHTES
AERR-F-=%£+—-A+—H
BT

SMI Culture Group Holdings Limited 2ZEX{b&EBiERAR AT



6

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

Basic salaries,

6

ESWNERAZEREHFAL

(&

/=R

Equity settled

other Retirement share-based Year ended
Date of appointment/ allowances and Discretionary scheme payment 31 December
resignation Directors’ fees emol ts b contributions expenses 2013 Total
BE
—%-=
EXFe o Hh +=A=+-8
Eff/BEEH ¥ 20k BHERMNE BREL BAESR BREXREX I E @
(Note 26)
(Bt &£26)
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000
Fi F Fi F Fi F
Independent non-executive
directors
BUKBTES
Mr. YEUNG Chung Hay, Patrick Appointed on 18 January 2013 and 75 = = = = 75
resigned on 27 August 2013
BIEE % RZB-=5-A+N\BEEER
RZ¥-=Z£/\A-t+tE#E
Mr. DU Jiang Appointed on 27 August 2013 83 - - = = 83
HITEE RZ¥-=ZF/\AZ+tBEEE
Mr. LIN Xian bo Appointed on 27 August 2013 83 — — — — 83
AEREE RZF-ZFN\AZ+tHEEE
Ms. SZETO Wai Ling, Virginia Resigned on 1 September 2013 120 — = = = 120
AEERRL R-B-ZEAA-HH#E
Mr. FUNG Ho Leung, Arthur Resigned on 6 September 2013 122 - - - - 122
BEREE R-B—ZEAARBHE
Mr. JIANG lin Sheng Appointed on 11 September 2013 74 — — — — 74
EEERE RZB-ZFAA+-BEZEHE
Mr. WU Chien-chiang Appointed on 11 September 2013 74 = = = = 74
Rigmist R-B—-Z5AA+-BEEHE
Total 1,080 1,878 — 1" — 2,969
@it
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

= 25
6 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 6 EEWNERAIZEEHFAL
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) (&

Basic salaries, Equity settled Fifteen
other Retirement share-based months ended
Date of appointment/ allowances and Discretionary scheme payment 31 December
resignation Directors’ fees emoluments bonuses contributions expenses 2012 Total
BE
—E-—-F
EXHE  Eft +-A=+-H
ZE/BERY Exne ERR#ME WEREL RAGEER  BRERRX LtREALE

(Note 26)

(Fff 7£26)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr T Fr Fr T

Executive directors

BTEE

Mr. YIU Yan Chi Bernard Resigned on 22 March 2012 — 180 — — — 180
BREHLLE RIB-——F=A-+-BH{E

Mr. TSIANG Hoi Fong Resigned on 21 March 2012 — 295 — — — 295
BHRALE R-ZZ-——§=A-+-HE{E

Mr. YEUNG Ching Wan Resigned on 22 March 2012 o 935 o 5 = 940
BEERE RZZ-ZF=ZA-+-H#f

Mr. GUO Hong Appointed on 28 May 2012 — 166 — — — 166
BUEE RZZE-—FfRA-+\BEZE

Mr. LAl Tsz Wah Appointed on 25 June 2012 — — — — — —
BrELE R-ZZ-——FXA-+RARZEH

Non-executive directors

kBTES

Dr. LEUNG Anita Fung Yee Maria Redesignated from executive director — 9,671 (20,118) " (7,850) (18,286)
(Note) on 9 July 2012

ZEEE LT () RZT—ZF+ANBERTEZAT

Dr. Honourable WONG Yu Hong, Resigned on 21 March 2012 50 o o o o 50
Philip, GBS

HEHLABLGBS R-B-——F=A-+-ABE

Mr. LAM Haw Shun, Dennis, JP Resigned on 22 March 2012 — 458 133 — — 591

WECATEL R-ZZ-——F=A-+-H#f

Mr. Stanley Emmett THOMAS Resigned on 28 May 2012 67 = o o = 67

Stanley Emmett THOMASSc 4 RZZ——FRAA-F+/\HE T

Mr. Lincoln PAN Lin Feng Resigned on 28 May 2012 67 — — — — 67

B LE RZZE-——FRA-+\B#HE

Mr. ZALDIVAR Peter Alphonse  Appointed on 8 July 2010 125 — — — — 125

ZALDIVAR Peter Alphonset & R=ZT—ZTF+A/\BEET

Mr. LIU Yuk Chi, David Resigned on 21 March 2012 — 1,000 — — — 1,000

AGmELE RZZ-ZF=ZA-+—-HE§fE

Mr. FLYNN Douglas Ronald Resigned on 22 March 2012 — 333 — — — 333

FLYNN Douglas Ronald %t 4 RZT——F=ZA-+ZAFT

Ms. HO Chiu King Pansy Resigned on 28 May 2012 67 — — — — 67
Catilina

[OF:3: boae RZZ-ZFRA-t\B#E

Mr. OWYANG Loong Shui, Ivan  Resigned on 21 March 2012 — 180 — — — 180

BGEREE RZE-——F=ZA-+—-H##F

Dr. LIN Junbo Appointed on 17 May 2011 125 — — — — 125

IR R E L RIB-——FRAATHREZE
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf 7 ZHisE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE

6

ESWNERAZEREHFAL

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) (&
Basic salaries, Equity settled Fifteen
other Retirement share-based months ended
Date of appointment/ allowances and Discretionary scheme payment 31 December
resignation Directors’ fees emoluments bonuses contributions expenses 2012 Total
BE
—E——F
EXHE  Eft += A=
ZE/BERY Exhe RERME WEEL RAGEER  BREIARX LtREALE
(Note 26)
(Fff 7£26)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr T Fr Fr Fr
Independent non-executive
directors
BUKBTES
Mr. LAU Hon Chuen, GBS, JP Resigned on 8 August 2012 92 — — — — 92
ZERGBSAT AL RZB-ZFNANRERE
Mr. HUI Koon Man, Michael, JP Resigned on 22 October 2012 108 — — — — 108
FEXKFHL RZF-ZF+A-TZHHE
Mr. CHOU Wayne Resigned on 31 August 2012 92 — — — — 92
BEEE RZTE-—Z—FNA=+—-H#HE
Ms. SZETO Wai Ling, Virginia Appointed on 31 August 2012 — — — — — —
AEERRL RZZ-—FN\A=+-REZHE
Mr. FUNG Ho Leung, Arthur Appointed on 31 August 2012 — — = — — —
BEREE RZZ-—F/\A=+-BREZHE
Mr. YEUNG Chung Hang, Patrick Appointed on 18 January 2013 — — — — — —
50816 % £ RZE-=Z§-A+\BEZE
Total
@it 793 13,218 (19,985) 16 (7,850) (13,808)
Note: During the fifteen months ended 31 December 2012, a director Ma: RBE—ZT——F+-_A=+—A8L

agreed to waive emoluments totalling $20,118,000 in respect of
discretionary bonuses payable to that director in prior years. In
addition, equity settled share-based payment expenses of
$7,850,000 were reversed on cancellation of the same director’s
bonus share entitlement as certain conditions could not be
fulfilled.

+HREAR - —RBEERERERE
RBAFERNTZBEZTZHGE
TE414£20,118,0007T © koM » AR E
FlEEReEENX WA —FF24
BEEC TN P& ORESNHE
%7,850,0007C °
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

6 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND FIVE 6 EENERIZREHFAL
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) (%)
The above analysis include two (fifteen months ended 31 FRomeEEmEBE_E—=
December 2012: two) individuals whose emoluments are F+-_A=+—HBI+HEA:W
among the five highest paid individuals in the Group. BIANT HBMeEEERE &S
Details of the emoluments paid to the remaining three FALZY MBI =ZFFEE=
(fifteen months ended 31 December 2012: three) E——HF+_-_A=+—HIt+EMHE
individuals are: A Z2)ALZIFzHMEesFEDR
T
Fifteen
Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
BE H=
—F—Z=F —FT——F

+=AS+-8 +t=A=t-A
kEE  LTEEA

$'000 $'000
Fx F 7T

Basic salaries, housing and other EAX#H &  FERKEAM
allowances, and benefits in kind EAL KRB Y E R 1,248 3,009
Retirement scheme contributions iR K5t 2] 4 7 108 41
1,356 3,050
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

The emoluments of the individuals fell within the
following bands:

EENSRELREHFAL
(%)

FiALTZBE N FUATEE :
Fifteen

Year ended months ended

31 December 31 December
2013 2012

BF HE
—ET—=4 — T — =

+=A=+—B +=A=+-A

ILFEE 1+ E1{EA

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE A

$0-%$1,000,000 07T £1,000,0007T 3 2
$1,000,001-%$1,500,000 1,000,001 &

1,500,0007T — 1

3 3

During the year/period, no amounts were paid or payable
to any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a loss of $1,215,205,000
(fifteen months ended 31 December 2012: $860,099,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company.

5 8 A 4 5 P9 0 4 1) 5,8 ) i
SEHALTZHRE - BN
MEEBEREANALY B
EL TR

AT REHRBAERIEBIE

NEREFBEARBGHRABEER
ERRRFERERPARZEHIE
1,215,205,0007 (B E=FT——F +
“A=+—BiIt+EHMEA:
860,099,0007T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

LOSS PER SHARE
(@) Basic loss per share

8

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company of $675,376,000 (fifteen months
ended 31 December 2012: $628,058,000) and the
weighted average number of 338,783,000 ordinary
shares (fifteen months ended 31 December 2012:
77,553,000) in issue during the year ended 31
December 2013, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary

shares

T EE

) EREXEGE
EREAFBEEREHEZEC
TE—=F+-A=+—HIitHF
ERArERaRERBAREN
E518675,376,000C (B E-F
——E+-A=+—BI1It+H
& A : 628,058,0007T) & B %
TEBARRBRME TSR
338,783,000/ (B2 =T ——
F+-_A=+—HIt+HE
H :77,553,000f% ) st & T :

BB MEFYRE
Fifteen

Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012

BE H=
—E—-=5 —E——F

+=AS+-8 +t=A=t-A
bEE  LTEEA

‘000 ‘000
T iR F IR
Issued ordinary shares RZT—=F—H—8/
at 1 January 2013/ —T——%+H—-HZ
1 October 2011 EEHTERK 4,687,981 934,340
Effect of scrip dividends KRR EZ®HE
(note 27(c)(ii)) (B 3 27()(i)) — 5,705
Effect of rights issues HERexw2E
(note 27(c)(iii) (B 3 27(c)iii)) 614,410 6,815,206
Effect of capital reorganisation X ZARE 4 &K 1D & 2
and share consolidation 5228 (M 5E27(0)(iv) &
(notes 27(c)(iv) and 27(c)(v)) 27(0)(v)) (4,963,608) (7,677,698)
Weighted average number of R+-A=+—HZ
ordinary shares 3 AR N 5 AR 2
at 31 December 338,783 77,553

SMI Culture Group Holdings Limited 2ZEX{b&EBiERAR AT



8

Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

LOSS PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted loss per share
The diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2013 and the fifteen months ended 31
December 2012 are the same as the basic loss
earnings per share as the outstanding share options,
equity settled share-based transactions and
conversion options for the convertible notes during
the year/period have anti-dilutive effect to the basic
loss per share. The then status of condition was
assumed unchanged and thus the condition of reset
and adjustment were not met.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme managed by an
independent approved MPF Scheme trustee. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $25,000 ($20,000 prior to
June 2012). Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately.

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in
a defined contribution retirement plan (the “Plan”)
organised by the local government authorities whereby
the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the Plan to
fund the retirement benefits of the eligible employees.
Contributions made to the Plan are calculated at a range
from 9% to 22.5% of the basic salaries of the eligible
employees. The local government authorities are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
the retired employees. The Group is not liable to any
retirement benefits payment in the PRC beyond the
contributions to the Plan.

The Group does not operate any other scheme for
retirement benefits provided to the Group’s employees.

8

BIREIE(E)

(b) BixHEFHE
BE-T =—F+-A=1T—
ALFERBE-—FT——F+
“A=t—RLEt+RAEAZE
BRETERESGREXNER
R RERE HAZRT
2 R AE - BB 2 5 AT
MBRERZEBREHSRE
ABEBAARBEYE - #
RBEERBERTE  HT
HEEERARGKHE -

BAwEFEE
SBEREBEEB(ERFMUERELFE
BEDEBRESTBRBKRD)EEE
HEREAZEERZEHEAES
I ((REeETE)) - wBEe &l
REBURAZRESFEIETA
B ERMEFTRAKEE - BE
BESHE BEXxREEBEAZH
HREEBEBRA Z5%MEETEIEH
HE BEEARAZEALERA
25000 (ZFE —Z=—F N A Al B
20,0007T) © &1 &l 2 5K BN s 8 A
FFEIR -

REFPBEABABS T A EER &
& 2 /3 BB A B 2 B b 7T BT
ME N EREHFGRIRET B ([T
2 Bt WBARZAMZTE
HH - EABEEREBRERN
BRI 2ES o MZTEER 2H®RK
THEEREERRBEEARATFH &2
9% %E225% - M HF T & T
MEKREEBEZNENZ 2 RIK
® o BRTRZETEER BTN - &
BEPEYEEMRREAERE
F -

SEYESEE 2EEBLEMHEMEAE
fl R KR F At & o
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

o
10 FIXED ASSETS 10 BEEE
(@) The Group (a) £E
The Group
%8
Furniture,
fixtures and
Land and Leasehold other fixed Production Props and
buildings improvements assets equipment costumes Total
HE - BER
T REF HERXE HtBETEE BiektE EARER @zt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fi T Fi Fi T Fi
Cost: BA:
At 1 January 2013 R-ZZE—=F—-f—H 83,509 28,354 17,589 2,972 11,577 144,001
Additions NE = 60 45 - — 105
Disposals HE (13,412) (4,011) (1,165) - — (18,588)
Disposal of subsidiaries I EHE AR (35,779) (23,824) (13,591) (2,972) (11,572) (87,738)
Reclassification to assets classified EH D EZEHHE B
as held for sale (note 21) BELEZEE
GEX) (34,318) - - - - (34,318)
Exchange adjustments ERAE = 13 45 = 2 60
At 31 December 2013 RZZ—=F
+=ZA=+—H - 592 2,923 -1 3522
Accumulated depreciation: BitinE:
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE-Z5—f—-H 6,600 24,278 13,538 2,738 11,577 58,731
Charge for the year FRNHZ 1,447 1,459 1,244 3 4 4,157
Written back on disposals o R [ (1,144) (2,549) (903) - — (4,596)
Written back on disposal of & W8 A A B [
subsidiaries (4,333) (22,873) (11,637) (2,741) (11,572) (53,156)
Reclassification to assets classified EF D EZEHHEA
as held for sale (note 21) BEHECZEE
(Bt 5k21) (2,570) = = = = (2,570)
Exchange adjustments X AR — 13 43 — (2) 54
At 31 December 2013 RZE-Z=F
+=A=t+-A — 328 2,285 — 7 2,620
Net book value: BREFE:
At 31 December 2013 RZB-—Z=F
+-A=+—-8 - 264 638 - — 902
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Notes to the Financial Statements 75 #H7%H:E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

10 FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(@) The Group (continued)

10 BIEEE(~Z
() B (&

The Group
5
Furniture,
fixtures and
Land and Leasehold other fixed Production Props and
buildings  improvements assets equipment costumes Total
Bl - EER
ITHREF HEEE HtETEE HER BERBR @it
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T STt
Cost: BA:
At 1 October 2011 RZZE-——F+h—H 113,778 27,594 17,075 2,958 11,504 172,909
Additions hE o 2,267 1,265 — — 3,532
Disposals & (19,081) (1,679) (582) - — (21,342)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR (11,456) = (272) = = (11,728)
Exchange adjustments ERAE 268 172 103 14 73 630
At 31 December 2012 RZT-—=F
+-A=+-H 83,509 28,354 17,589 2,972 11,577 144,001
Accumulated depreciation: RitHE:
At 1 October 2011 RZZE——F+A-H 5,713 21,943 10,880 2,450 11,476 52,462
Charge for the period B 4,124 4,121 3,105 278 28 11,656
Written back on disposals & B B ml (2,331) (1,054) (340) = = (3,725)
Written back on disposal of HENBARKER
subsidiaries (931) — (169) — — (1,100)
Exchange adjustments EH AR 25 (732) 62 10 73 (562)
At 31 December 2012 RZZT—=F
+-A=+-H 6,600 24,278 13,538 2,738 11,577 58,731
Net book value: AR FME:
At 31 December 2012 R-T——F
+-A=+-H 76,909 4,076 4,051 234 — 85,270

Annual Report 2013 & 125



126

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

10 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 10 BEEEE
(b) The analysis of net book value of land and buildings (b) THEEFZEMFEDN
is as follows: T
The Group
£H
2013 2012
—F—Z=F —_F—=
$'000 $'000
T Tt
In Hong Kong under medium- BB AR EBELOFAE
term lease — 12,502
In the PRC under long-term ZEHRBENKREENFE
leases = 64,407
— 76,909
(c) Land and buildings held by certain subsidiaries with () ETHEBRARMFERES
carrying value of $23,722,000 were pledged as 23,722,0007T 2 T RIEFE
security for mortgage bank loans of $11,912,000 as TER  EARZZ—Z=F+
at 31 December 2012 (note 22). A=+ —RZZBRITER
11,912,000t 2 & # @ (M 5
22) e
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Notes to the Financial Statements 75 #H7%H:E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

1M1 MPHEBASIZKE

The Company

AT
2013 2012
—F—-=f —T—_F
$'000 $'000
Fixt T s
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRAD - AR 12,390 72,943
Less: impairment loss B R E B B (12,000) (12,000)
390 60,943

An impairment loss of $12,000,000 has been made for
the investment in subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013
(2012: $12,000,000) as the carrying amount of
investment in subsidiaries exceeds its recoverable amount.

The unlisted shares of certain subsidiaries held by the
Company were transferred to a wholly owned subsidiary
at cost during the year.

Details of disposal of certain subsidiaries of the Group are
disclosed in note 29.

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless
otherwise stated.

NR-_ZTE—=FE+=-"A=+—H" &
RRMBARZHEREHEESR
HEalE <% HERRKEB AR
Z & #EH12,000,000C (ZE—=
£F 1 12,000,0007T) BB E1E

ARFETH B AR 2 kLR
RERERNERAHET —R2E
B A -

HESEE THEBARZFBENRH
294 B o

TREINHEEXE  BEEXEE
BEEAFEZMBRAZHE - B
FRBEH  TRMBBROENR
TR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

11 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 11 RHBASIZIRE(Z)

Issued share

Place of Proportion of capital/
incorporation/  Place of attributable equity registered
Name of company establishment  operation interest held capital Principal activity
E#T
ML K&/
AEEH P 313 B BEEWE FHZEGERELS #MEEX TEEH
Directly  Indirectly
E# el %
Quick Gain Enterprises Limited BVI Hong Kong 100% = US$1  Investment holding
Quick Gain Enterprises Limited KBRS AR 100% — 121 BREER
Qin Jia Yuan Cultural Assets (Hong Hong Kong Hong Kong — 100% #$2 Property investment
Kong) Company Limited #$92
B XLER(BE)BERAA £ EE — 100% T NERE
#927T
Qin Jia Yuan Media Creation Co., BVI Hong Kong = 100% US$1  Investment holding
Limited
P+BEERAERRAA EERAEE FTA - 100% 1= REZRK
Qin Jia Yuan Creation Company BVI PRC — 100% US$10 Holding of scripts, synopses
Limited and editing rights
B+ EAERRAT KERAHES 7E — 100% 10FT BEEK REXARGRE
Progressive Chic Development Limited ~ BVI Hong Kong = 100% US$1  Investment holding
Progressive Chic Development Limited ~EBELZEE & — 100% %=1 REZER
Hangwai Enterprises Limited BVI Hong Kong — 100% US$1  Holding of distribution rights
EREERRAA EBRRESE T - 100% XL BEETE
Vast Top Investments Limited BVI Hong Kong — 100% US$1 Holding of adaptation rights of
fiction series
BREREBRAF KERAES FE - 100% 1ET BANARIZ HiGE
Great Mean Enterprises Limited BVI Hong Kong — 100% US$1 Holding of adaptation rights of
fiction series
ERGEBRALA EERAESE T - 100% XL BAENARIZ hiRE
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Notes to the Financial Statements 75 #H7%H:E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 1M1 RHBASIZIRE(Z)

Issued share

Place of Proportion of capital/
incorporation/  Place of attributable equity registered
Name of company establishment  operation interest held capital Principal activity
E#T
ML K&/
AEEH P 313 B BEEWE FHZEGRELS #MEFx TEEH
Directly  Indirectly
E# A
Sharp Cheer Enterprises Limited BVI Hong Kong = 100% US$1 Holding of distribution rights
BHEEBRRA RERUEE B — 100% 1ET BEETHE
Luck Success Enterprise Limited Hong Kong PRC — 100% $1  Property holding
HREEERAT BE hE — 100% T BENE
QJY Advertising And Communication BVI Hong Kong — 100% US$1  Investment holding
Holdings Company Limited
QJY Advertising And Communication ~ RBEZ#E &S - 100% 1EZT REZER
Holdings Company Limited
Green Team Culture Asset Limited BVI Hong Kong — 100% US$10,000 Holding of publication and
adaptation rights
ERXEERRAR ERENEHE BE — 100% 10,0007 #A LR RS HE
Clear Light Group Limited BVI PRC = 55% US$100 Provision of consultancy and
advertising services
ZBEEFRAR RERLZEE THE — 55% 1007 REFARESRE
HuaXia Qin Jia Yuan Culture and Hong Kong Hong Kong — 75%  $1,000,000 Provision of TV program and
Communication Company Limited production related services
EEY+H U ERERAT Bk EE — 75% 1,000,00070 TR E R BIEERS
# Class A non-voting shares L ABEEERERND
e Class B voting shares i BEEREERMD
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

11 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 11 RHBASIZIRE(Z)

The following table lists out the information relating to TREJNESEBEEBRAREA
Clear Light Group Limited, a subsidiary of the Group ZEH mEEEARAFGAEE
which has material non-controlling interest (NCI). The BEEREEHMMESZHBEA
summarised financial information presented below Al e U2 zHBERBRERT
represents the amount before any inter-company M ARIMEEEA &5 -
elimination.

Clear Light Group Limited

REXEEARAT

2013 2012

—E—-=£ —E——-F

$'000 $'000

T F 7T

NCI percentage EEHUEREEAE DL 45% 45%

Current assets RBEE 42,530 62,452

Non-current assets ERBEE 47,604 49,520

Current liabilities mEBE (76,009) (90,450)

Non-current liabilities ERBEE — (11,071)

Net assets BEFE 14,125 10,451
Carrying amount of NC SEEHIMER 2

FEEEEE 6,356 4,703

Fifteen months

Year ended ended

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

BE-T—=F gz-_ZF—=F

+=A=+—8B +=-—A=+—H

IEEFEE IE+HEA

$'000 $'000

T F 7T

Revenue WA 182,346 212,663

Profit for the year/period KFEE HABRF 3,674 5,588

Total comprehensive income FHEBEZERE 3,674 5,588

Profit allocated to NCl D BCE FEE S MR R 2 8 A 1,653 2,515

Dividend paid to NCI XN TFIEESIEERE 2 RE — —
Cash inflow/(outflow) from KEEH RS

operating activities mA Gt i) 1,460 (845)
Cash outflow from investing RERH RS

activities e (12) (723)
Cash (outflow)/inflow from MEITYH RS

financing activities O ),/ A (11,071) 11,071
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Notes to the Financial Statements 75 #H7%H:E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

Y s
12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 BREE
The Group
]
Purchased Television Purchased Customer
licence programs advertising contract
rights in progress rights costs Others Total
EREE R AEH EBE ZEF&R
e EHEB B 5% 3 Hit st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
SPoE SPoE T SPoE SPoE T
Cost: B :
At 1 January 2013 RZIE—=F
—H—H 1,238,988 112,142 50,220 67,150 14,157 1,482,657
Additions NE 8,571 — — — = 8,571
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRR — = (11,937) (12,496) (7,983) (32,416)
Exchange difference I ] — — — — 8 8
At 31 December 2013 RZTE—=%F
+=ZA=+—H 1,247,559 112,142 38,283 54,654 6,182 1,458,820

Accumulated amortisation 25t # &5 & I8 &

and impairment loss: 518 :
At 1 January 2013 RZTE—=F
—H—H 394,958 112,142 50,220 39,822 13,517 610,659
Charge for the year FAMAX 52,015 — — 1,457 209 53,681
Impairment loss REEBE 371,333 — — — — 371,333
Written back on disposal of HEWB AR BEE
subsidiaries — — (11,937) (12,496) (7,544) (31,977)
At 31 December 2013 RZIE—=F
e t=A=178 8 e (I 2 I . 6182 1.003,696")
Net book value: MR ¥ E :
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=
+=—A=+—H 429,253 — — 25,871 — 455,124
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 12 BREEE
The Group
ES
Purchased Television Purchased Customer
licence programs  advertising contract
rights  in progress rights costs Others Total
EEE HEH EEE TFP&AR
W BRESE s S ity Mt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T 7T Tt Tt T 7T Tt Tt
Cost: B :
At 1 October 2011 R-T——%
+A—AH 891,016 112,142 50,220 67,150 22,367 1,142,895
Additions nE 347,972 = e o — 347,972
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKBAA - - - - (8,216) (8,216)
Exchange difference e ] — — — — 6 6
At 31 December 2012 R-B-——F
+=ZA=+—H 1,238,988 112,142 50,220 67,150 14,157 1,482,657

Accumulated amortisation 25t # &5 & I8 &

and impairment loss: 518 :
At 1 October 2011 RZE——F
+A—8 68,716 112,142 50,220 20,221 13,935 265,234
Charge for the period BAREX 47,659 — — 7,105 4,377 59,141
Impairment loss REEE 278,583 — — 12,496 = 291,079
Written back on disposal of a & — R B A 7
subsidiary # [0 = — = = (4,795) (4,795)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZT—ZF
R TZASKTAR 394958 I . | Sl
Net book value: AREFE(E:
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F
+=A=+—~ 844,030 = = 27,328 640 871,998
The amortisation charge for the year/period is included in FHRNEBERAYNEAERERN
“direct costs” in the consolidated income statement. S BITEBERKA] -
Purchased licence rights with carrying value of N-_TE——F+_-_A=+—H"
$305,189,000 were pledged for convertible notes with 18 A305,189,000 T 2 B B B =F
outstanding principal amount of $100,000,000 as at 31 HEE B ERKEE NS ZE A
December 2012 (note 25(d)). 100,000,0007T 2 AT # B% Z ¥ (B 5F

25(d)) fE A o
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for intangible assets

During the six months ended 30 June 2013, the directors
engaged an independent professional valuer, BMI
Appraisals Limited (“BMI”), to conduct a valuation of the
purchased licence and other rights of the Group as at 30
June 2013. Based on the result of this valuation, an
impairment provision of $289,364,000 was made for
intangible assets for the six months ended 30 June 2013.

The directors engaged BMI again to conduct a valuation
of the above rights of the Group as at 31 December
2013. Similarly, BMI calculated the fair values of these
rights using the income capitalisation approach and a
discount rate of 20.05%, and assumed that these rights
will be utilised/disposed of within the next 10 vyears.
Forecast gross margins were determined with reference to
current management’s assessment of the marketability of
these rights and the wider market condition, having
regard to a lack of revenue generated from these rights
for almost two years, including the last six months. The
recoverable amounts of these rights were determined on
the basis of value in use. Based on the result of this
valuation, an impairment provision of $81,969,000 was
made for intangible assets for the six months ended 31
December 2013.

12 BREEE)

I EE 2R E B

REBZE-_ZE—=FA=1+HIEX
@R BEFECZEBIYREMGERM
IR AR AR ([FRAFRE )
N_ZE—=FXA=+HHEEBRD
AR EREMERETEE -
BEGELER SEERHEHE-F
—ZFXNA=ZtHIEANEARER
& E 1E R B B 15289,364,000

JC ©

EEFZBEPNBER_ZT—=F
+-A=+—B%Y -l EE#ERNE
TEE - PANTBRIEFEBERL
W A% B BA20.05% #r B8 R 5T & itk
EREMZAFE  WRFHEEF
BRARKR+ERNSH,HE - 1A
FANXRZEEEHNHESEN ZTH
ERERABET N 2R MG
BT BEHEEBECEBEOIME(E
BEBEANEABRZRELEEF
ZWA o WEREF) 2 B & REIE
FHEBEEET BREMGHELS
R EBEREE_ZT—=F+=
A=+—BLENEARERLEEE
(B B 581,969,000 °

13 GOODWILL 13 HE
The Group
£H
2013 2012
—g—-=fK —E-_%F
$'000 $'000
T T
Cost and carrying amount: BRARKREEEE:
At 1 January 2013/1 October 2011 R-_Z—=%—H—8~
and at 31 December —T——F+AH—BK
R+—HA=+—H 21,076 21,076
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13 GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment test for cash-generating unit
containing goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s advertising business
as a cash generating unit (“CGU"). The directors engaged
an independent professional valuer, BMI, to conduct a
valuation of this CGU of the Group as at 31 December
2013. The recoverable amount is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. Based on the result that the
recoverable amount is higher than the carrying amount of
this CGU as at 31 December 2013, no impairment loss
has been recognised for the CGU as at 31 December
2013.

14 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

13 BHEE)

BEHMEZHEEAEMNZHE
{E A =t
HEIREERBZESEREAR
ReEXEMN) BEEELZERY
HEGEEMPMIABR T —=F
T+ A=+ —H¥YSELBEESE
BAIETHE - KBS EREE
REBHELEE - BEUTKEDE
EenrtBeELAEUR_Z—=
F+-_A=+—HZEHAESBEZLE
R RZE—=F+=-A=+—H
WS IR & E A BRI
BEEE -

14 R—FKBEBEATIZHER

The Group
£E
2013 2012
—ET—=4 —_ET——
$'000 $'000
Fix Ft
Unlisted shares, at cost ELETRRD - AR — —
Share of net assets BLEEFE — 3,858
— 3,858
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The following list contains the particulars of the
associate, which is an unlisted corporate entity whose
quoted market price is not available:

Form of Place of

business establishment  Particulars of issued
Name of associate structure and operation  and paid up capital
BEATEE EBRERS RUIREERY CRORARRAFHE

14 R—REMEATIZER(Z)
TRV ETEBEIHE DA
(BELrTmOEESE) S

Proportion of ownership interest

Incorporated PRC 10,000,000/8,200,000

ordinary shares of

Beijing Guoguang
Huaxia Media

Broadcasting RMB1 each
Company Limited+
ErEEEEXLER %H HE 10,000,000% /
BRAR+ 8,200,000/ &R HE &
ARBITZEBR
+ English name for identification purpose only

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in
the consolidated financial statements. It is not material in
relation to the consolidated financial statements.

Amount due from the associate is unsecured, interest-
free, has no fixed terms of repayment and is expected to
be recovered within one year.

MEEESLY
Group's Held Held
effective by the by a
interest  Company subsidiary Principal activity
REER HEAT
B AFIRF BE ETEEH
45% — 45% Purchase and
holding of
distribution rights
45% — 45% BERFAETE
+ HXEBBHEHRZD

ZBERNREAEREANGEA Y
BRERARKR - Hlma M B HmRm
SWATEK-

W ZE S ARRAESERRA - &
B EEEEFMERIAR-—FR
Yem o
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15 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 15 HbABEEE
The Group
&5
2013 2012
—F—-=f —T—=
$'000 $'000
Tt T
Available-for-sale equity securities  AJ fft i £ I AN 35 5
— Unlisted — L™ 15,954 31,908

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the directors
reviewed the recoverability of the available-for-sale equity
securities and made an impairment provision of
$15,954,000 accordingly.

16 INVENTORIES
(@) The balance of inventories at the balance sheet date
represents the cost of acquisition of certain scripts,
synopses, publication rights, copyrights and editing
rights.

Provision for slow moving inventories of

$88,031,000 was made as at 31 December 2013
(2012: $Nil).

SMI Culture Group Holdings Limited 2ZEX{b&EBiERAR AT

16

Hez—_2—=F+-_A=+—81t
FE BEERAAUBHERAES
ZAWEIRE - B ERRERE
15,954,0007T °

EE

@ RBEPRRZEFEHEBRESR
TBIAR - 8EXRME - HAREE
R K i 7 1 2 USRS

R-ZE—=%+—-A=+—H
B m % $E 17 §1EH 88,031,000
TTEE(CZCE——F 8)-
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

16 INVENTORIES (continued) 16 BE(E)

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised by EREREAITTAERZ
as an expense and included in profit or loss is as FETEINMET:
follows:

The Group

£E

Fifteen
Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
8= HZE
—¥-=f5 —E—CfF

+=A=+-8 +-A=+—~
EEE LTS

$'000 $'000
F5T ¥ 78
Carrying amount of EHEREZRESRE
inventories sold 400 56,341
17 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS, 17 FEWERS: - AfFRIE - & E
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 5 H ith FE Ug 7 IH
(a) Accounts receivable (a) FEUBR &
The Group
4o
2013 2012
—E—=% —_ZT =4
$'000 $'000
F5T 7
Accounts receivable FE W BR FX 27,244 150,161
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17 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(a) Accounts receivable (continued)
Included in accounts receivable expected to be

17

RUWERR  BAARE - &E
R E i FE W SR TE (42)

() FEWRRFR (&)
BHE_E—=F+-A=+

recovered within twelve months from 31 December —HEFT=@EA WH&@Zﬁ
2013 are debtors with the following ageing analysis W AR TR B HE DA T B W 3K
(based on invoice date): oML EBEER EIHH)ZZDT
The Group
£E
2013 2012
—F—-=f —T——F
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Within 1 month —@AR 15,684 69,207
1 to 3 months —Z==1@A 11,560 21,056
3 to 6 months =FENEA — 59,898
27,244 150,161

The credit terms offered by the Group are in
accordance with the terms specified in each
agreement entered into with the relevant customers,
ranging from three to fifteen months. Subject to
negotiations, extended credit terms are available for
certain major customers with well-established
operating records. The Group’s credit policy is set
out in note 28(a)(i).

Impairment losses in respect of the accounts
receivable are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against accounts receivable
directly. As at 31 December 2013, full provision of
$35,626,000 (2012: $35,626,000) has been made for
accounts receivable due from two advertising
agencies located in the PRC. Further details are
disclosed in note 4(c) to the financial statements.

138 sSMI Culture Group Holdings Limited £23EX{bEEZRARAQF

EEBREHESERFAIY
ZE D BEIEE - BEN
T=Z@AZ+HEAZHRE
H - MTHEEPZER BT
BERUO¥XBLBZETER
FESERREH £B 2=
B BCRH R KT 5E28(a)) ©

JEULBR 3R 2 R B B 1B R0 A B
#HRE - BRIEE B/ Mﬂz@ﬁ
RS2 REME  EiE)
,mar@ﬂ,aammuﬁzaa
W o M E—=F+ A=
+—B ERERREFHE
EREREBEFRZEES
35,626,000 (= & — = &F:
35,626,0007T) ° E — F F 15
BTSRRI 4O FE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)
(a) Accounts receivable (continued)
As at 31 December 2013, the Group assessed that,
except for the above, virtually all of the accounts
receivable are neither past due nor impaired (2012:
$Ni).
(b) Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables
An impairment provision of $137,463,000 has been
made at 31 December 2012 for prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, details of which are
disclosed in note 4(c) to the financial statements.
No further impairment provision has been made
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. An impairment loss of
$21,683,000 has been made for the amounts due from
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 (2012: $746,970,000)
because these subsidiaries have deficiency in assets and
accordingly the amounts due from them is impaired.
During the year, amounts due from subsidiaries of
$1,114,952,000 were written off prior to disposal of the
relevant subsidiaries.

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

The balance at 31 December 2012 represented bank
deposits pledged as security for banking facilities (note
22).

17

18

19

RUWERR  BAARE - RE
R E i FE W SR TE (42)

(a) FEWARR (=)
R-B—Z=F+_A=Z1

B BrLES  SEFEX
B LA BRI R 8

ARBECE-—ZF )

BERRE RERHME
W = IE
RZE——F+_A=+—
B ERENFRE - BekH
fFE W RRIE 1 R B B
137,463,0007C * BB FH B R
FERRMT4QWEE - B E
=%+ A=+—Hl1t
FEIE AL E— R E R
1 o

FEW ~(FE f) Bt /B 2 S SR IR
B E AR 22 e REIEE
CERARERHEE - R=F
—ZF+=A=+—A  ARKB
RAVEESBEL - Bt - B

(b)

EMB AR ZRIEBERE " WEH
& WS B /B8 1~ B 5K I8 1E 21,683,000
T B E BT — — F
746,970,0007T) ° 1,114,952,0007T
ZEWHBRARFEERFALE
EREKT B AR AT -
EREER

R-BE——F+-A=+—BZ#&
SIEBRERRITEE (HE22).2
R 2 RITIFH
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20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

20 IRERINSZEY

The Group The Company
55 AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—g-=F ~—ZT— —gF—=F —ZT——
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fit T Fit T
Cash at bank and in RITEFHERS
hand 4,994 55,077 1,754 74
Cash and cash REEBEBERZ
equivalents in the RekReF
balance sheets %7 4,994 55,077 1,754 74
Bank overdrafts RITHEX
(note 22) (Pt #£22) — (19,247)
Cash and cash REGERERER
equivalents in the ZEHekREF
consolidated cash By
flow statement 4,994 35,830
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21 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

On 31 December 2013, the Group entered into an
agreement to dispose of two wholly owned subsidiaries,
Flash Fountain International Limited (“Flash Fountain”)
and Luck Success Enterprise Limited (“Luck Success”), to
an independent third party. As at 31 December 2013, the
Group's interests in these subsidiaries have not been
transferred as the transaction is yet to be completed. The
principal business activities of these subsidiaries are
property holding.

The following assets and liabilities attributable to these
subsidiaries, which are expected to be sold within twelve
months, have been classified as held for sale as at 31
December 2013 and are presented separately in the
consolidated balance sheet.

21 BHIEHESE

R-_ZTE—=F+-A=+—H ' &
BH B E=FHI L EHE
HEMREE MK B2 F Flash
Fountain International Limited
([Flash Fountainl) K> ¥AB R
RNAI(HEK]) - RZE—=F+=
A=1+—H BHRXRZHEKRTK
WEERLEEWRB AR S E R
HE o WEMBRRIZEEERE
BREFEEME -

T EHBAREIEZEENRA
BEFEART_EARLE)ER
E—=F+_RA=1T—HBo8AHE
EHE  YNEAEERBRAD
HER T

2013 2012
—E-=% —F—=

$'000 $'000

¥ T %

Fixed assets B E & E 31,748 —
Prepayments, deposits and other ~ FEfTFHIE & K H

receivables J& W SRR 18 —

31,766 —
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22 BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS 22 RITERREX
The Group
=
2013 2012
—F—-=f —T—=
$'000 $'000
T T
Bank overdrafts RTEX T 19,247
Secured bank loans FRERITER
Current portion BV ERE o — 385,064
Non-current portion JEENERH o — 12,917
I, —— 397,981
Mortgage bank loans RIBIMITER
Current portion BN ERE o — 1,161
Non-current portion JEENERH — 10,751
e I 11,912
— 429,140
Repayable as follows: BIEBMT
— Within 1 year or on demand  — THEWNHIREXE = 405,472
— After 1 year but within 2 years — —FEEZMFER — 9,788
— After 2 years but within 5 years — MFE E AF R — 7,937
— After 5 years — hF& — 5,943
e — 23,668
— 429,140
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BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS (continued)
At 31 December 2012, certain bank loan facilities were
secured by pledged deposits of $112,113,000 (note 19),
certain shares of a subsidiary, and the corporate
guarantee provided by the Company and its subsidiaries,
totalling $399,953,000 which were utilised to the extent
of $397,981,000 as at 31 December 2012.

At 31 December 2012, mortgage bank loans of
$11,912,000 were secured by the Group’s land and
buildings with carrying value of $23,722,000 (note 10),
and the corporate guarantee provided by the Company.

LOANS FROM SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER

LOANS

(a) Loans from shareholders
As at 31 December 2012, loan from a shareholder
to a subsidiary of the Group of $8,716,000 was
unsecured, interest-bearing at prime rate per annum
and repayable on demand while another loan from
a shareholder to a subsidiary of the Group of
$3,981,000 was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Other loans
As at 31 December 2013, no other loans were
borrowed by the Company (2012: $51,800,000).

(b)

For the other loans borrowed by the subsidiaries of
the Company, all are repayable within one year, of
which $29,206,000 (2012: $3,000,000) is secured
and subject to fixed interest and handling fee
amounted to $Nil (2012: $360,000) in aggregate,
while the remaining amount of $13,026,000 (2012:
$8,198,000) is unsecured and interest-bearing at
prime rate per annum.

22

23

RITERREXR(Z
R—_E——F+-_A=+—H ' &
TER1TE FXEELA112,113,000T 2 B
EHRFR(HEE19) - —KH B R A
ZE TG RARFEKBARR
HZARERIEER ZEEFE
%8 4£5+399,953,0007T ' T —=
F+_-_ A=+ —HBE HH
397,981,0007T ©

R-—EBE——F+-_A=+—8" &
BER1TE 511,912,0007T LA & B BR
M {E23,722,0007C 2 3 A1 18 F
(FF7E10) R A RIRH# 2 AR IR E
| o

RERRZERRAMBER

(@) RKEKRERZER

R-ZE——F+=-_A=+—
H RkE—EZ2REBETEE—
R KB~ =) 2 § 78,716,000
TAEEERE  URKEREF
KB RBRERBEERE M
S—E2XRE—EREBETEE
— XMW B A8E 2 E K
3,981,000t HEEIF - &£ B
NERERKERE-

Hibh &M
R-_E—=F+_-_A=+—
B AR EMEAEMER
— & — — % :51,800,000
JT) °

(b)

NAalfBAREAZ EMmERK
EEHEAR—FRNEE  HF
29,206,000t (= & — = F :
3,000,0007%) & A EH K IZE
EFRGE  UMBEFEES
HEx(ZF——% :360,000
7C) ¢ i E £213,026,0007T (=
T — — 4 :8,198,0007T) Bl A
EHRERIERERFFEE

B o
A
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24 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 EBERRHEMEMNRIE
All of the accruals and other payables are expected to be FiERETERARHEMENKIBEEE
settled within one year or are payable on demand. HR—FRNEE  HBARERKE

25 CONVERTIBLE NOTES 25 HRIRRIE

The Group and the Company
EERATA
Equity
component of
Conversion convertible Warrant
Liability option notes reserve Total
ARAR g AR RE
afE gk RERES & B3
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
F7t Tt Tt Tt Tt
At 1 October 2011 RZTE——F
+A—H 120,790 40,937 54,371 5,392 221,497977
Effective interest for R BRI S
the period 94,381 — — — 94,381
Change in fair value NEEEH — (40,937) — — (40,937)
Redemption of fEE AR R R &
convertible notes (90,670) — — — (90,670)
At 31 December 2012 RZE—=F
+=-—A=+—H 124,501 — 54,371 5,392 184,264
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NOTES (continued)

25 TRRER(E

The Group and the Company

KERAT
Equity
component of
Conversion convertible Warrant
Liability option notes reserve Total
RKRRE RRESE
Bff HikE ZERES fit #a st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T T T T
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=%
S CATR 124500 =543 8392 184,264
Effective interest for FEERMNE
the year 40,219 — — 40,219
Redemption of fEE AR R R R
convertible notes (164,720) (54,371) — (219,091)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+=—HA=+—H —_ —_ 5,392 5,392
(@) During the year ended 30 September 2009, the @ REEZZTETENFILA=TH

Company entered into subscription agreements with
Smart Peace Development Limited (“Smart Peace”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of CCB International
Asset Management Limited, and Star Group
International Investment Limited (“Star Group”)
pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue up
to $100,000,000 unlisted convertible notes (the
“Notes to Smart Peace”) and unlisted warrants with
exercise monies not more than $100,000,000 to
Smart Peace, and to issue up to $50,000,000
unlisted convertible notes (the “Notes to Star
Group”) and unlisted warrants with exercise monies
not more than $25,000,000 to Star Group
(collectively, the “2009 Notes").

IFE - ArHEREBREE
EEERARZEENBAR
Smart Peace Development
Limited ([Smart Peacel) & £
EREHEERAR(2E])
R REWE Bt - 2R
Z [AISmart Peace ETHR%
100,000,0007T 2 3k LT A #&
A% Z 8 ([Smart Peace 2 % |)
X 17 € 8 © B B
100,000,0007T 2 3F =7 sB AR
HE O YTHMEERTRSZ
50,000,0007T 2 FE L7 Al #2 fig
ER(EEZERDRITESEHE
#83825,000,0007T 2 3k £
REE (BB _EENFE

') e
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25 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

(@

(continued)

On 15 May 2009 and 7 August 2009, two tranches
of the Notes to Smart Peace with principal amounts
of $50,000,000 each (“Tranche 1 Smart Peace
Note” and “Tranche 2 Smart Peace Note”) were
issued to Smart Peace. The Notes to Smart Peace
bear interest at a rate of 5% per annum and
handling fee of 3.5% per annum, payable semi-
annually in arrear with the first payment of interest
and handling fee to be made on the date falling six
months from the date of issue of such convertible
notes.

On 18 November 2009 and 19 March 2010, two
tranches of the Notes to Star Group with principal
amounts of $25,000,000 each (“Tranche | Star
Group Note” and “Tranche 2 Star Group Note”)
were issued to Star Group. The Notes to Star Group
bear interest at a rate of 6-month Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) per annum and
handling fee of 3.5% per annum, payable monthly
in arrear.

The 2009 Notes will be redeemed at 100% of the
principal amount plus any accrued and unpaid
interest and handling fee, together with a
redemption premium calculated at 6-month HIBOR
plus 2.5% per annum of the principal amount on
the maturity date, being the end of the fifth year
from the date of issue. The 2009 Notes holders can,
after the expiry of the first anniversary of the date
of issue of the respective 2009 Notes, require the
Company to redeem in whole or in part of the
2009 Notes plus any accrued and unpaid interest
and handling fee, together with a redemption
premium at 1.5% per annum, 6-month HIBOR plus
2% per annum, and 6-month HIBOR plus 2.5% per
annum during the second, third and fourth year up
to the maturity date since the issue date of the
2009 Notes, respectively.

SMI Culture Group Holdings Limited 2ZEX{b&EBiERAR AT

25 TRIRER(E)

(@

(4&)
R-ZEENFERA+HEBER
ZZAEFENALH  AEEE
#450,000,0007T 2 M #t Smart
Peace &£ K ([%F — #t Smart
Peace & #& | &2 [ 38 — #it Smart
Peace & #]) % 17 T Smart
Peace ° Smart Peace Z 1% IR 4
FEs%stE  FEEBRAEF
3.5% @ AREBFEFHRINT -
BERFNEBERFEEENZE
AR EEETBREER
ANEAZBALM -

RZEZhAFE+—A+NBK
—ET-TFE=RF+NA X%
%6& /%25,000,0007T 2 Mt 2
EZE(F—HEEZEIRX
(FE_#HEEZEDEITTE
o 2EZHZFNEER
BERRTEEREFE  FE&
EhRAEFE35% BN EAA
KA o

TEENFEE2ELNSRE
YR N KR R Gl A= N N
NRMERFEE  BRNEIH
BENETEBEERF4E
RE) 2 AR ANEARTBIR
17 R 2 4F B h1F 5 E2.5% 51
ESEZEREE —ZTTh
FERBEAATR_ZEZTAF
ZREEB,ETEHEER
BAEHEmEERRAGERZ
HEBA_EZNFEE - N
FEMEFERSFNBRF
EE BEREBOZEENR_-Z
ENFEBRRITHPRSE
“RF  FEZHEFERFENEF
ZHHBEEE DRI F R X
15% - N ABBRITEE
FEMEFEFE2% K& <A
EBRITREFRE N EFF
RY5%HE) -
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25 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

@

(continued)

The 2009 Notes are convertible into the Company's
ordinary shares at any time from the day falling on
the 180th day after the date of issue up to the
fifth business day prior to the maturity date at a
conversion price of $1.7014 per share (subject to
reset and adjustment). On 31 December 2010, in
accordance with the respective terms and conditions
of the 2009 Notes, the conversion price of the
2009 Notes was reset to $1.3778 per share.

During the year ended 30 September 2010, the
Company entered into a subscription agreement
with First Media Holdings, Limited (“First Media”)
pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue up
to $120,892,924 unlisted convertible notes (the
“First Media Notes”) and unlisted warrants (the
“First Media Warrants”) to purchase additional
11,380,942 ordinary shares of the Company.

On 8 July 2010, the two series of the First Media
Notes with principal amounts of $30,223,231
(“Series A Notes”) and $90,669,693 (“Series B
Notes"”) were issued to First Media.

The Series A Notes are non-interest bearing. The
Series B Notes bear interest at a rate of 7% per
annum. Interest is capitalised quarterly and payable
in kind when First Media exercises the conversion
option or redemption option.

25 TRIRER(E)

(@

(4&)
TETNEFEBUREZERE
THHEFIBORAEREZEHER
BRI BT RS X HEAE -
BER IR B RE S KRI7014T
(AT FET AR EHB AT
ZERKR N —ZTF+=
A=+—H —ZETNhEEE
JHREEERE_ZZENF
FBR2HBERIREEHEE
AR 1.37787T °

RBE-_ZT—ZFHLA=1H
IEF E - A 7A HEFirst Media
Holdings, Limited ([First
Medial) 5] 32 R BE 0 & © &
t REIRERITRSZE
120,892,924t 2 3k £ A &
A% Z 4% ([First MediaZ 1% |) LA
N 3 £ R K& F([First
Media iR IR & 1) - AZBINER
A11,380,9420% A 7 2 & @
B o

RZE—ZEF+LANB K&
% 9 Bl 430,223,231 &
90,669,6937C Z R % %] First
MediaZ & (AR Z4 | % [B
Z % E ) B 17 T First
Media °

ARG EZETFE - BRIIZE
BIRFEFNRI%E - f| BF
ZFE AR - WM First MediafT
FERENEDERAETY
ST e
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25 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

(b)

(continued)

The First Media Notes will be redeemed at 100% of
the principal amount plus uncapitalised interest
accrued. First Media is entitled at any time after the
first anniversary of the date of issue to redeem the
First Media Notes at an amount equal to the
principal amount of the First Media Notes subject to
redemption plus uncapitalised interest accrued.

The First Media Notes are convertible into the
Company’s ordinary shares at any time from the
date of issue of the First Media Notes to the
maturity date, which is five years from the date of
issue, at a conversion price of $1.3278 per share
(subject to reset and adjustments, and automatic
conversion features in accordance with the
subscription agreement with First Media).

On 13 December 2010, the Series A Notes with
principal amount of $30,223,231 was automatically
converted into 22,760,000 ordinary shares at a
conversion price of $1.3278 per ordinary share in
accordance with the subscription agreement with
First Media. The remaining balances were settled in
cash pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Series A Notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

25 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

(d)

A fixed charge over the entire amount of issued share
capital of the Company and guarantee given by
certain subsidiaries of the Company are pledged for
the 2009 Notes with outstanding principal amount
of $Nil at 31 December 2013 (31 December 2012:
$100,000,000). The aggregate net assets held by
those subsidiaries amounted to $Nil (31 December
2012: $7,107,000), consisting of purchased license
rights with carrying value of $Nil (31 December
2012: $305,189,000) which have been pledged to
the aforesaid convertible notes by means of a
debenture over all assets of such subsidiary which
owns the purchased license rights as of 31
December 2013.

As a result of the rights issue of the Company which
was completed in February 2012, the conversion
prices of Series B Notes and 2009 Notes were
adjusted to $0.7161 and $0.7431 respectively, and
the subscription prices of First Media Warrants and
warrants of 2009 Notes were adjusted to $0.7161
and $1.1110 respectively.

On 27 February 2012, the Company entered into a
redemption deed with First Media to provide the
Company with the rights, with the agreement of
First Media, to redeem the Series B Notes on 2
April 2012 or such a later day that the Company
and First Media may agree. The redemption price
comprised of (i) the outstanding principal amount of
the Series B Notes of $90,699,693, (ii) an amount of
$10,627,000 representing the premium on early
redemption, and (iii) all accrued interest.

25 TRIRER(E)

(d)

NEIAE 2B BITRAZE
EHEERERETHEB A ARR
HBEREAR-_T—=F1+
—AZt+—BHXEEBASEAL
Ex(ZE—=—F+=ZA=+
— [ :100,000,0007T) 7 =&
TENFEBZERR - ZE
WMEBARIFAEC FEERE
ARET(ZE——F+_H=
+ — B8 :7,107,0007T) (8 #& B&
HEAZET(ZE——F+=
A =+ — H :305,189,0007T)
ZEBARTE)  BE6BY
RZTE—=F+=-A=+—H
BEZEBAEFEZHB
RAIEPEEZEEF A
EAR L TR IR 4R 2 R o

HR AR E——F-_A%
ROHERE - Btk - BRIIEER
TEENFEBECBRERES
A #@ B £0.71617T }%0.7431
JC * M First MediasR B& # &
“EENFEBCRBRESE
ZRBEDRFAREE0.7161TT
%1.11107T °

R—ZTE——F-_A=++H8"
] B First Mediaz] 37 B& 5] 32
1B + LATEFirst Media[@ & 45
FATIENRN-_ZE——%FMmA
— Hsk A A] B First Media ] &
WEZREBHERBRSIZE
% - BREBTE(G) BRIIEER
< 8 & N % %90,699,693
T (NVERIRREERGEZ S
%610,627,0007T ; X (i) FT A& &
A o
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

25 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

(f)

(continued)

The terms of the Series B Notes have been
substantially modified by the redemption deed
dated 27 February 2012 to the effect that the
repayment amount would no longer be the principal
amount plus accrued interest, but rather principal,
plus redemption premium and accrued interest.
Accordingly, there was an increase in the one-off
finance costs (effective interest of $50,000,000 and
a one-off early redemption premium of
$10,627,000) for the fifteen months ended 31
December 2012.

On the same date, the fair value of the Series B
Notes was remeasured as a result of the
modification and a fair value gain of $40,937,000
was recognised in profit or loss for the fifteen
months ended 31 December 2012.

On 28 May 2012, the redemption of the Series B
Notes was completed and no effective interest on
the Series B Notes will be incurred thereafter.

On 5 February 2013, the Company entered into a
deed of undertaking with Smart Peace and Star
Group, which requested the Company to redeem
$25,000,000 and $12,500,000 respectively of the
principal amounts of the convertible notes, together
with any redemption premium and interests, to be
paid on 3 April 2013. The actual redemption of
these convertible notes issued to Smart Peace was
completed on 29 April 2013 and 30 April 2013 for
the principal amounts of $20,000,000 and
$5,000,000 respectively. The actual redemption of
these convertible notes issued to Star Group was
completed on 10 May 2013, 16 May 2013 and 24
May 2013 for the principal amounts of $5,000,000,
$5,000,000 and $2,500,000 respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

25 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

(h) As a result of the rights issue of the Company which
was completed in August 2013, the conversion price
of 2009 Notes was adjusted to $63.78, and the
subscription prices of First Media Warrants and
warrants of 2009 Notes were adjusted to $61.44
and $95.35 respectively.

(i)  The Company received redemption notices on 10 July
2013 from Smart Peace and Star Group to redeem
in full the remaining principals of $75,000,000 and
$37,500,000 on 15 August 2013 and 9 August
2013 respectively. The actual redemption of these
convertible notes was completed on 9 August 2013.
The redemption amount comprised of the
outstanding principal amount of $112,500,000 and
redemption premium and accrued interest of
$20,556,000.

26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 13 June 2004 (“the Scheme”) whereby the
directors of the Company are authorised, at their
discretion, to invite any full time or part time employees
and directors, consultants and advisers of the Group, to
take up options at $1 each to subscribe for ordinary
shares of the Company. The Scheme shall be effective for
a period of ten years ending on 13 June 2014. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company.

25 TRIRER(E)

26

(h)

ARABIR-_ZE—=FE\A%
R —ETZNFEE 2]
X B A E63.787T » MFirst
Mediaid IKIEFE M — ST NF
EERBREBCREEN D
A3 % £61.447T %2 95.357C °
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) The terms and conditions of the share
options granted that existed during the

26

BREZFRXS(E)

(@ TIBAREBE—T—=%
+-A=+—HIEEER

year ended 31 December 2013 are as REBREZBEHERR
follows: 1% % -
Number of Number of
options options
Adjusted/  outstanding outstanding
original as at 31 as at
exercise December 31 December
Date granted Exercise period price 2013 2012
R-B—Z=f R-_T—_-F
+-—A=+—H +t-—A=+—H
BT KRITEBRE KTEERE
RHBH TEH RiTEME L §=| 2 A
(Note)
(B 5E)
Options granted to directors
RyEszBERE
6 March 2007 6 March 2007 to 13 $55.1534/ — 1,423,680
June 2014 $2.05
—EELF —ZTt+F=ABE 5515341/
= RA/XH —E-NF 2.057T
NAT=H
15 March 2007 15 March 2007 to 13 $55.1534/ 208,467 14,236,842
June 2014 $2.05
—ETLF ZETEF=A+AHA 5515347
=HA+HAA Z-T—UF 2.057T
NAT=H
21 December 2009 7 January 2010 to 13 $43.8576/ 18,585 3,807,690
June 2014 $1.63
—ZETAF —E-TF—-A+H 43.85767L
T-AZ+—H ZEZE-OF 1.637T
NAT=H
21 December 2009 15 January 2010 to 13 $43.8576/ 18,585 2,538,460
June 2014 $1.63
— “T-TF—-A+HA 438576L/
+t—A=+—H E-FT-@OF 1.637C
AA+T=H
Total share options 245,637 22,006,672

REix A B
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 26 BREXIREH(E)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(@) (continued) (@ (&)

Note: The exercise prices and number of outstanding share MEaE: MARITEBRECITEERE
options were adjusted upon the completion of the rights BEERZZE—=FN\AREH
issue in the proportion of five rights shares for every one E—RBARMDERR A RKRM
existing share in August 2013. AR AR 19 2 bE B HE 1T AR SE A 1%

Pk -
(b) The number and weighted average exercise (b) THABKREZEB RN
prices of share options are as follows: HEYHTEE:
Year ended Fifteen months ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
BE_FT—=% HE_ZT—_F
+-ZHA=+—BHLEE +T-A=+—HLETHHEA
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
hn#ESE 1y 5
fTEE BEREZHHE T E BREHE
$ $
T 7T

Outstanding at RZE—=%F

1 January 2013/ —A—H/
1 October 2011 —F——F
+HA—H
®ARITE 0.76 22,006,672 2.39 15,961,862
Effect of rights Rz E
issues 22.19 228,711 0.91 24,556,699
Effect of share &1p e ftz
consolidation Fa 13.99 (19,411,857) = =
Forfeited B8 I 1.39 (2,577,889) 110 (18,511,889)
Outstanding R+=H
at 31 December =+—H
® AR IT 8 53.44 245,637 0.76 22,006,672
Exercisable R+—A
at 31 December =+—H
AT {E 53.44 245,637 0.76 22,006,672
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) (continued)

(9,

The number of share options forfeited during the
year is 2,577,889 (fifteen months ended 31
December 2012: 18,511,889). No options were
exercised during the year ended 31 December 2013
(fifteen months ended 31 December 2012: $Nil). The
share options outstanding as at 31 December 2013
and 2012 are all exercisable.

The share options outstanding at 31 December
2013 had a weighted average remaining contractual
life of 0.5 years (2012: 1.5 years).

Fair value of share options and assumptions
The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on the Black-Scholes pricing model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as an
input into this model.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

26 REZFAXE(E)
(c) BREZAFERER

(continued) (&)
2010
—_T-FF
Fair value of share options and BREZATERRS
assumptions
Fair value at grant date REEEBZATE $0.437C
Share price & B $1.547¢
Exercise price TEE $1.637C
Expected volatility (based on the TEEKIE(RBEBEARKREEESERN
historical volatility of the share prices ¥ & HA] 2 T8 83 6 Bl 2 HAPR (A
of the Company over the period that ZE ® KigstE
is equal to the expected life before
the grant date) 50.72%
Option life (based on the validity period B % # 4F &f
of the options) (RIZBERESXEFTE) 4.5 years4F
Expected dividends FEHIR B 0.32%
Risk-free interest rate (based on Hong £ & k& Fi &
Kong Exchange Fund Notes) (REBEEAINIEESEZRHE 1.54%

The expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility of the share prices of the Company over
the period that is equal to the expected life before
the grant date. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

BHKEDREQARKRERE
MERKEEE BRI Z B F 5
ZHRAZELKEE e
BHIR B Ty IR AR I S B AT
8- IBHAERRESH
NFEGBFENERTE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(@) Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated

27 EXNGEE

(a) Eﬁ%ﬂﬁi*ﬁﬁZ%ifl

%

@A

1\/\

d5 3¢
$ JIELI:II\

A 4R 45

w3 A

= *"%%#@J%

AT 18

AR BR oy
ﬁ%ZfJﬁE%ZECm

= N/
/\

statement of changes in equity. Details of the 4 K *B E/‘ FNEFRZE 2
changes in the Company’s individual components of £ |
equity between the beginning and the end of the
year are set out below:
The Company |
Equity Retained
Capital component of earnings/
Share Share redemption Capital Contributed  convertible Warrant (accumulated
Note capital  premium reserve reserve surplus notes reserve losses) Total
BAAHE THEER DRESE RIERN/
k3 BF  RHiRE HE  EAHE EHERR  2EARS E  (RHEE) @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T T T T
At 1 October 2011 R-%--%+A-H 72,879 991,135 95 14,759 59,382 54,371 5,392 101179 1,299,192
Loss for the period AEHBE — — — — — - - (860,099)  (860,099)
Other comprehensive income 74 £ f & it 2 E 18 2
for the period — — — — — — — — —
Total comprehensive income AHH2ARKLE
for the period — — — — — — — (860,099)  (860,099)
Dividends declared in respect 3 FEEERZKE 27(b)(i),
of the previous year 27(c)(ii) 527 1,440 — — — — — (1,404) 563
Dividends declared in respect St AHIEE R 2R 2 27(b)(i),
of the current period 27(c)(ii) 329 24 — — — — — (1,170) (817)
Issue of new shares upon IR E5 B 1737 ik
rights issue 27(c) i) 291,927 (11,256) - - - - - - 280,67
At 31 December 2012 R=¥--%+-A=+-8 365,662 981,343 95 14,759 59,382 54,371 5,392 (761,494) 719,510
At 1 January 2013 R-¥-=%-F-H 365,662 981,343 95 14,759 59,382 54,371 5,392 (761,494) 719,510
Loss for the year AEEEER - - - - - - —  (1,215,205) (1,215,205)
Other comprehensive income A4 [ E b 2EIE %
for the year - - - - = = = = —
Total comprehensive income AFE2HBRBE
for the year - - - - - - —  (1,215,205) (1,215,205)
Issue of new shares upon it R 5 1T it
rights issues 27(c)(iii) 402,229 111,586 - - - - - - 513,815
Capital reorganisation BAER 27(c)(iv) (329,096) — — — — — — 329,096 —
Early redemption of REBOAAREE 25(g),
convertible notes 25(i) — — — — — (54,371) — 51,371 (3,000)
At 31 December 2013 R=¥-=%+-A=+-H 438,795 1,092,929 95 14,759 59,382 - 5,392 (1,596,232) 15,120
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(b) Dividends

27 BERHEEE)

(b) B2
(i) Dividends payable to equity (i) BREEEEMLT
shareholders of the Company REFFEAZRE
attributable to the year
Fifteen
Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
85E BHZE
—F—-=fF —_T—_F
+-A=+—-H +-A=+—H
IEEE t+EREA
$'000 $'000
T F 7
Interim dividend declared B E & & & 1+ # B A%
and paid of $Nil (2012: BEREW(ZE—
0.025 cent) per share — 4 :0.0251l) — 1,170
Final dividend proposed REHRREEZZIRN
after the balance sheet REARR B RZL
date of $Nil (2012: $Nil) —F——-F:F
per share lr) — —
— il 170

Interim scrip dividends declared during the
fifteen months ended 31 December 2012 were
offered to shareholders with cash option.
Details of dividends paid are disclosed in note
27(c)(ii).

The directors do not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2013 (fifteen months ended 31
December 2012: $Nil).

REBEE-_ZE——F+=A
=+—HIET+RABEATIR
R B 2R HERKRE -
18 B% 3R AT A8 2 W B3R
© o BENKREFBRH
270 & -

EETRARMNEEZ
E—=f+-HA=+—H
EERZRARE (BE
—EF T A==
AiE+R@A: TM) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b) Dividends (continued)

(ii) Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial
period, approved and paid during the

year:

27 BERHEIEE)

(b) BB (&)
(ii) /B 7 _E A8 BY B B [E]
fTAEREFFALZ
BE REABER

At :

Fifteen
months ended
31 December

2013 2012

BHE

—EF——4F

+=-—A=+—8

—g—-=% IE+HEA

$'000 $'000

Tt T
Final dividend in respect of A F A #E # &Ik 1 /B
the previous financial i Y @ A v
period, approved and paid RHIR B &R Z
during the year of $Nil (BEZZE——F+
(fifteen months ended Z“A=+—Hi1L+A

31 December 2012: & A : 0.031L)
$0.03 cent) per share — 1,404
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Notes to the Financial Statements 75 #H7%H:E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

27 BERHEEE)

As a result of the share consolidation effective on 9 July
2013 whereby every ten issued and unissued shares of par

value of US$0.01

each was consolidated into one

consolidated share of par value of US$0.1 each, the
Company’s authorised ordinary share capital was
decreased to 1,000,000,000.

() Share capital (0 BX
2013 2012
—EB-=f —E-—F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
igng S4=! k] R &E ik
Note ‘000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
it 5% T Fr T T8
Authorised: B E
Ordinary shares of SREMBIET,/
US$0.1/US$0.01 each 0.01%TZ
3L (i) 1,000,000 780,000 10,000,000 780,000
Issued and fully paid: ERETRERE:
At 1 January 2013/ RZZ—=%
1 October 2011 —-A—B/
—T——F
+A—H 4,687,981 365,662 934,340 72,879
Shares issued as scrip ERARRK BB
dividend Z Bt (i — — 10,980 856
Issue of new shares upon it ik B 2 1731 1%
rights issues (iii) 937,596 402,229 3,742,661 291,927
Capital reorganisation P A& 48 (iv) (4,219,183) (329,096) = —
Share consolidation Rina o (v) (843,836) — — —
At 31 December R+-—A=+—AH 562,558 438,795 4,687,981 365,662
Notes: B 5
(i) Decrease in authorised share capital (i) ZEEBREXRD

HRENEHR_E—=Ft
ANBAER BUETREK
E{E0.01XT 2 EHITRARE
TROEAHA—REECIE
TLZAMRD - AR ZAE
EBEADR D E
1,000,000,000/% -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Shares issued as scrip dividend

On 7 October 2011, the Company issued and allotted
1,325,391 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each at $1.072 per
share to the shareholders who received shares of the
Company in lieu of cash for the 2011 interim dividend
pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme announced by the
Company on 24 May 2011. These shares rank pari passu
with the existing ordinary shares of the Company in all
respects.

On 16 May 2012, the Company issued and allotted
5,435,641 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each at $0.1006
per share to the shareholders who received shares of the
Company in lieu of cash for the 2011 final dividend
pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme announced by the
Company on 28 December 2011. These shares rank pari
passu with the existing ordinary shares of the Company in
all respects.

On 4 July 2012, the Company issued and allotted
4,219,057 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each at $0.0838
per share to the shareholders who received shares of the
Company in lieu of cash for the 2012 interim dividend
pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme announced by the
Company on 30 April 2012. These shares rank pari passu
with the existing ordinary shares of the Company in all
respects.

Issue of new shares upon rights issues

On 10 February 2012, the Company completed a rights
issue pursuant to which 3,742,660,840 shares of US$0.01
each were issued in the proportion of four rights shares
for every one ordinary share at a subscription price of
$0.08 per rights share. These newly issued shares rank
pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary
shares. As a result of the rights issue, total consideration,
net of related expenses, of $280,671,000 was received. In
addition, $291,927,000 was credited to share capital and
$11,256,000 was debited to the share premium account.
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27 BERHEIEE)
(0 BFE)

M it

(i)

(iii)

(%)

EBUBRRESRTZERG
R=_ZT——F+A+tH 27
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Notes to the Financial Statements 75 #H7%H:E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Issue of new shares upon issue
(continued)

On 27 March 2013, the Company completed a rights
issue pursuant to which 468,798,074 shares of US$0.01
each were issued in the proportion of one rights share for
every one ordinary share at a subscription price of $0.35
per rights share. These newly issued shares rank pari
passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares. As
a result of the rights issue, total consideration, net of
related expenses, of $158,587,000 was received. In
addition, $36,566,000 was credited to share capital and
$122,021,000 was credited to the share premium
account.

rights

On 7 August 2013, the Company completed a rights
issue pursuant to which 468,798,070 shares of US$0.1
each were issued in the proportion of five rights share for
every one ordinary share at a subscription price of $0.78
per rights share. These newly issued shares rank pari
passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares. As
a result of the rights issue, total consideration, net of
related expenses, of $355,228,000 was received. In
addition, $365,663,000 was credited to share capital and
$10,435,000 was debited to the share premium account.

Capital reorganization

On 26 February 2013, the number of the Company’s
ordinary shares decreased by 4,219,182,674 to
468,798,074 as a result of a capital reorganization which
comprised: (i) share consolidation whereby every ten
issued and unissued shares of par value of US$0.01 each
was consolidated into one consolidated share of par value
of US$0.1 each; and (ii) reduction of issued share capital
of the Company by the cancellation of US$0.09 on each
of the then issued consolidated shares such that the
nominal value of each issued consolidated share was
reduced from US$0.1 to US$0.01.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Share consolidation

On 9 July 2013, the number of the Company’s ordinary
shares decreased by 843,836,533 to 93,759,615 as a
result of a share consolidation whereby every ten issued
and unissued shares of par value of US$0.01 each was
consolidated into one consolidated share of par value of
US$0.1 each.

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the
balance sheet date are set out in note 26(a) to the
financial statements.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium
account of the Company are distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed the
Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due.

General reserve

According to the articles of association of the
subsidiaries established in the PRC, the PRC
subsidiaries are required to transfer at least
10% of their profit after taxation, as
determined under PRC accounting regulations,
to the general reserve fund until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
The transfer to this reserve must be made
before the distribution of a dividend to equity
shareholders. The general reserve fund can be
used to make good previous years' losses, if
any.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iii) Capital reserve

Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) which was completed on 17
November 2003 to rationalise the Group
structure in the preparation for the listing of
the Company’s shares on The Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Company became the holding company of the
Group. The excess of the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company over the
aggregate of the nominal value of the share
capital of the subsidiaries which the Company
acquired under the Reorganisation was
transferred to the capital reserve.

The capital reserve also comprises the fair value
of the number of unexercised share options
granted to directors of the Company and an
employee of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for share based payments in note 1(s)(iii).

(iv) Exchange reserve

)

(vi)

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
subsidiaries in the PRC. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 1(w).

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the excess of
aggregate of the net asset value of subsidiaries
acquired by the Company over the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company
pursuant to the Reorganisation.

Warrant reserve

The warrant reserve represents the excess of
proceeds from the issue of the convertible
notes over the amount initially recognised as
the liability component of the convertible notes
and the redemption call and put options.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(e) Distributability of reserves

(f)

At 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was $Nil (2012:
$353,848,000), subject to the restriction stated in
note 27(d)(i) above. After the balance sheet date,
the directors do not recommend a payment of final
dividend (2012: $Nil).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, to meet its financial
obligations and continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure by
reviewing its net debt-to-equity ratio and cash flow
requirements, taking into account its future financial
obligations and commitments. For this purpose, the
Group defines net debts as total borrowings less
pledged deposits.

There has been no change in the Group's capital
management practices as compared to prior
periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 75 #H7%H:E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 27 EXRfEEE
(f) Capital management (continued) f) EXEHEZ)
The net debt-to-equity ratio at 31 December 2013 RZE—=FR_T—_F+
and 2012 are as follows: ZRA=t+—H - FEEHE#ER
S 3 (I

2013 2012

—E-=% —E——F

Note $'000 $'000

B 7% Fix T 7

Bank overdraft RITEX 22 — 19,247

Secured bank loans HIRFETER 22 — 397,981
Mortgage bank loans RBIRITER 22 — 11,912
Loans from shareholders KERRZER 23(a) — 12,697
Other loans HAth & 5% 23(b) 42,232 62,998

Convertible notes A R R R 25 —_ 124,501
Total borrowings HEE 42,232 629,336
Less: Pledged deposits B B TE R 19 —_ (112,113)
Net debts FERE 42,232 517,223
Total equity EiaEE 851,678 987,608
Net debt-to-equity ratio FEEEERLLE 4.96% 52.37%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are NG e C = NGIE i  a
subject to externally imposed capital requirements. SNERHE AN 2 B ANFE FEFTIRIE ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group’s financial management policies and practices
are described below.

(@) Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
accounts receivable, bank deposits and
prepayments. The Group maintains a defined credit
policy and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

(i) Accounts receivable

The credit terms offered by the Group are in
accordance with the terms specified in each
agreement entered into with the relevant
customers, ranging from three to fifteen
months. Subject to negotiations, extended
credit terms are available for certain major
customers with well-established operating
records. An ageing analysis of the receivables
is prepared on a regular basis and is closely
monitored to minimise any credit risk
associated with these receivables.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk s
influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate also has an influence on
credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the
balance sheet date, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 42% (2012:
77%) and 77% (2012: 95%) of the total
accounts receivable was due from the Group's
largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively. The Group does not provide any
other guarantees which expose the Group to
credit risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(@) Credit risk (continued)
(i) Accounts receivable (continued)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of
the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
accounts receivable are set out in note 17(a).

(ii) Bank deposits

Cash is deposited with financial institutions
with sound credit ratings that are located
where the Group companies are operated and
the Group has exposure limit to any single
financial institution. Given their high credit
ratings, management does not expect any of
these financial institutions will fail to meet their

obligations.

The maximum exposure to credit

represented by the carrying amount of each

financial asset in the balance sheet.

(b) Liquidity risk

The treasury function of the Group is arranged
centrally to cover expected cash demands. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
funding lines from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and

longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
and the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest
date the Group and the Company can be required

to pay.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

28 2T AHE)
(b) KHELEEE

)

The Group x5
2013
—EF-=
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted or on less than less than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
EHRBEHRZ —ERFER —FHEE MEERE
RESHE HeRELE EREF MERN AER HEHE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fx SO F Fx SO F
Accrual and other payables st B AR E R
HR 179,564 179,564 179,564 — — —
Other loans H B 42,232 45,090 45,090 — — —
221,796 224,654 224,654 — — —
2012
—T——F
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted or on less than less than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
BNARERZ —FRIR S mE®RE
EHe® Hen2am EPds M E R AER AF#
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Fr T T Fr T
Convertible notes AR R 124,501 182,751 182,751 — —
Secured bank loans BHEMRTER 397,981 409,797 393,271 12,143 4,383 —
Mortgage bank loans RBRTER 11,912 15,099 1,588 1,588 4,765 7,158
Accrual and other payables st B AR EMmER
A 335,493 335,493 335,493 — — —
Loan from a shareholder RE-BRRZER 12,697 13,133 13,133 — —
Other loans Hi B 62,998 65,615 65,615 — — —
945,582 1,021,888 991,851 13,731 9,148 7,158
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28 @M IA(E)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBELEEZ
The Company 4+ 5]
2013
—EF-=
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted or on less than less than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
EHRBEHRZ —ERFER —ERE MEERE
RESHE HeRELE ERE MERN AER HEHE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
S5 I Fx S5 I Fx

Accruals and other payables — FExT & A K H b B
A 13,796 13,796 13,796 — — —

13,796 13,796 13,796 = = =

Financial guarantees issued: BEHZUWBER:

— Maximum amount —BREREE
guaranteed — — — — — —
2012
—E-CF
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted or on less than less than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
AHRBERZ —FERER —F#E MmE®RE
FEeE RenELH EPd MEX 1FRN hF&
$000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
T Fr T T Fr St
Convertible notes AR R 124,501 182,751 182,751 — — —
Accruals and other payables — FEFF & F K £ b
A 14,997 14,997 14,997 — — —
139,498 197,748 197,748 — — —

Financial guarantees issued: BEHZUBER:

— Maximum amount — BREREE
guaranteed 443,089 — — — — —
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28 €RETHEH(E)

(c) Interest rate risk (c) 7= pE
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through MEEHEFTEEE(EER
the impact of rate changes on interest bearing FENEEF)EBKEE @£
borrowings which are subject to predominantly SEEEMNERR SEZ
floating interest rates. The Group monitors closely its DEEHEMNERR - gtEA
interest rate exposure. In respect of income earning WAZMBEEERGTEITBE
financial assets and interest bearing financial BEME  TREJINRNBEH
liabilities, the following table indicates their effective ARHBHEE 2 HFEKE
interest rates at the balance sheet date and the HAUREERE) ZEEF
periods in which they reprice or the maturity dates, & o
if earlier.
The Group X5
2013
—E—=%
Effective Within One to Two to More than

Fixed/ interest one two five five

floating rate year years years years Total

T8 FR S —ER —ENE WERAE ZREAE gt

% $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
%  ¥x%  Fm  Fx  Fm T
Cash and cash Floating 0.42 4,994 — — — 4,994
equivalents

RekREeEEY =
Other loans Floating 6.77 42,232 — — — 42,232
H B & F 8
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28 @M TIA(E)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (0 HMEREE)
The Group (continued) XE=E
2012
Effective Within One to Two to More than
Fixed/ interest one two five five
floating rate year years years years Total
B/ 28 i PR —FRN —EZEWFE WMERAF ZREHF e Et
% $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
% T T 7 T T ST
Cash and cash Floating 0.57 55,077 — — — 55,077
equivalents
RekREEEY N
Bank loans Floating 5.81 386,225 9,788 7,937 5,943 409,893
RITER ER
Bank overdrafts Floating 2.54 19,247 — — — 19,247
RITEX B
Loans from Floating 5.00 12,697 — — — 12,697

shareholders

KEBRRZER pE

Other loans Floating 4.43 62,998 — — — 62,998
H b &5 PN
Convertible notes Fixed 33.73 e 103,658 20,843 = 124,501
Qe 3 E B
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

(9]

28 2T AHE)
(o MEREEE)

The Company 4+ 5]
2013
—E—=%
Effective Within One to Two to More than
Fixed/ interest one two five five
floating rate year years years years Total
TR ER BEF = —FR —EWNE WELE ZREHE st
% $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
% F T Tt F T F T Tt
Convertible notes Fixed — — — — — —
AR E R E 8
2012
—E——-%F
Effective Within One to Two to More than
Fixed/ interest one two five five
floating rate year years years years Total
EE/RE BB A —FA" —ZEZEMF WERF SRAEF @t
% $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
% T 7T T T 7T T 7T T
Convertible notes Fixed 33.73 — 103,658 20,843 — 124,501
AR B 7E B
(i) Sensitivity analysis () ®EESH
Assuming that the interest rates increased/ BREMER_FT—=F+
decreased by 100 basis points (2012: 100 basis “A=t+—RALt#AST
points) at 31 December 2013 and the changes FI00EE (ZF——%F:
had been applied to the exposure to interest 1004 &) - Exﬁ@)ﬁ
rate risk for financial instruments in existence ERANRZAER S A
at that date, with all other variables held H P H e 2 F T}—WM :

constant, the impact on the Group’s loss after
tax and total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company is not expected
to be material. The exposure to interest rate
risk as referred to above represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates during the
year from the balance sheet date until the next
annual balance sheet date.

SMI Culture Group Holdings Limited 2XX{LEBEERAR A

GRS URESES
FAE EHITEY
SEZKEREBERRR
AR B ARG s
RMEBKEATE - L
SRt 2 B R L R 4R B
BEEHNERHBEHR
RET-FEREHR
LEERREHRAEE
E2) A



Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Foreign currency risk

The Group’s primary foreign currency exposures
arise mainly from its media services and advertising
related services in the PRC. During the year, total
exchange loss mainly arising from the translation of
financial statements of subsidiaries in the PRC
amounted to $588,000 (2012: $750,000) for the
Group, which has been dealt with as an equity
movement.

The Group is also exposed to foreign currency risk
in respect of its Renminbi denominated cash and
cash equivalents and receivables.

The PRC government imposes various controls on
the convertibility of Renminbi into foreign currencies
and, in certain cases, the remittance of currency out
of mainland China. Shortages in the availability of
foreign currencies may restrict the ability of PRC
subsidiaries of the Group to remit sufficient foreign
currencies to pay dividends or other payments to the
Group, or otherwise satisfy their foreign currency
denominated obligations, if any. Approval from
relevant governmental authorities is required where
Renminbi is to be converted into foreign currency
and remitted out of Mainland China to pay capital
expenses such as the repayment of bank
borrowings denominated in foreign currencies.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(e) Fair value measurement

Fair value hierarchy
(i) Financial instruments measured at fair value

instruments
December

The Group has no financial
measured at fair value as at 31
2013 and 2012.

(1) Fair values of financial instruments carried
at other than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2013
and 2012.

29 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

()

Disposal of subsidiaries

During the year, the Group disposed of its entire
equity interests in certain subsidiaries to
independent third parties at an aggregate
consideration of $25,101,373 and recognised a net
loss on disposal of these subsidiaries of $9,123,154.
Of which, a subsidiary which held a property in
Mainland China was sold at a consideration of
RMB19,000,000 (equivalent to $23,786,899) and
resulted in a gain on disposal of $2,715,306.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

29 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Disposals of Triangle Marketing Services
Company Limited, Yo Harvest Limited and
Joyful Times Limited

During the fifteen months ended 31 December
2012, the Group disposed of its entire interests in
Triangle Marketing Services Company Limited, Yo
Harvest Limited and Joyful Times Limited to
independent third parties. A gain on disposal of
$13,036,000 arose from these disposals.

Disposal of Rich State Media Enterprises
Limited

On 22 October 2012, the Group completed the
disposal of its 51% interest in a subsidiary, Rich
State Media Enterprises Limited, which held 45%
interest in an outdoor media advertising business in
the PRC. A loss on disposal of this subsidiary of
$58,057,000 was recorded in profit or loss for the
fifteen months ended 31 December 2012.

29 HEKMBAT(£Z)

(ii)

(iii)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

29 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 29 HEMBAS(#Z
(iv) The aggregate net assets of the above subsidiaries (iv) LiaifBARN S ELE B
at their respective dates of disposal are as follows: ZEEFEEBUOT:
Year ended Fifteen
31 December months ended
2013 31 December 2012
BE H=E
—EF—=5F —_F—=
+=RA=+—H +-A=+—H”
I IEt+EEA
$'000 $'000
T T T
Fixed assets B F & E 34,582 10,628
Intangible assets EmEEE 439 3,421
Interest in an associate RN—REBE NG 2R — 73,079
Other assets Hih&E 380 =
Accounts and other receivables & I BR 3t & H 4b & U 5% 18 192,710 421
Cash and cash equivalents HREeRREFEY 15,748 S
Bank loans RITER (1,401) (7,853)
Accruals and other payables FET & B K H h FE A~ R IE (226,845) (1,234)
Tax payable FET 1B (9,573) (85)
Non-controlling interest FEIE I M = (2,079) (591)
Deferred tax liabilities BELERIBEEE — (565)
Disposal of net assets PESEERLEEEFE
attributable to the Group 3,961 77,221
Transfer of general reserve to 7 & M} & 2 A] B 15
profit or loss upon disposal —MRHEEREER
of subsidiaries (666) —
Transfer of capital reserve to A & BT B A B A
profit or loss upon disposal of & 7N {6 5 4% B = 18 2%
subsidiaries 8,519 —
Realisation of exchange R EW B AR R
differences upon disposal of M EEER
subsidiaries 22,410 —
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEME QA EIE (9,123) (45,021)
Total consideration @BRE 25,101 32,200
Net cash inflow arisingon HEELXEZTELFEAN
disposals: FE:
Cash consideration, in aggregate IR & (B 4258 21,980 32,200
Bank loans disposed of BHERITER 1,401 7,853
Cash and cash equivalents BEHERSRESEED
disposed of (15,748) —
Net cash inflow from disposal of H&WEB QAR 2R 2% A
subsidiaries 3 58 7,633 40,053
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

30 COMMITMENTS 30 KiE
(a) Commitments under operating leases () E=HERIE
At 31 December 2013, the total future minimum RZE—=F+-_A=+—
lease payments under non-cancellable operating A SERECARELSEME
leases are payable as follows: EMAXNZARKERE
RIBEFBEWIT -
The Group
£H
2013 2012
—¥-=F —ZT—=8
$'000 $'000
T Tm
Within one year —FNR 1,500 9,205
After one year but within —FBERFA
five years — 14,376
After five years hF 18 — 264
1,500 23,845
The Group leases a number of properties under SERBEKEHEEHERAZE
operating leases. The leases typically run for an M- ZEHE-—RERT
initial period of one to five years, with an option to —FERF BRENR - ER
renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. FTEGRRBENER %%
None of the leases includes contingent rentals. HEBMIBREIAES -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

30 RIE(E
(b) BEXRKIE
EEN-_E—=F+-A=+

30 COMMITMENTS (continued)
(b) Capital commitments
The Group’s capital commitments outstanding as at

31 December 2013 not provided for in the financial —BRETBERERAEEZ
statements were as follows: REBERAEDNT:
The Group
58
2013 2012
—g-=5 —g—=
$'000 $'000
Fx F 7T
Contracted for SR 23,691 22,882
Authorised but not EEEBMATHN
contracted for — —
23,691 22,882
() Other commitments (c) HthxiE

BREBRR_ZTZTZTF
NA=Z+AKRZZEZ—F

(i) Pursuant to the terms of the relevant (i)
agreements dated 30 August 2000 and 30

March 2001, the Group agreed to procure the
required funding to a production house for the
production of 6,000 hours of television
programs. During the year ended 31
December 2013, the Group did not procure
any funding for the production of such
television programs (2012: $Nil). The total
funding required for the remaining 5,713 hours
(2012: 5,713 hours) is to be determined when
individual projects for television program
production are agreed and therefore is not
quantifiable as at 31 December 2013.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

30 COMMITMENTS (continued)
() Other commitments (continued)

(i)

(continued)

Pursuant to a supplementary agreement dated
11 November 2002 to the above agreements,
should the production house not eventually
receive the agreed funding in full, (1) the
Group shall pay the shortfall in full, following
which the Group will be entitled to the rights
in relation to the relevant television program. If
the Group cannot be entitled to such rights
after paying the shortfall, the television
production house shall repay the shortfall to
the Group together with interest at a rate of
10% one year after the first round
broadcasting of the television program; or (2)
the Group shall pay an amount up to 15% of
the shortfall, following which the production
house will be entitled to the rights in relation
to the relevant television program.

30 RIE(E

() HtbmiE=E)

(i)

(&)

RELIHBER_-_ZZ
“HFt+—At—HZ@R
Wk WERIERR &
BRI E W R 2 BB E B
T WEEAMEZ
RRRBELERKBESR
HEEGREBR ZERM -
fief 5 5= B 0 32 5 2 R R
RETREZERHER -
ERBERAABER
RIEERERESE B &
B—F 28 (Z10EF
BIEETRE  HQE
BRI ZRNERR
T8 Z215% @ HRREHERT]
KEEEBERMEZ
REF
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Financial guarantees issued
As at 31 December 2013, the Company has not issued
any guarantee to banks in respect of banking facilities
granted to its subsidiaries.

32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@) Material transactions between the Group and other
related parties during the year ended 31 December

2013 are as follows:

(i)  On 28 December 2006, the Group entered into
three leasing agreements with Winco
(Dongguan) Paper Products Co, Ltd (“Winco")
to lease three properties located in Dongguan,
the PRC, at an annual rental of RMB1,032,000
from 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2009. It
was renewed on 31 December 2009 at an
annual rental of RMB1,014,000 from 1 January
2010 to 31 December 2012. It was renewed
again on 1 January 2013 at an annual rental of
RMB1,014,000 from 1 January 2013 to 31
December 2015. Winco is a wholly foreign
owned enterprise established in the PRC and
controlled by Dr Wong Yu Hong, Philip, a
director of the Company until 21 March 2012,
and Dr Leung Anita Fung Yee Maria, a director
of the Company until 1 September 2013.
Rental expenses paid and payable to Winco
amounted to $423,000 for the year ended 31
December 2013 (fifteen months ended 2012:
$1,558,000).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(@) (continued)

(i) On 5 March 2013, the Group entered into a
leasing agreement with Hanny Group
Management Limited (“Hanny”) to lease a
property located at Kwun Tong, Hong Kong, at
an annual rental of $600,000 from 22
September 2012 to 17 July 2014. Hanny is a
fellow subsidiary of Loyal Concept Limited,
which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Rental expenses paid and payable to
Hanny amounted to $600,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (fifteen months
ended 2012: $165,000).

(i)  On 6 December 2012, the Group entered into
a loan agreement with Loyal Concept Limited.
The principal of the loan was $8,700,000. The
loan was unsecured and interest-bearing at
prime rate per annum. The loan was repaid
during the year.

The directors are of the opinion that all the above
transactions (i) to (iii) were carried out on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary course of
business.

In addition to the above transactions, details of the
Group's amounts due from and to related parties
are disclosed in notes 18 and 23.

32 EXHEBALIXSE

(a)

(#&)

Gy RZE—=%=AHAHB -
SEHFBEERERAR
AR ([RE ) ET— 1%
M4 UHEMRES
BEc—HYE 48
% /600,000 ' AH=-F
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions
The related party transactions as disclosed in note
32(a) are in existence or entered into during the year
ended 31 December 2013 which falls under the
definition of connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. These transactions fall
under Rules 14A.33(3)(c) and 14A.65(4) of the
Listing Rules and are exempted from the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements of the Listing Rules.

(c) Key management personnel remuneration
During the vyear, the remuneration for key
management personnel being short-term employee
benefits amounted to $2,969,000 (2012: credit of
$13,808,000) as disclosed in note 6. The
remuneration of directors and senior management is
determined by the Remuneration Committee having
regard to market trends and the performance and
responsibilities of each individual.

33 PENDING LITIGATION

An action was commenced by a business partner against
a subsidiary of the Group in December 2013 in Beijing
People’'s Court in respect of an alleged settlement of
sums payable to this business partner of approximately
RMB29,460,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$37,400,000), plus interest thereon.

The directors have confirmed that no settlement had
been reached by the parties and no judgement on the
quantum of damages had been made against the Group
in respect of the legal action. The Group has sought legal
advice from its legal counsel on the merits of the claim.
But as of the date of approval of these financial
statements, the possible outcome of the legal action is
still uncertain.

The directors are of the view that the quantum of the
ultimate cost and damages (if any) to be incurred by the
Group will not have a material adverse impact on the
Group'’s financial position.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

34 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

@

On 6 December 2013, the Board proposed to change
the name of the Company from Qin Jia Yuan Media
Services Company Limited to SMI Culture Group
Holdings Limited. The change of name was
approved in an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company on 10 January 2014 and took effect on
16 January 2014 wupon the issuance of the
Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name by
the Registrar of Companies in the Cayman Islands.

On 21 February 2014, a loan agreement was entered
into between the Company and SMI Corporation
Limited (“SMI Corporation”) in relation to the
provision of facilities of up to $50,000,000. SMI
Corporation is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Interest on the outstanding amount of
the loans drawn under these facilities shall accrue at
the rate of 10% per annum. Interest shall be
payable monthly in arrears unless otherwise agreed
between the Company and SMI Corporation.

3 REMKEEIR

(@

RZE-—=F+-HAKB &
EERBF R AR ZEBAIQIN
Jia  Yuan Media Services
Company Limited )+ % 15 82 iRk
AR A AIE R RISM
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HEBIMBEERE T —
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

35 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
The key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical
accounting judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies are described below.

(@) Provision for impairment of intangible

assets

The management estimates the recoverable amount
of intangible assets based primarily on the value-in-
use calculation. In addition, the Group carries out a
review on intangible assets at each balance sheet
date and provision is made when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Determination as to
whether and how much an asset is impaired
involves management estimates and judgements
such as future selling price, discount rate used in
discounting the projected cash flow and customer
profile. Whilst the impairment reviews and
calculations are based on assumptions that are
consistent with the Group’s business plan, selling
price is affected by a wide range of global and
domestic factors which are beyond the control of
the Group. Favourable change to some assumptions
may allow the Group to avoid the need to impair
any assets in these years, whereas unfavourable
changes may cause the assets to become impaired.

(b) Useful lives of fixed assets and intangible
assets
The Group estimates the useful lives of property,
plant and equipment and intangible asset in order to
determine the amount of depreciation expenses and
amortisation expenses to be recorded according to
the accounting policy set out in notes 1(i)(iii) and
note 1(j). The useful lives are estimated at the time
the asset is acquired based on historical experience,
the expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as
well as technical obsolescence arising from changes
in market demands or service output of the assets.
The Group also performs annual reviews on whether
the assumptions made on useful lives continue to be
valid. Such reviews take into account technological
changes, prospective economic utilisation and
physical condition of the assets concerned.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

(continued)

(9]

(d)

Provision for impairment of goodwill

The Group reviews whether there are indications of
impairment of goodwill at each balance sheet date
according to the accounting policies set out in
notes 1(f) and 1(l)(ii). The recoverable amounts of
cash-generating units are determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require
the use of estimates and assumptions made by
management on the future operation of the

business, pre-tax discount rates, and other
assumptions underlying the value-in-use
calculations.

Provision for impairment of receivables
The provisioning policy for impairment of receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of the receivables
and on management’s judgements. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer. If the financial conditions
of the customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowance may be required.

Est T R HER(E)

(9]

(d)

mEREERE

£ B IR BRI 22 1(F) B ()Gi) B
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35 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 35

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#5895) W ETIR)

(continued)

(e)

(f)

Provision for impairment of inventories
The management estimates the net realisable value
of inventories such as certain scripts, synopses,
publication rights, copyrights and editing rights
based on the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale according to the accounting policy set
out in note 1(m). In addition, the Group carries out
a review on inventories at each balance sheet date
and provision is made when net realisable value of
inventories is estimated to be less than their
carrying amount.

Impairment of interest in subsidiaries

In considering the impairment losses that may be
required for the Company’s interest in subsidiaries,
recoverable amount of the assets needs to be
determined. The recoverable amount is the greater
of the net selling price and the value in use. It is
difficult to precisely estimate selling price because
quoted market prices for these assets may not be
readily available. In determining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the assets are
discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to items such as level
of turnover and amount of operating costs of the
subsidiaries. The Company uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is
reasonable approximation of recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of items
such as turnover and operating costs of
subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #5715t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#895) L ETIR)

36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2013 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.
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Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTBE#SHEE
I Z2EAHFEN

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

(EBETERDEIN: 2&
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(BRAMBHRELEADFSR/2H T A/

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. The Group is therefore
unable to disclose the impact of adopting these new or
revised HKFRSs will have on its financial position and the
results of operations when such new or revised HKFRSs
are adopted.

RINBHYEEERDFR A

1 January 2014

—FE—H—H

Undetermined

REE
SERIERZEZEBITREXERS

AR @H R 2P EHELFM -

It RECRBERBER RN ZEHF]
BB BV B RELRDE -
ﬁ%T’EﬁM‘%HﬁER&%“%%ZE%
a2

Annual Report 2013 & 187



Financial Summary HBHEHE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{ETZTR)

Fifteen
Year ended  Year ended  Year ended  months ended Year ended
30 September 30 September 30 September 31 December 31 December
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
—E2TNE ZE-FTF —T——F —E-—CF —8-Z=f
AB=+tB ARA=+B AB=+tH +-A=+-B +=ZRA=+-H
tEE LFE tEE E+HAEA ILEE
Fr T Fr T ¥
INCOME STATEMENT BER
Turnover HEH 226,129 424,610 742,234 478,842 191,402
Profit/(loss) before taxation MuiariasF
(B518) (389,307) 82,631 60,159 (576,397) (673,170)
Income tax FRH (1,154) (2,603) (5,691) (49,831) (1,171)
Profit/(loss) after taxation BRBBGEH,
(E518) (390,461) 80,028 54,468 (626,228) (674,341)
Attributable to: TH&IERELY:
Equity shareholders of the ATREREA
Company (390,374) 80,472 53,748 (628,058) (675,376)
Non-controlling interests IS (87) (444) 720 1,830 1,035
As at As at As at As at As at
30 September 30 September 30 September 31 December 31 December
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RZZEENE RZZ-TF RZT——F RZIT-—F RZIB-=%
NA=+B ANA=+H ANA=+H +ZA=+-8B +=ZA=+-H
T Tr T T F
BALANCE SHEET BEARTR
Total assets BEERE 1,547,602 2,166,220 2,465,450 2,026,821 1,136,130
Total liabilities AERE (653,836)  (1,060,607) (1,122,840 (1,039,213) (284,452)
Net assets BEFE 893,766 1,105,613 1,342,610 987,608 851,678
Total equity attributable to equity AFIRERFEA
shareholders of the Company JEhER A% 893,064 1,104,719 1,340,407 984,166 849,280
Non-controlling interests JE PR AR = 702 894 2,203 3,442 2,398
Total equity HLEE 893,766 1,105,613 1,342,610 987,608 851,678
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